
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, June 3, 2019 

Special Meeting ‐ 7:00 P.M. 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

1. Call to Order.

2. Salute to the Flag.
 

3. Roll Call.

Motion  4. Approve Minutes of the Board Workshop of May 8, 2019.

Motion  5. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 13, 2019.

Motion  6. Approve Minutes of the Board Workshop of May 20, 2019.

Motion  7. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 23, 2019.

Information  8. Balanced Scorecard (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
a. Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 District‐Wide Balanced Scorecard Measures.
b. Balanced Scorecard for the Technical Services Work Group.

9. Written Communications.

10. Oral Communications.

Motion  11. Select Boardmembers to Represent Union Sanitary District on External Committees
for Fiscal Year 2020.

Motion  12. Boardmember  Compensation  for  Fiscal  Year  2020  (to  be  reviewed  by  the
Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Motion  13. Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare
and Other Benefits (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Motion  14. Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Tax
Roll for Fiscal Year 2020 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).

Motion  15. Scheduling Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 34.08, An Ordinance Providing for
the  General  Regulation  of  Private  and  Public  Sewers,  Plan  Review,  Issuance  of

REVISED

1 of 172



Construction Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, and the Collection of Fees for 
These  Services,  and  to  Repeal  Ordinance  No.  34.07  (to  be  reviewed  by  the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion  16.  Consider a Resolution to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8208 – Prima 
Newark, Located at Cedar Boulevard and Cedar Court,  in the City of Newark (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion  17.  Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 2090, Reserves, Allocations, and Fund 
Balance (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Direction  18.  Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2020 (to be reviewed by the Budget 
& Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information  19.  Check Register. 
 

 

Information  20.  Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Budget & Finance Committee – Wednesday, May 29, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. 

 Director Handley and Director Toy 

b. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, May 31, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. 

 Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

c. Audit Committee – will not meet. 

d. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – will not meet. 

e. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 

f. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information   21.   General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

  22.    Other Business: 
a.  Comments  and  questions.  Directors  can  share  information  relating  to  District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
b.  Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
c.  Discuss written and oral communications. 
 
 

 

23.  Adjournment  –  The  Board will  adjourn  to  the  next  Regular  Board Meeting  in  the 
Boardroom on Monday, June 10, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

The Public may provide oral and written comments at regular and special Board meetings. 

Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment 

relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the comment 

relates to an item not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard under “Oral Communications”.  Speaker cards will be 

available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.   

2 of 172



BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Toy 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, May 29, 2019 

10:00 A.M. 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment

4. Items to be reviewed for the Special Board meeting of June 3, 2019:

• Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Tax 
Roll for Fiscal Year 2020

• Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2020 

5. Adjournment

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

3 of 172



REVISED 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, May 31, 2019 

10:30 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Special Board meeting of June 3, 2019: 

 Balanced Scorecard 
o Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 District‐Wide Balanced Scorecard Measures 
o Balanced Scorecard for the Technical Services Work Group 

 Boardmember Compensation for Fiscal Year 2020 

 Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare and 
Other Benefits 

 Scheduling Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 34.08, An Ordinance Providing for the 
General Regulation of Private and Public Sewers, Plan Review, Issuance of Construction 
Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, and the Collection of Fees for These Services, 
and to Repeal Ordinance No. 34.07 

 Consider a Resolution to Accept Two Sanitary Sewer Easements for Tracts 8310 and 8311 
– Bayshores Phases 2 and 3, Located at Willow Street Between Seawind Way and Central 
Avenue, in the City of Newark  

 Consider  a  Resolution  to  Accept  a  Sanitary  Sewer  Easement  for  Tract  8208  –  Prima 
Newark, Located at Cedar Boulevard and Cedar Court, in the City of Newark  

 Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 2090, Reserves, Allocations, and Fund Balance  
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No 

action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The Public may provide oral and written comments at regular and special Board meetings. 

Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment 

relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the comment 

relates to an item not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard under “Oral Communications”.  Speaker cards will be 

available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

The  facilities at  the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.   Any attendee requiring special accommodations at  the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

4 of 172



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

May 8, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the special meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 
  Manny Fernandez, Vice President  
  Jennifer Toy, Secretary 
  Tom Handley, Director 
  Pat Kite, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  Raymond Chau, Capital Improvement Projects Coach 
  Curtis Bosick, Senior Engineer 
 
VISITORS: Dave Richardson, Woodard and Curran 
  Mark Takemoto, Woodard and Curran 
  Paul Pitt, Hazen and Sawyer 
  Irene Chu, Hazen and Sawyer 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
BOARD WORKSHOP  
 
Dave Richardson, Mark Takemoto, Paul Pitt, and Irene Chu presented the Plant Master Plan #3.  General 
Manager Eldredge and Senior Engineer Bosick responded to Boardmember questions. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The special meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:25 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, May 13, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 
 
 

Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2019 
5 of 172



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

May 13, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 

Manny Fernandez, Vice President 
Tom Handley, Director 
Pat Kite, Director 

 
ABSENT: Jennifer Toy, Secretary 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
VISITORS:   Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters 
  Dave Moutray, Crux Jinx Productions 

Laurie Pascual 
  Wynn Grcich 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2019 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of April 22, 2019.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 

 
 
 
 

6 of 172



APPROVE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2019 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of April 22, 2019.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 

 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE COMBINED BOARD WORKSHOP OF APRIL 23, 2019 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Kite to Approve the Minutes of 
the Combined Board Workshop of April 23, 2019.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Laurie Pascual spoke regarding liquified cremation. 
Wynn Grcich spoke regarding liquified cremation. 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO 
TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH WOODARD & CURRAN, INC. FOR THE HEADWORKS 
SCREEN NO. 3 PROJECT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Project had been expanded to include 
replacement of Headworks Mechanical Screens No. 1 and 2 due to the critical nature of 
the bar screens that are reaching the end of their useful life.  The Project will be renamed 
the Headworks Screens Replacement Project in the final construction documents to 
reflect the amended project scope.  Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 will include 
evaluation of the effectiveness of the self-contained trash compactor, detailed design of 
the new trash compactor, project management, preparation of design documents, and 
screenings odor evaluation.  Staff anticipate Woodard & Curran will complete design of 
the Project in June of 2019.  Staff recommended the Board authorize the General 
Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & Curran, Inc. 
in the amount of $40,613 to provide additional design services for the Headworks Screen 
No. 3 Project.   
 

7 of 172



It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & 
Curran, Inc. in the Amount of $40,613 to provide additional design services for the 
Headworks Screen No. 3 Project.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 

 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 8054 – VILLAS AT FLORIO, LOCATED AT CAROL AVENUE AND FREMONT 
BOULEVARD IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Florio Development, LLC, will construct 22 townhomes for 
Tract 8054, located at the northeast corner of Carol Avenue ad Fremont Boulevard in the 
City of Fremont.  Sanitary sewer service to the residential development will be provided 
by a new sewer main in the development’s private roadway, Fossano Common.  Florio 
Development, LLC, constructed the new sewer main and granted the District a sanitary 
sewer easement that provides for access, maintenance, and service of the new sewer 
main in the private roadway of the development.  Staff recommended the Board consider 
a resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement for Tract 8054 – Villas at Florio, located 
at Carol Avenue and Fremont Boulevard, in the City of Fremont. 
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Director Kite, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2859 to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8054 – Villas at 
Florio, Located at Carol Avenue and Fremont Boulevard in the City of Fremont, California.  
Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT AND 
QUITCLAIM TWO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS FOR TRACT 8261 – 
BOULEVARD HEIGHTS, LOCATED AT FREMONT BOULEVARD BETWEEN 
CHAPEL WAY AND CLOUGH AVENUE IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Pulte Home Company, LLC, will construct a mixed-use 
development for Tract 8261 located at Fremont Boulevard between Chapel Way and 
Clough Avenue, in the City of Fremont.  The District had two existing sanitary sewer 
easements in the vicinity; however, the proposed streets and parcel layout of the 
development were not in alignment with the existing sanitary sewer.  Pulte Home 
Company, LLC, was required to relocate the sewer main and grant a new easement to 
the District.  The new re-routed sewer mains are located in private roadways, Squill 

8 of 172



Common and Gladiolus Common, and the developer has granted the District a sanitary 
sewer easement that provides for access, maintenance, and service of the new sewer 
mains.  Staff recommended the Board consider a resolution to accept a sanitary sewer 
easement and quitclaim two existing sanitary sewer easements for Tract 8261 – 
Boulevard Heights, located at Fremont Boulevard between Chapel Way and Clough 
Avenue, in the City of Fremont. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2860 to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement and Quitclaim Two Existing 
Sanitary Sewer Easements for Tract 8261 – Boulevard Heights, Located at Fremont 
Boulevard Between Chapel Way and Clough Avenue in the City of Fremont, California.  
Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 

 
RECEIVE INFORMATION AND PROVIDE DIRECTION REGARDING THE PRIVATE 
LATERAL OUTREACH VIDEO 
 
Collection Services Manager Schofield stated the Board previously received results of a 
Lateral Study conducted to understand current and possible problems associated with 
private sewer laterals.  The Board expressed interest in developing an educational 
outreach video to explain homeowner responsibility, provide information about what to do 
to prevent lateral stoppages, and recommend actions homeowners should take in the 
event of a stoppage.  Crux Jinx Productions, which produced the District’s recent Virtual 
Plant Tour video, was contracted to develop the private lateral outreach video.  Staff 
presented a script and accompanying storyboard for the Private Lateral Outreach Video 
at the February 11, 2019, Board meeting.  Crux Jinx then completed shooting the video 
and incorporated initial edits based on staff input.  Staff presented the video to the Board 
for consideration and direction. 
 
Collection Services Manager Schofield stated the video will be closed captioned, the 
District’s telephone number will be changed from white to black text to make it more 
visible, and more definition will be added to identify the sidewalk and street in the video 
animation 
 
The Board directed staff to proceed with the proposed edits to the video, add clarification 
regarding the use of household cleaners and over the counter drain cleaners, and present 
the final video at a future Board meeting. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Program Projects 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Board approved the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) budget for Fiscal Year 2019 in the amount of $9.29 million 

9 of 172



for design and construction of 31 CIP projects in June of 2018.  The projects were ranked 
Priority 1, 2, or 3 based upon criteria prepared by staff and approved by the Executive 
Team.  For Fiscal Year 2019, 12 projects were ranked as Priority 1.  The status of Priority 
1 CIP projects is reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of each quarter and a copy 
of the status report was included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for FY19 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated third quarter expenditures for Fiscal Year 
2019 were presented in graphs included in the Board meeting packet.  The graphs depict 
actual expenditures versus approved budget for Capacity Fund 900, the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund 800, and for both funds combined.  Total CIP expenditures up to 
March 31, 2019, were under projections for the third quarter by approximately $303,000.  
The projects that had significant variances from projected expenditures were the Digester 
No. 3, Standby Power Upgrade, Digester No. 7, and the Alvarado Influent Pump Station 
Improvements projects.  Information regarding the variances was included in the Board 
meeting packet. 
 
Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of April 18, 2019 
Director Handley provided an overview of the EBDA meeting minutes included in the 
Board meeting packet. 
 
Check Register 
Staff responded to Boardmember questions regarding the Check Register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Engineering and Information Technology and Legal/Community Affairs Committees 
met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 

 General Manager Eldredge stated staff will prepare an item to consider how to 
proceed with Board meetings affected by holidays for the remainder of the 
calendar year. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
Director Kite stated she attended the Oro Loma Open House event. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. to a Board Budget Workshop in the Boardroom 
on Monday, May 20, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to a Closed Session in the Alvarado Conference Room on 
Thursday, May 23, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

10 of 172



The Board will then adjourn to a Special Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday,               
June 3, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 

 
 

Adopted this 3rd day of June 2019 

11 of 172



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

May 20, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the special meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 
  Manny Fernandez, Vice President 
  Jennifer Toy, Secretary 
  Tom Handley, Director 
  Pat Kite, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager  
  Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
BOARD WORKSHOP  
 
General Manager Eldredge and Business Services Coach Brenner presented the Fiscal Year 2020 
Operating Budget. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The special meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:25 p.m. to a Special Board Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, June 3, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 
 

Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2019 

12 of 172



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

May 23, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the special meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 
  Manny Fernandez, Vice President 
  Jennifer Toy, Secretary 
  Tom Handley, Director 
  Pat Kite, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel 
  Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session for the following: 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9:  One 
potential case. 
 
The Board reconvened to Open Session.  President Lathi reported there was no reportable action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The special meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:00 p.m. to a Special Board Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, June 3, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2019 

13 of 172



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

JUNE 3, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 8a 

TITLE: Third Quarter FY 19 District-Wide Balanced Scorecard Measures (This is an 
Information Item)  

SUBMITTED:       Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Gene Boucher, Organizational Support Team Coach 
Karoline Terrazas, Organizational Performance Manager 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Previous Board Action 
None. 

Background 

This report summarizes progress meeting the District’s strategic objectives for the first half of 
fiscal year 2018-19 (July 1 through March 31, 2019). 

Safety 
In the 3rd quarter an employee strained their back while lifting a pad for the crane. This injury 
resulted in lost time; however, the employee has since returned to work and is doing better.   
Additionally, one of our vehicles ran into a parked car in Union City. An insurance claim was 
processed to cover the minor damage. The District continues to do well with all other Safety 
targets this fiscal year to date.   

See Table 1: Safety Objectives and Measures, for District performance against all safety 
measures in Q3. 

14 of 172



 

Operational Excellence 
The District is on target to meet published targets for the Operational Excellence measures 
during the current fiscal year. We will continue to monitor the outcome of CIP projects and 
training assessments. 
 
See Table 2: Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, for District performance against 
all operational measures in Q3. 
 
 
 

Legend for Table 1 and Table 2: 

 

 

Green: meeting or exceeding target or projected to meet target by the end of the fiscal 
year 

Yellow: Will not meet target if trend continues, and/or not meeting target by <10%- 
needs attention 

 

Red: Will not meet FY target by >10%- corrective action needed 

15 of 172



 

Table 1: Safety Objectives and Measures 

Objectives Measurements 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr YTD Actual  Target FY18 FY17 Comments 

Reduce the number 
of accidents Total accidents with 

lost days 
0 0 1 1 0 2 1 

Strained back while 
lifting 

Other OSHA 
reportable accidents 

0 0 0 0 <4 0 2   

# Incidents of vehicle 
or equipment 
accidents/damage 

0 1 1 2 <2 2 1 
USD vehicle hit a 
parked car 

Reduce the impact of 
accidents on 
employees and the 
District 

Cost  associated with 
vehicle/equipment 
accidents 

0 0 $646.00 $646.00 <$5000 $0 $0 
 Insurance deductible 
for vehicle accident 

Ave FTE lost time 0.03 0 .06 0.03 <0.5 0.33 0.15  

Total Costs: Lost time 
Wages only 

$597.90  0 $1,566.60 $2,164.50  <$46,883 $32,052.64 $16,450.00  

Ave FTE limited duty 
time 

0 0 0 0 <0.5 .08 0.15   

Total costs: Limited 
duty/Other 
1/2 wages 

$0.00  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  <$23,441 $2,930.91 $9,517.03   

X-Mod     

 

.82 <1.0 0.78 0.72 
Fiscal year 
measurement. 

Identify and correct 
poor practices and 
potential hazards 

# Facility inspections 
completed (SIT) 

0 0 2 2 4 4 4  

16 of 172



 

% of areas of concern  
identified during 
internal facility 
inspections that are 
resolved within 45 
days of report  

N/A N/A 100% 100% >90% 94.59% 96.50% 

# work site 
inspections 
completed 

87 88 77 252 282 373 297  

Implement industry 
best practices 

# site visits (for 
potential BMPS) 
completed and 
discussed by ET 

0 0 1 1 >2 1 0  

Communicate our 
commitment to 
safety 

# GM 
communications on 
status of safety 
program and 
performance 

3 1 2 6 >4 7 8 Security incidents 

# safety strategy 
reviews conducted by 
ET and EHSPM 

1 1 1 3 4 8 8   

Educate employees 
in safe work practices 

# of major safety 
training events 
offered  

3 2 4 9 7 11 15  

Ave % of targeted 
employees trained vs. 
plan 

97.31% 96.60% 95.90% 96.60% >90% 94.02% 95.08%  

Create a positive 
safety culture 

% Positive responses 
on the employee’s 
safety survey (ave) 

    

 

N/A >75% 94.08% NA 
Completed in FY18 
and occurs every two 
years. 

 
 

17 of 172



 

Table 2: Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures 

Objectives Measures 1st Qrt 2nd Qrt 3rd Qtr 
YTD 

Actual 
Target FY18 FY17 Comments 

Stewardship: 
Demonstrate 
responsible 
stewardship of 
District assets and 
the environment 

Progress 
implementing 
outreach plan 
milestones: % 
planned events 
completed 

23.73% 16.95% 23.73% 64.41% >90% 91.80% 98.36%  

Service: Provide 
reliable, high quality 
service 

Response time to 
calls for service: % 
under 1 hour 

97.50% 96.40% 96.60% 96.83% >95% 96.83% 97.28%  

 Response time to 
contact USD 
inquiries:  
% within 3 business 
days 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% >90% 94.08% 96.50%  

# Total adverse 
impacts on 
customers 

2 1 1 4 <10 4 4 See note below, SSO 2/3 

Be prepared for 
emergencies 

# emergency 
preparedness events 
(drills, training, 
debriefs, tabletop 
exercises, etc.) 

0 2 0 2 3 5 3  

18 of 172



 

Fiscal responsibility: 
Ensure funding for 
critical programs 
and projects, while 
maintaining 
comparable rates 

Residential SSC 
compared to other 
agencies 

   

 

5.8th 
<33rd 

percentile 
11.5 11.5 

Survey criteria expanded, 
and new survey 
completed in October 
2018 

Accurately project 
and control costs 

% Budget expended, 
Operating 
Expenditures  

    

 

NA 95-103% 105% 92.00%  

% expended Priority 
1 Special Projects 

    

 

NA 80-110% 107% 44.00%  

# regional 
projects/initiatives 
with financial benefit 

3 3 3 3 >3 3 3   

Asset Management: 
Manage and 
maintain  assets and 
infrastructure 

# Critical asset 
failures wo negative 
impacts 

0 0 1 1 <2 0 0 CoGens, Temporary Boiler 

# critical asset 
failures with negative 
impacts 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0   

% asset 
renewal/year: Plant 

    

 

NA 
Track & 
Report 

1.74% 2.31% 
Annual Reporting 

Frequency 

% asset 
renewal/year: 
Collection System 

    

 

NA 
Track & 
Report 

0.18% 0.47% 
Annual Reporting 

Frequency 

19 of 172



 

Priority CIP Project 
milestones met vs. 
planned 

100% 100% 75% 91.67% 85% 85.00% 93.32% 
9 of 12 Projects on 

Schedule 

Environmental 
Protection: Maintain 
our ability to meet 
current and future 
regulations 
 
Implement projects 
and programs that 
benefit the 
environment 

# adverse impacts on 
environment (Cat 1 
SSO) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 1   

Category 2/3 SSOs 0 1 1 2 < 10 2 3 
1,680 gallons, Fremont, 

Grease caused 

# regional 
projects/initiatives 
with environmental 
benefit 

3 3 3 3 >3 3 3   

Employees: Maintain 
a highly competent, 
flexible workforce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Employee Turnover 
Rate- total 

    

 

NA 
Track and 

report 
6.11% 8.03% 

Annual Reporting 
Frequency 

Employee Turnover 
Rate- nonretirement 

    

 

NA 
Track and 

report 
2.29% 2.19% 

Annual Reporting 
Frequency 

% Training System 
Milestones 
Completed 
(accumulative total) 

37% 15.8% 26.3% 78.9% 100% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

# competency 
assessments 
completed 

5 0 19 24 43 73 74   

Safety: Work safely; 
reduce accidents 
and injuries 

See Safety Scorecard 

20 of 172



 

Labor relations: 
Foster a 
collaborative 
employee-
management 
relationship that 
encourages new 
ideas and 
continuous 
improvement 

Ave % non-mgmt. 
employees 
participating in 
District committees 
and taskforces 

 N/A 43% N/A N/A 45-55% 45.00% 46.15% 2x Frequency Reporting 

% non-mgmt. 
employees 
participating in 
alternative 
compensation 
program 
(accumulative total) 

 N/A  N/A N/A N/A 
Track & 
Report 

43.00% 45.25% 
Annual Reporting 

Frequency 

 

 
 

 

21 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 8b 

 
TITLE: Balanced Scorecard Report for the Technical Services Work Group 

(This is an Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
  
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None. 
 
Background 
 
In the past two quarters, the Board has received reports from the Treatment and Disposal 
Work Group and the Collection Services Work Group on the status of their Balanced 
Scorecards.  These two reports were based on the ‘process scorecards’ developed by the 
Operating Work Groups. 
 
The Balanced Scorecard for the Technical Services (TS) Work Group has a different look than 
the Operating Groups Scorecard.  Each of the three teams in the TS Workgroup has a different 
focus, therefore, we have not developed a process scorecard.  Instead, each team has 
developed its strategic objectives represented in their unique scorecards.  Each team has 
selected three to four of its performance measures to present which are most representative 
of the objectives of that team.  The complete scorecard (typically 6-10 measures) is available 
for the Board’s review.  A summary of measures is attached, with those presented being 
highlighted. 

22 of 172



Agenda Item No. 8b 
Meeting of June 3, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
The TS Workgroup consists of three teams.  Each team is briefly described below: 
 
Capital Improvements Projects Team (CIP Team):  This team is responsible for the 
implementation of the 20-year Capital Improvement Program.  Some of the team’s 
responsibilities are to:  develop the projects scopes, develop contracts for consulting services; 
coordinate input from the operating groups; review plans, specifications and reports; hold 
public information meetings; resolve disputes during construction; monitor contract status; 
review, negotiate and approve change orders; and ensure customer satisfaction at the 
completion of the projects.  The team is also responsible for preparing in-house design and for 
providing construction management services for small projects. 
 
The team measures are focused on internal and external customer satisfaction, management 
of District funds and successful quality control of capital projects. 
 
Customer Service Team (CST Team):  This team has a diverse group of responsibilities focused 
on meeting the needs of the District’s commercial, residential and internal customers.  The 
team’s responsibilities include:  conducting plan reviews, issuing permits to individuals and 
developers; construction inspection of new or repair of existing sewers on private property; 
administering the Sewer Service Charge billing program; collecting Capacity Fees from new 
developments; reviewing and responding to tri-city environmental planning documents; and 
responding to customer inquiries related to these responsibilities. 
 
In addition, the CST Team is responsible for the reception area, mail distribution, maintenance 
of the workroom equipment, dispatching trouble calls received from customers; and assisting 
other work groups in providing public information via newsletters and press releases. 
 
The team measures are focused on timely completion of plan reviews, dispatching trouble calls 
and collection of fees, providing quality construction inspection of sewer facilities and 
providing high-quality customer service to both external and internal customers. 
 
Environmental Compliance Team (EC Team):  This team is responsible for the implementation 
of the District’s Industrial Pretreatment, Pollution Prevention, and Public Outreach Programs 
required as a part of our NPDES Permit, as well as for the $347,490 contract with the City of 
Fremont for the Clean Water Program. Day-to-day duties of the team include semi-annual site 
inspections of the 76 permitted Class I and Class II industries; sampling of industrial discharges 
for compliance with user permit conditions; review of permit applications of new industries; 
education and training on industrial production and treatment processes; issuing groundwater 
discharge permits for site clean-up operations; enforcement of Sewer Use Ordinance 36.03 and 
other regulations; collection and preparation of information for capacity and sewer service 
charge fees; inspection of non-industrial commercial businesses; the restaurant FOG program; 
and a school outreach program. 
 

23 of 172



Agenda Item No. 8b 
Meeting of June 3, 2019 
Page 3 
 
The EC Team’s measures are related to the protection of District workers, facilities and plant 
from potentially harmful discharges, compliance with Local, State, and Federal regulations and 
requirements, and developing constructive and professional relationships with our Industrial 
and Commercial customers. 
 
Attached is an organizational chart of the TS Workgroup. 
 
The balanced scorecards are presented in a format that shows each team’s mission statement 
and three to four objectives, measures and conclusions.  
 
 
PRE/SEG;av 
 
 
Attachments: TS Organizational Chart 

TS Teams’ BSC Graphs  
TS Teams’ BSC Measures  

 
 

24 of 172



Sharon Anderson *Casual Employee (Receptionist)
Emily Chandler-Perez
Andrew Dupler
Glen Ginochio
John Hwang
Regina McEvoy
Steven Novak
Lusine Petrosyan
Theresa Rodriguez
Michelle Powell
Rod Schurman
Kristina Silva

Andrew Baile
Somporn Boonsalat
Curtis Bosick
Derek Chiu
Kevin Chun
Mohammad Ghoury
Thomas Lam
Danielle Lemos

Doug Dattawalker
Marian Gonzalez
Mike Lothian
Edda Marasigan
Joe Mendoza
Victor Padilla
Alex Paredes
Aaron Robles
Jose Soto
Ariel Teixeira
Audrey Villanueva

Technical Services

Customer Service  Team
Rollie Arbolante

Coach
12

Capital Improvement 
Projects Team
Raymond Chau

Coach
8

Environmental
Compliance Team

11

Sami Ghossain
Work Group Manager

34

5/1/2019

Michael Dunning
Coach

25 of 172



Capital Improvement Projects Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, 
engineering services, and administrative support for CIP projects and to our customers. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Customer Perspective Surveys 
Target 90% Minimum 

 
 
 
 
 

Target: 
90% min 

Objective: Deliver quality engineering projects by 
maximizing customer satisfaction on CIP projects 

Measure: Individual project customer survey 
(operating groups and agencies) regarding 
communication and responsiveness of project 
managers (all projects) 

Conclusion: This feedback assists the team in understanding and meeting the expectations of both its 
internal and external customers. 

26 of 172



Capital Improvement Projects Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, 
engineering services, and administrative support for CIP projects and our customers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

% of Design and Construction Management Cost – 20% Maximum 
Dollar Amount Represents Total Construction Cost 

 
 

 
 
 

Target 
20% max 

Objective: Control cost through effective 
management of consultants and construction 
projects 

Measure: % of design and construction 
management costs (final amounts) to construction 
costs (base bid amount plus change orders and 
claims) 

Conclusion: This data will help project managers better understand and control the effort required by 
consultants to design and manage the construction of CIP projects. 

Notes: 
 

Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements Project – Due to the relative low project construction 
cost, the consultant's fees, in terms of percentage, are higher than those for the common construction 
project. 

27 of 172



Capital Improvement Projects Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, 
engineering services, and administrative support for CIP projects and to our customers. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

% of Total Contract Change Orders to Construction Cost Attributable to Errors & Omissions, 
Unforeseen Field Conditions, and Owner Requested Changes 

 

 

New Target:  
5% Max 

Objective: Control cost through effective 
management of consultants and construction 
projects 

Measure: % of total contract change order 
amounts (target is 5% max. for new const., 10% 
for retrofit) to construction cost (base bid amount) 

Retrofit Target: 
10% Max 

Conclusion: This data will assist staff in minimizing errors and omissions costs by improving quality control 
and by identifying potential problems during design. 

Notes: 
 

Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project - Owner requested CO target was exceeded mainly 
due to safety related improvements requested by staff during construction, such as a new enclosure to 
shield against the exposed chemical pipes, re-routing of a drain line at the Odor Control Building, and a new 
splash guard at the Maintenance Shop Building chemical containment area. 
 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project – Owner requested CO target was 
exceeded mainly due to the new fencing at Irvington PS as a result of the higher elevation of the new 
sidewalk constructed by the City of Fremont. Without the new fencing, the owner requested percentage 
would have been 0.81%. 

28 of 172



Customer Service Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Measure: Number and amount of refunds and 
invoices needed due to administrative oversight 

Mission Statement: To provide high quality service to customers in a courteous and efficient manner; to 
enforce the District’s ordinances and specifications for sewer construction and repairs; to process sewer 
service charges for properties served by the District; and to provide reception, communication and resource 
services. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conclusion:  The Sewer Service Charge (SSC) database continues to be updated as information is 
received.  Team members are meeting and exceeding the goal which is maximum of five refunds per year. 

Objective: Timely and accurate collection of fees 
(SSC, capacity, and permit fees) 

TARGET: Maximum 
of 5 refunds per year 

29 of 172



Customer Service Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Mission Statement: To provide high quality service to customers in a courteous and efficient manner; to 
enforce the District’s ordinances and specifications for sewer construction and repairs; to process sewer 
service charges for properties served by the District; and to provide reception, communication and resource 
services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Measure: % non-tract/main plans checked within 10 working days 

Objective: Timely plan checking 

TARGET: Minimum 
90% of non-tract/main 
plans checked within 
10 working days 

Measure: % tract/main plans checked within 15 working days 
 

TARGET: Minimum 
90% of tract/main 
plans checked within 
15 working days 

Conclusion: Team members met and exceeded the plan checking goals. 

Notes:  The team broke out plan reviews into Tract/Main and Non-Tract/Main.  Tract/Main plans typically 
include significantly more sewer construction and requires more time to review. 

30 of 172



Customer Service Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Mission Statement: To provide high quality service to customers in a courteous and efficient manner. To 
enforce the District’s ordinances and specifications for sewer construction and repairs.  To process sewer 
service charges for properties served by the District, and to provide reception, communication and resource 
services. 
                                            
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Objective: Timely dispatch of trouble calls and 
relay service requests 

Measure: % of calls relayed within 10 minutes 

Conclusion:  Front desk staff continues to dispatch trouble calls within 10 minutes of receiving a call. 

Target: 
Dispatch a 
minimum of 
90% in 10 
min. 

31 of 172



Environmental Compliance Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY19 

June 2019 
 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Mission Statement: To effectively and efficiently implement environmental protection and compliance 
programs; to protect District personnel and facilities, public safety, and the environment from deleterious 
discharges; to preserve resources for beneficial use and reuse; to be responsive to the needs of the District, 
business community, and the general public; and to provide innovation and leadership in the areas of pollution 
prevention and industrial and commercial environmental compliance. 
                                 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Target: to stay 
within 90% to 

100% of annual 
budget 

Objective: Deliver quality public outreach 
programs 

Measure: % positive comments from teacher 
surveys 

Conclusion:  The team continues to provide quality public outreach programs in a professional manner  
with 100% positive feedback. 

Conclusion:  Projecting 90% of annual budget to be used in FY19. 

Objective: To stay within 
the COF line item budget 
for the 5-year contract 

Measure: % of budget 
spent and invoiced 

Target: 100%  

32 of 172



Environmental Compliance Team 
Balanced Scorecard – FY 19 

June 2019 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Mission Statement: To effectively and efficiently implement environmental protection and compliance programs; 
to protect District personnel and facilities, public safety, and the environment from deleterious discharges; to 
preserve resources for beneficial use and reuse; to be responsive to the needs of the District, business 
community, and the general public; and to provide innovation and leadership in the areas of pollution prevention 
and industrial and commercial environmental compliance. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

21% or 161 
facilities

22% or 168 
facilities

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter (Projected) OOB as of end of Q3

8% or 60 Businesses 

29% or 221 facilities

21% or 163 facilities

City of Fremont Business Inspection Plan
FY 19 Planned Inspections : 773 Facilities

0

50

100

150

200

250

FY 19 - 1st Qtr FY 19 - 2nd Qtr FY 19 - 3rd Qtr FY 19 - 4th Qtr
(Projected)

225

172
192

225

167
188

249

# 
of

 S
am

pl
es

Samples
Taken during
Quarter
Stated Goal
for Quarter

Target: 100% 
of Planned 
Inspections 

Objective: Monitor compliance of commercial/ 
industrial businesses 

Measure: % of COF business plan facilities 
inspected 

Conclusion:  The team is projected to meet the targeted goal for COF contract. 

Objective: Monitor compliance of industrial 
businesses 

Measure: Sampling events completed based on 
sampling 

Conclusion:  The team will continue to exceed goals for conducting sampling of industrial sites. 
33 of 172



Technical Services Work Group 
Team Performance Measures Summary 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Note* Shaded measures are shown in graphs 

 Page 1 of 3 

 
TEAM 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
MEASURE 

 
 

CIP 
Customer Perspective 
Deliver quality engineering projects by maximizing 
customer satisfaction on CIP Projects 

 
Individual project customer survey (operating groups and agencies) regarding 
communication and responsiveness of project managers (all projects) 
Target: 90% min. 
 

   
Track number and nature of complaints from our external customers, track 
response time of complaints directed to USD 

 
 Financial Perspective 

Control cost through effective management of 
consultants and construction projects. 

 
% of design and construction management costs (final amounts) to 
construction cost (base bid amount plus change orders and claims). 
Target: 20% 
 

 
 

  
% of total contract change order amounts 
Target is 5% max. for new construction, 
10% for retrofit to construction cost (base bid amount). 
Percentage of Change Orders shall be separated by the following three 
categories:  
  Errors and omissions – Target 1% max. for new const. and retrofit, 
  Unforeseen field conditions – Target 3% max. for new const.7% for retrofit, 
  Owner requested changes – Target 1% max. for new const.2% for retrofit 
 

 
 

Internal Processes 
Maintain communication and education so that there 
are clearer and more realistic project expectations 
between Operating Groups and CIP 

 
Internal customers survey (operating groups) regarding communication and 
responsiveness of project managers (all projects) Target: 90% min. 
 

 
 

 
Quality review and coordination of studies, master 
plans, and construction documents 
 

 
Percentage of construction cost (base bid amount) attributable to Contract 
Change Order amounts due to errors and omissions Target 1% 
 

 Employee Growth and Development Perspective 
Be aware of industry trends to implement efficient 
and cost-effective technologies 

 
# of ideas (training, informational, educational, technological) shared at team 
meetings – Target 6 ideas shared/year 
 

34 of 172



Technical Services Work Group 
Team Performance Measures Summary 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Note* Shaded measures are shown in graphs 

 Page 2 of 3 

 

 
TEAM 

 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
MEASURE 

 
Customer Service 

Customer Perspective 
Provide professional, courteous and timely services 
to internal and external customers 

 
% positive responses on customer feedback surveys 
 
 

 Financial Perspective 
Timely and accurate collection of fees (SSC, 
capacity, and permit fees) 
 

 
Number and amount of refunds and invoices issued due to administrative 
oversight 
 

 Internal Processes 
Timely plan checking 
 

 
% non-tract/main plans checked within 10 working days 
 
% tract/main plans checked within 15 working days 
 

 
 

 
Accurate plan checking and inspection 
 

 
# of problems reported within one year of approval 
 

  
Timely dispatch of trouble calls 
 

 
% calls relayed within 10 minutes (SLA) 
 

 Employee Growth and Development Perspective 
Enhance employee skills (computer, new 
technology, updated regulations, cross-training, 
etc.) 
 

 
Number of team members who have attended at least one outside training 
event (not including mandatory training) 

35 of 172



Technical Services Work Group 
Team Performance Measures Summary 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Note* Shaded measures are shown in graphs 

 Page 3 of 3 

 

 
TEAM 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
MEASURE 

 
 
Environmental 
Compliance 

Customer Perspective 
Provide services in a professional manner with 
appropriate level of policy enforcement balanced by 
providing technical information, advice and 
regulatory requirements 

 
% of comments from customers during annual evaluation process that indicate 
fair and professional behavior and responsiveness 
 
% positive responses to customer service survey 
 

  
Deliver quality public outreach programs 

 
Achieve the P2 Report Goal (40% of 119 classrooms = 48 presentations) 
 
 
% of positive comments from teachers 

 Financial Perspective 
Invoice appropriate fees for recovery of cost from 
enforcement actions 
 

 
% of violating industrial users invoiced 

 
 

 
Stay within City of Fremont contract line item budget 
 

 
% of budget spent and invoiced 

 Internal Processes 
Ensure industrial and commercial violations are 
appropriately addressed 
 

 
% of violations addressed with corrective measures to achieve compliance 
with all ordinances 

  
Monitor compliance of industrial and commercial 
businesses 
 

 
% of COF business plan facilities inspected 
 
Sampling events completed based on sampling plan 
 

 Employee Growth and Development Perspective 
Complete mandatory training 

 
Average percentage of training completed 
 

  
Transfer knowledge from external committees and 
conferences 

 
% of info shared based on number of committees and conferences (info, 
materials) 

 

36 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
TITLE:  Select  Boardmembers  to  Represent  Union  Sanitary  District  on  External 

Committees for Fiscal Year 2020 (This is a Motion Item)   
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
 
Recommendation 
 
Select Board Members to serve the FY19 term as USD representatives on the Alameda County 
Water  District  Finance  Authority  (ACWDFA),  East  Bay  Dischargers  Authority  (EBDA) 
Commission,  Alameda  County  Chapter  of  California  Special  District  Association  (ACSDA),  and 
the Southern Alameda County Geographic Information System (SACGIS) Joint Powers Authority. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
The  Board  considers  this  item  annually,  the  history  of  the  past  10  years  of  Board  action  is 
included in the History of External Committee Assignments 2009 to Present attached. 
 
Background 
 
Policy No.  3070  calls  for  the Board  to  select  representatives  and  alternates  for  four  External 
Committees.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Currently, the representatives and alternates for the external committees are: 

37 of 172



 

Organization  Representative  Alternate 

ACWDFA  Anjali Lathi  Jennifer Toy 

EBDA Commission  Tom Handley  Jennifer Toy 

ACSDA  Pat Kite  Manny Fernandez 

SACGIS  Manny Fernandez  Jennifer Toy 

 
Pursuant to the Policy, members completed an external committee interest form and indicated 
the external committees they wished to serve on in order of preference.   
 
Below is a table showing the preferences indicated by the Board with 1 being the committee in 
which they are most  interested  in serving and 4 being the committee  in which they are  least 
interested in serving: 
 

Board Member  ACWDFA  EBDA  ACSDA  SACGIS 

Manny Fernandez  2  4  3  1 

Tom Handley  3  1  4  2 

Pat Kite  1      2 

Anjali Lathi  2  1    3 

Jennifer Toy  1  4  3  2 

 
 
Attachment:   Board Policy 3070, Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership 
    History of External Committee Assignments 2009 to Present 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38 of 172



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

 

   

   
Effective: 
12/12/16 

Boardmember Policy Number 3070  

 Officers and Committee Membership Page 1 of 3 
 
Policy 
Selection of Board Officers will be held annually at the first regular meeting in the month of 
July of each year. Internal Board committee memberships shall be established no later than the 
second regularly scheduled meeting in July of each year, following the selection of the Board 
Officers.  External commissions/committees representatives shall be established no later than 
the first regularly scheduled meeting in May of each year. 
 
Purpose 
To provide a written record of the procedure approved by the Board for electing its Officers 
and establishing its committee memberships.   
 
Procedure 
 
Board Officers 
 
1. The Officers are President, Vice President, and Secretary and the term of office shall be 

for one year.  The Board may, by motion, amend the titles of President and Vice President 
to Chair and Vice Chair, respectively, provided that the Chair, regardless of title, shall act 
as the “president” pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section 6486.  Throughout 
this Policy, the titles President and Vice President shall be used interchangeably with 
Chair and Vice Chair. 

 
2. The President shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors and be 

responsible for the following: 
 
 a. maintaining order and following the published agenda 
 b. ensuring Boardmembers are allowed to participate in discussions 
 c. allowing the public to speak on agenda items 
 d. facilitating dialog among the public, staff, and Boardmembers 

e. appointment of members of the Board of Directors to Internal Committee 
assignments 

 f. signing resolutions, ordinances, and construction contracts on behalf of the District 
 g. representing the Board of Directors on issues or at events as designated by the full 

Board 
 
 The Vice President shall fulfill the duties of the President when the President is absent or 

otherwise unavailable. 
 

39 of 172



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070 
 Page 2 of 3 
 
 

   

 The Secretary shall ensure the recording of the minutes of the Board of Directors 
meetings and sign the adopted Minutes, shall sign all Resolutions and Ordinances passed 
by the District, and shall serve as Vice President when the Vice President is absent or 
otherwise unavailable. If the President and Vice President are both absent, and a quorum 
is present, the Secretary shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors as the 
Board President. 

 
3. At the first regularly scheduled Board meeting in July, or as soon thereafter as the item 

can be agendized at a regular Board meeting, the Board shall appoint its Board Officers. 
During election years, the newly elected Boardmembers shall be sworn in as the first item 
of business on the agenda followed immediately by the selection of the Board Officers.  
During non-election years, the selection of the Board Officers shall be considered after 
the last motion item on the agenda.  The Board shall elect the President, Vice-President 
and Secretary for one year terms.  The election or removal of the President, Vice-
President, or Secretary shall require a majority vote of the Board.  The Board may choose 
to follow a rotation of officers. 

 
The Board officers in office at the beginning of the meeting shall retain their positions 
until the adjournment of the meeting and the newly selected Board Officers shall assume 
their duties immediately following this meeting. 

 
Internal Board Committee Memberships 
 
1. Internal committees are:  Budget and Finance; Engineering and Information Technology; 

Legal/Community Affairs; Legislative; Personnel; and Audit Committee.  There is no fixed 
schedule for meetings set by this policy and appointments are made by the President, as 
set forth below.  Notwithstanding the above, meetings are noticed and open to the 
public. 

 
2. Annually, following the election of Board officers, and at the same meeting as the 

election of the officers, Directors shall be provided a list of the internal committees along 
with an internal committee interest form. The internal committee interest form shall be 
completed in order of preference and provided to the General Manager, or designee, no 
later than 11 calendar days in advance of the next Board meeting. 

 
3. The President is delegated the authority to appoint Directors to the internal committees.  

The President shall make every effort to rotate committee assignments and ensure a 
similar number of committee assignments for each Board member.  Notice of internal 
committee membership appointments will be contained in an information item to the 
Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting following the selection of the Board 
Officers.  The determination of the Board President on committee assignments shall be 
considered final. 

 
4. Ad Hoc committees are called as needed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

40 of 172



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070 
 Page 3 of 3 
 
 

   

 
External Commissions / Committee Representatives (CCR) 
 
1. External commissions/committees include:  the EBDA Commission; the Joint Powers 

Authority for Geographic Information Systems; the Alameda County Water District 
Finance Authority (ACWDFA); and the Alameda County Chapter of the California Special 
Districts Association. 

 
2. Membership on the EBDA Commission shall be a maximum of two consecutive years, 

with a possible three years in exceptional circumstances if approved by the Board. 
 
3. The Board of Directors will elect the representatives for External Committees no later 

than the first regularly scheduled Board meeting in May of each year in order to ensure 
the representatives may be seated for the first meeting of the new committee or 
commission.  At the prior meeting, Directors shall be provided a list of external 
committees along with an external committee interest form. The external committee 
interest form shall be completed in order of preference and provided to the General 
Manager, or designee, no later than 11 calendar days in advance of the meeting. The 
committee interests shall be compiled in a staff report by the General Manager, or 
designee, and provided to the Board for consideration.  The Board shall elect the CCRs for 
one year terms or as otherwise decided by the Board majority.  The election or removal 
of CCRs shall require a majority vote of the Board. 

 
Management Responsibility 
The General Manager will be responsible for scheduling on the Board agenda, the election or 
appointment of Board officers and external commissions, pursuant to the schedule shown 
above.  The General Manager, or designee, will provide the following to the new President, 
with copies to the Board:  (1) a list of the last ten years and current committee memberships; 
(2) a copy of this policy; and (3) a list of internal committee interests.  In consultation with the 
Board President, the General Manager will also be responsible for scheduling on the Board 
agenda the announcement of committee appointments. 
 
 
 
Supersedes Policy Dated:  July 2004, September 2005, January 2008, September 2010, October 
2013 
 
Approved by:  Board of Directors  December 12, 2016 
Reviewers:  General Manager, Board of Directors, District’s attorney 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review frequency: Every 3 years 
Next Review:  December 2019 
 

41 of 172



Union Sanitary District 
BOARDMEMBER EXTERNAL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

2009 – Present 
 
 

Date EBDA CSDA GIS 
 

ACWDFA 

7/18-7/19 Tom Handley 
Alt:  Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Manny Fernandez 
Alt:  Jennifer Toy 

Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Jennifer Toy 

7/17-7/18 Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Jennifer Toy 

Tom Handley 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

7/16-7/17 Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Manny Fernandez 
Alt:  Anjali Lathi 

Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Pat Kite 

6/15-7/16 Tom Handley 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez  

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  None 

6/14-6/15 Tom Handley 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez  

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez  

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Anjali Lathi  

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  None 

6/13-6/14 Tom Handley 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  None 

6/12-6/13 Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  None 

7/11–6/12 Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Manny Fernandez 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

 

6/10-7/11 Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Alt:  Pat Gacoscos* 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

 

7/09-6/10 Anjali Lathi 
Alt:  Tom Handley 

Tom Handley 
Alt:  Pat Gacoscos 

Jennifer Toy 
Alt:  Pat Gacoscos 

 

 
* December 14, 2010 – Pat Gacoscos resigned 

 

42 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
TITLE:  Board Member Compensation for Fiscal Year 2020 (This is a Motion Item) 
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
     
Recommendation 
 
The Budget & FinanceLegal/Community Affairs Committee will present their recommendation 
to the Board. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
Board Members have voted not to increase their meeting stipend since 2003.   
 
March 28, 2018 Board Meeting, the Board of Directors reviewed and revised Ordinance 44 and 
Policy 3040. 
 
Background 
 
California  Health  and  Safety  Code  section  6489  allows  for  an  increase  in  Board  Member 
compensation of up to 5% per year.  In 2000, the Board adopted Ordinance #44 stating that on 
January  1  of  each  year,  Board Member  compensation  shall  be  increased  by  the  amount  of 
increase of the classified employees’ wages for the year. The Ordinance also provided for the 
Board to review the compensation increase prior to it going into effect on January 1.   
 
In March  of  2018,  the  Board  reviewed  and  revised Ordinance  #44  and  Board  Policy  3040  to 
modify  the effective date of any  increase  in Board Member compensation  from  January 1 of 
each year to July 1 (or at a later date as may be stipulated by the Board) to better correspond 
with  the  District’s  fiscal  year  budget  cycle.  The  policy  also  provides  that  Board  Member 

43 of 172



compensation will be reviewed annually and stipulates that “for purposes of scheduling, review 
of  the  Director  Compensation  shall  be  conducted  at  a  regularly  scheduled  Board meeting  in 
April or May, so any changes can be included in the annual operating budget”. 
 
The classified employee contract provided for a cost of  living  increase  in 2019 of 4.5% to the 
base salaries.  Classified staffs cost of living adjustments are set to the Bay Area Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) from December to December each year with a floor of 3.25% and a ceiling of 4.5%.  
CPI increased by approximately 4.5% from December 2017 to December 2018. 
 
A Board compensation survey was completed by District Staff in April 2019 and is being shared 
with the USD Board. That survey is attached as a reference guide along with Ordinance #44.01, 
Policy 3040, and a summary of Board actions on this matter since 2000. 
 
Attachments: 
History of Board Compensation Since 2000 
Board Compensation Survey 
Policy 3040, Board Member Compensation 
Ordinance 44.01 
 
 
 
 
 

44 of 172



Note 1:  H&S and Water Codes established a method for calculating new baseline as a maximum of 5% per year since the last 
adjustment.  The $100 per meeting was established in 1986.  Ordinance 44 was adopted in 2000.  The time period for adjustment 
was 1986-2000, or 14 years.  The new meeting fee was calculated as $100 x 1.0514 = $198.00. 
Note 2:  Changes to Policy 3040, Boardmember Compensation Limits, and Ordinance 44.01 were adopted by the Board              
March 23, 2018, to reflect the Board will review their own compensation annually at a regularly scheduled Board meeting in April 
or May, and any changes to Board compensation will be effective at the beginning of the fiscal year, or at a later date as may be 
stipulated by the Board. 

History of Board Member Compensation 2000 – Present 

Calendar 
Year or 
Fiscal 
Year 

Board Meeting 
Compensation 
(per day of 
service, maximum 
6/month) 

Notes/Background 

   
2000 $100 Per State Law, Health and Safety Code 4933, 6489 
   
2001 $198 

 
See Note 1 for calculation. 

Per amended Health and Safety Code with Reference to 
Water Code, USD passed Ordinance 44 (4-1 vote on 
10/23/2000) establishing new baseline of $198/day of 
service using allowable escalator from Water Code.  
Established annual increase equal to classified employee 
increase per USD/Union employee contract, with provision 
for Board to discuss annually. 

   
2002 $205.92 Increase per Ordinance 44 based on 4% increase for 

classified employees in 2001.  No action taken by Board of 
Directors. 

   
2003 $212.10 Increase per Ordinance 44 based on 3% increase for 

classified employees in 2002.  Board agreed to take no 
action on Ordinance 44 (11/11/2002) 

   
2004 $212.10 Board voted 5-0 not to increase compensation for 2004. 

(11/24/2003) 
   
2005 $212.10 Board voted 5-0 not to increase compensation for 2005. 

(11/22/2004) 
   
2006 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2006.  (1/9/2006) 
   
2007 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2007. (12/11/2006) 
   
2008 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2008.  (12/10/2007) 
   

45 of 172



Note 1:  H&S and Water Codes established a method for calculating new baseline as a maximum of 5% per year since the last 
adjustment.  The $100 per meeting was established in 1986.  Ordinance 44 was adopted in 2000.  The time period for adjustment 
was 1986-2000, or 14 years.  The new meeting fee was calculated as $100 x 1.0514 = $198.00. 
Note 2:  Changes to Policy 3040, Boardmember Compensation Limits, and Ordinance 44.01 were adopted by the Board              
March 23, 2018, to reflect the Board will review their own compensation annually at a regularly scheduled Board meeting in April 
or May, and any changes to Board compensation will be effective at the beginning of the fiscal year, or at a later date as may be 
stipulated by the Board. 

Calendar 
Year or 
Fiscal Year 

Board Meeting 
Compensation (per 
day of service, 
maximum 6/month) 

Notes/Background 

   
2009 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2009. (11/24/08) 
   
2010 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2010.  (11/23/2009) 
   
2011 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2011.  (11/22/2010) 
   
2012 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2012.  (11/27/2011) 
   
2013 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2013.  (11/26/2012) 
   
2014  $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2014.  (11/23/2013) 
   
2015 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2015.  (11/10/2014) 
   
2016 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2016.  (12/14/2015) 
   
2017 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2017.  (11/14/2016)               
   
2018 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

FY 2018/2019.  (3/23/2018) 
See Note 2 for edits to Policy 3040 and Ordinance 44.01 

 

46 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 1 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Castro Valley 
Sanitary 
District  

$220 per 
meeting/  

6 meetings per 
month 

 Active Members of 
the Board of Directors 
may participate in the 
health benefits plan 

provided by the 
District as a non-
PERS member 

through the CalPERS 
System, and/or Dental 
plan provided member 

pays 100% of 
premium cost less the 

amount listed in 
Section 4035.5 in 
Senate Bill 1464, 

Chapter 896, Chapter 
Date September 26, 

2002. 

Board member 
pays entire cost No No No District 

contribution No No 

District 
provides 

four Board 
Members 

with tablets 

No 

Central San 

$185 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month (max 
$1,110 per 

month) 

Central San pays 
premium for up to family 
coverage for Kaiser, 
Health Net HMO, or 
Health Net PPO**   
Cafeteria Plan offered in 
lieu of medical coverage  
(** All Directors pay the 
difference between 
highest-cost HMO to 
PPO if PPO selected) 
Maximum District 
contribution is 
$3,397.09/month - Health 
Net HMO family.  
[Effective 7/1/19: Central 
San will be transferring to 
CalPERS Healthcare 
with a maximum District 
contribution of 
$2,344/month.] 

Central San 
pays premium 
for up to family 
coverage for 
Delta Dental 

PPO (maximum 
premium - 

$213.60/month) 

Central San pays 
premium for 

$50,000/$1,500 
policy 

No 
No Central 

San 
contribution 

As of 3/17/16, 
eligible for 
mileage 

reimbursement 
ONLY as 
related to 

conferences 

No 
Central San 

provides 
iPads for 
Directors 

Yes 

47 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 2 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Contra Costa 
Water 
District 

$100 per 
meeting/ 

10 meetings per 
month 

 (one meeting fee 
maximum paid 

per day) 

District pays premium 
up to the Kaiser family 
coverage for CalPERS 

Kaiser, Health Net 
SmartCare or PERS 

Choice.    

District pays 
premium for 

Delta Dental for 
family 

District pays for 
$10,000 policy Yes No District 

contribution Yes, mileage No No Yes 

Delta Diablo 
 

$170 per 
meeting/ 

Approx. 20 
meetings per year  

(1 Board meeting 
per month + 

about 8 
Committee 

meetings per 
year)  

District pays premium 
for CalPERS Medical 
(HMO or PPO) up to 
the greater of either 
the Blue Shield or 
Kaiser HMO family 

rate 

District pays 
premium for up 

to family 
coverage;  

Self-insured 
Plan  

District pays 
premium for 
$125,000/ 

$2,000 policy 
No No District 

contribution   No No 

Yes.  By 
Administrative 
Policy 4030, 

Board Members 
cannot collect 
benefits from 
another public 
agency, and do 
not. All Board 
Members elect 

to receive 
coverage only 

from the District. 

48 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 3 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Dublin San 
Ramon 
Services 
District  
 

$146 per day for 
each day of 

service to the 
District, up to a 
maximum of 10 
days per month 

District pays for 
premium up to $780 

(Board Member only), 
$1,560 (Member + 1 
Dependent), $2,028 

(Member + 2 
Dependents); rates 

set by resolution 
annually 

District pays 
premium for up 

to Board 
Member and 

eligible 
dependents 

District pays for 
up to $50,000 

basic life 
insurance 

No - Directors are 
not eligible to 

participate in the 
District's 
CalPERS 
retirement 

program, or 
retiree benefits, 

unless they were 
first elected or 

appointed to the 
Board prior to 

July 1, 1994, in 
accordance with 

California 
Government 
Code Section 

20322 (c). 

The District 
matches 
Board 

Member 
contributions 
to 457 Plan 

by 25%, up to 
$10 per 
calendar 
month - 

provided that 
a director 
voluntarily 

contributes at 
least $20 per 
month, the 

District 
matches that 
contribution 

up to $10 per 
month or 25% 
of the monthly 
contribution, 
whichever is 

less. 

Travel to and 
from a 

destination 
more than 15 
miles from the 
District office 
using private 

automobiles is 
allowable at 

the IRS 
mileage rate.  

This applies so 
long as the 
amount so 
calculated 
does not 

exceed the 
cost of pre-
purchased 
round-trip 

coach class 
airfare plus 

ground 
transportation 
that would be 

incurred for the 
same trip. 

No Yes Yes 

East Bay 
Municipal 
Utility 
District 

$1,317 per month 
(effective 

February 1, 2019) 
and 2 meetings 

per month.  Max, 
number of 

compensable 
meetings may 

vary but could be 
up to 11 per 

month based on 
committee or JPA 

assignments. 

District pays for 
premium for up to 

Kaiser Family.  District 
pays full premium for 

HealthNet and 
Anthem BC for the 
Director only and 

requires 15% premium 
contribution for double 
and family coverage. 

District pays full 
premium for 
Director and 

eligible 
dependents 

No 

Directors 
contribute 8.75% 
of their salary on 
a pre-tax basis 
and the District 

contributes 
37.92% (as of 
January 2018).  
Directors are 

eligible to retire at 
age 54 with 

minimum of five 
years of service. 

No District 
contribution Yes, mileage.  Yes 

District 
provides 
iPads for 
Directors 
that want 

them 
(currently 3).  

For those 
that use 

their 
personal 

iPads, the 
District pays 

a $50 
stipend. 

Yes 

49 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 4 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Fairfield-
Suisun 
Sewer 
District  

$147.32 per 
meeting/6 

meetings per 
month. Can be 
increased any 
year by Board 

action.    

District pays health 
expense 

reimbursement of 
$6,617  per calendar 
year (increased every 
January by CPI-W for 

SF-Oakland 
Metropolitan area 12 

months ending in 
October of each year) 

See medical 
health expense 
reimbursement 

No No No District 
contribution 

 Pay mileage 
and parking 

when 
attending 

conferences 
for District 
business 

No 

Yes, if 
participating 

in the 
paperless 

agenda and 
request a 

loaner iPad 

No.  The City 
provides primary 
benefits as the 

Board Members 
serve as the 
City Council. 

Inland 
Empire 
Utilities 
Agency  

$247.50 per 
meeting/ 

10 meetings per 
month 

Medical, dental, vision 

Agency pays 
premium for up 

to family 
coverage for 
Delta Dental 

PPO or 
Western Dental 

Agency pays 
premium for 

$30,000 policy 
No No District 

contribution Yes, mileage  Yes Yes Yes  

Ironhouse 
Sanitary 
District  

$170 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month 

Existing Board Members are frozen at 
2012 rate of District paid premium for up 

to Kaiser Family; Board Member is 
responsible for any increase above that 

rate going forward for medical, dental and 
vision.  New Board Members are covered 
for self only at Kaiser rate.  Any increase 

above the rate of medical coverage, 
dental or vision during the first year of 

service or family coverage shall be paid 
by the Director. 

No No 

Optional, if 
chosen to 

enroll, cost to 
District 
$10/mo. 

Pay mileage 
and parking 

when 
attending 

conferences 
for District 
business 

No 

Yes, laptops 
but will be 
providing 
tablets 
shortly 

Yes 

Mt. View 
Sanitary 
District  

$226.60 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month (At 4/11/19 

Board meeting, 
considering 
increase to 

$235.44/meeting) 

District pays up to 
$1,281.21 for Board 
Member and family.  
Coverage is through 

PERS.  (PERS 
requires participation 

in a District-sponsored 
retirement plan.  See 

Deferred Comp) 

No No No No District 
contribution   No No Yes 

50 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 5 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Napa 
Sanitation 
District 
 

$218 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month 

No No 
District pays 
premium for 

$28,000 policy 
No No District 

contribution 

Reimburse 
mileage for 
conferences 
and trainings 

N/A 
$20 

allowance 
for iPad fees 

No.  Two 
Members serve 

on the City 
Council, and 

one serves on 
the Board of 
Supervisors.  

Those entities 
provide primary 

benefits. 

Oro Loma 
Sanitary 
District  

$260 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month 

District pays premium 
for up to two-party 

highest CalPERS plan 
($2,222.26 for 2019) 

District pays 
premium for up 

to family 
coverage - 

Delta Dental 
($138.17/mo.) 

No 
 

No 

6.32% of 
salary - 
District 

contribution 

Mileage 
reimbursed per 

IRS rate 

No, but 
reimbursement 
up to $40/mo. 

Yes, if 
requested 
by Board 
Member; 

value not to 
exceed 
$800. 

Yes, but one 
Member serves 

on East Bay 
Dischargers 

Authority 
(EBDA), and 

another serves 
on the Alameda 
County Waste 
Management 

Authority (Stop 
Waste Board). 

Union 
Sanitary 
District 

$212.10 per 
meeting/ 

Max of 1 meeting 
per day and 6 
meetings per 

month 

District pays up to  $1087.98 per month 
for Board Member only;  $2141.73per 

month for Board Member +1;  $2633.75 
per month for Family for medical, dental, 
vision; allocated as follows:  100% dental, 

100% vision, and balance to medical 
plans 

District pays for 
coverage of 
$10,000 for 

Board Member; 
$5,000 for 

spouse and 
dependents 

No $50/month 

Mileage 
reimbursement 

for travel 
related to 
trainings / 

conferences 

No 
District 

provides 
iPads to 
directors 

Yes, but one 
member serves 
on EBDA and is 
compensated by 

the EBDA 
Commission for 

meetings 
attended. 

51 of 172



USD Survey of District Board Members Compensation and Benefits, April 2019  

Page 6 of 6 

Agency 
Stipend/Max. 
Compensable 

Mtgs 

Medical 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse/Family 

Dental 
 

Board 
Member/ 

Spouse/Family 

Life Insurance 
 

Board Member/ 
Spouse 

Pension Deferred 
Comp Car / Mileage Cell Phone Computers 

/iPads 

Agency 
Provides 
Primary 

Benefits or 
Compensation 

Vallejo Flood 
and 
Wastewater 
District  
(formerly 
Vallejo 
Sanitation and 
Flood Control 
District) 

City Appointees 
(7) $100 per 

month 
(regardless of 

number of 
meetings held or 

attended) – 

 County 
Appointee (1) 

$100 per meeting 
attended, max of 

3 per month 

No No No No No District 
contribution 

Mileage 
reimbursement 

for travel 
related to 
trainings / 

conferences   

No No 

No. The City 
provides primary 
benefits as the 

Board Members 
serve as the 
City Council.  

Since 2009, the 
annual salary of 

each Council 
Member has 

been $14,700. * 
The Vallejo 
Flood and 

Wastewater 
District's Board 
of Trustees is 

comprised of all 
members of the 

Vallejo City 
Council, and 

one member of 
the Solano 

County Board of 
Supervisors.   

West County 
Wastewater 
District  

Up to $265.35 per 
meeting/ 

6 meetings per 
month 

District pays flat rate of up to 
$1997.45/month for family medical; dental 

premium is shared 90% District/10% 
director. 

District pays 
premium for 

$85,000 policy 
for Board 

Member only. 

(Age reduction 
schedule 
applies.) 

No No District 
contribution $32/month Yes 

District 
provides 
tablets to 
directors 

Yes 

High  $ 265.35  
Average  $ 191.09  
Low  $ 100.00  

 
52 of 172



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

   

Effective:  4/17/18 Boardmember Policy Number 3040 

 Compensation Limits Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Policy 
 
Boardmembers will be compensated in accordance with Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 
44 as adopted October 23, 2000, and amended on March 26, 2018.  Compensation is based upon 
Section 6489 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, effective January 1, 1987, 
as amended in 2000. 
 
Purpose 
 
To publicly state the amount of compensation received for meeting attendance by Boardmembers 
and to provide for future changes in compensation limits. 
 
Definitions 
 
Allowable meetings  Defined in the "Boardmember Meetings Compensated" Policy No. 

3050.1  
 
Procedure 
 
In accordance with Union Sanitary District Ordinance 44, as may be amended, beginning January 
1, 2003, the basis for compensation will be $212.10 for each day of service, up to six days per 
month maximum.   
 
The Board will review Director Compensation on an annual basis during a regularly scheduled 
public meeting of the Board of Directors.  Any annual increase will go into effect on July 1, or at 
a later date as may be stipulated by the Board.  For purposes of scheduling, review of the Director 
Compensation shall be conducted at a regularly scheduled Board meeting in April or May so any 
changes can be included in the annual operating budget.    
 
Director Compensation may be increased by no more than the lesser of:  (a) the same percentage 
as the increase in the salaries of the classified employees as agreed to in the current 
union/management Memorandum of Understanding; or (b) an amount equal to five percent for 
each calendar year following the operative date of the last adjustment, or such other amount as 
may be permitted pursuant to Health and Safety Section 6489.    
 
Management Responsibility 
 
The General Manager will be responsible for reviewing and approving Boardmembers' time 
sheets for consistency with this policy, and for scheduling an annual review of the Boardmember 
compensation for meetings prior to July 1 each year. 

53 of 172



Boardmember Compensation Limits Policy Number 3040 
 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
Board of Directors Responsibility 
 
The Board of Directors will annually review Ordinance 44 and Director Compensation during a 
regular Board meeting, in open session, and determine if any action will be taken. 
 
Administrative Information 
 
Supersedes Policy Dated October 1995, and previous versions and revisions dated August 7, 
1992, November 26, 1990, and September 8, 1986 (Resolution 1807) November 26, 1990. 
 
Ordinance 44 Adopted by Board of Directors October 23, 2000, and amended on March 26, 
2018. 
 
Approved by:    Board of Directors    
Author/Owner:     General Manager/Human Resources Manager 
Notify Person:    General Manager 
Revision Frequency:     Every 3 Years 
Next Review:     April 2021 
 

54 of 172



55 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
TITLE: Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and 

Welfare and Other Benefits (This is a Motion Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 

Karen W. Murphy, District Counsel 
   
 
Recommendation 
 
Review and consider approval of updated Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare 
and Other Benefits. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
2/27/2012 Board Meeting – Approval of Policy No. 3090 
 
Background 
 
Policy No. 3090 states the District provides health and welfare benefits for active, retired, and 
separated Boardmembers as defined.  The proposed revisions include but are not limited to: 
 

• Addition of applicable Government Code language 
• Removing outdated language 
• Updating format for consistency  

 
Attachments: Redline of Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare and Other Benefits 

Clean Version of Policy No. 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare and Other Benefits 

56 of 172



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

   
Effective: 
2/27/20126/3/2
019 

Board Member Health and Welfare and Other Benefits Policy Number 
3090 

  Page 1 of 3 
 
 
Policy 
 
The District provides health and welfare benefits for active, retired and separated Board 
members as defined in this policy.  
 
Purpose 
 
To provide a written policy identifying the conditions under which health and welfare benefits 
are available to current, retired, and separated Board members. 
 
Definitions  
 
457 (b) Plan 
 
 

An “eligible deferred compensation plan” maintained by the District 
that qualifies for favorable tax treatment under section 457(b) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  Subject to certain limits under the tax 
laws, the plan allows eligible employees to elect to contribute a 
portion of their compensation to the plan, and also permits the 
District to make contributions for any eligible employee.   
Contributions to the plan are not taxed; income earned on the plan 
assets is tax free.  Amounts under the plan are fully taxable when 
distributed to participants.  When the participant becomes eligible 
to receive benefit payments under the plan — usually at 
termination of District employment — the benefit is based on the 
total amount in the participant’s plan account.  The account 
balance includes any employee and District contributions, adjusted 
for earnings or losses.   
 

Benefit Eligibility  
 

Board members and qualified dependents who meet the conditions 
specified in this policy. 
 

Board Member An elected or appointed representative of the legislative body of 
Union Sanitary District. 
 

COBRA The Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, which allows 
former employees and their dependents to purchase health and 
welfare insurance at the former employer’s group rate, plus a 2% 
administrative fee, for a specific period of time.  
 

Health and Welfare Medical, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage; participation in 

57 of 172



Board Member Health & Welfare Benefits Policy Number 3090 
 Page 2 of 3 
Benefits 
 

the District’s Employee Assistance Program. 

 
Coverage 
 
Active Board Members’ 
Medical, Dental, Vision, 
and Life Insurance; 
Employee Assistance 
Program Eligibility: 
 
Other Benefits: 

Active Board members are eligible to receive these benefits equal 
to the benefits of Unclassified District employees with the 
exception that Life insurance benefits are $10,000 for the Board 
member and $5,000 for dependents. See annual Summary of Board 
Member Benefits for current benefits. 
 
Active Board members are eligible to purchase computers and 
receive computer loans under the Computer Purchase and Student 
Loan Program. 
 

Retirement: Current Board members elected or appointed prior to July 1, 1994, 
with no break in service after June 30, 1994, will have retirement 
contributions made in the same manner as Unclassified District 
employees through PERS. 
 
Current Board members elected or appointed after July 1, 1994, or 
after a break in service from the office held on June 30, 1994, are 
not eligible to participate in the District’s PERS retirement plan. 
Current Board members are eligible to participate in the District-
sponsored 457 (b) Plan, for which the District makes a contribution 
as specified in Board Resolution No. 2574 dated 9/8/2008. 
 

Retiree Medical: Board members who retire under PERS within 120 days of 
separation from USD will receive the same medical benefit as 
retired Unclassified USD employees if the retiring Board member 
has at least 12 years of continuous service with USD, and was 
elected or appointed prior to July 1, 1994 with no break in service 
after June 30, 1994.  
 
Board members who retire within 120 days of separation from USD, 
are at least 50 years of age, have a minimum of eight(8) years of 
service on the Board, and for whom the District has contributed to 
the 457 (b) Plan, are eligible to participate in the PERS medical 
insurance program. Board members are responsible for paying the 
medical premium with the exception of the Minimum Employer 
Contribution (MEC), which is required by PERS to be paid by the 
District. 
 

58 of 172



Board Member Health & Welfare Benefits Policy Number 3090 
 Page 3 of 3 
Ineligibility for Retiree 
Medical: 

Separated Board members who are not eligible to retire (do not 
have 8 years of service, are not age 50 or older, and do not 
participate in the 457 (b) Plan).may elect to continue medical 
coverage under COBRA for themselves and their dependents.  
 

Dental, Vision, and EAP 
Benefits after 
Retirement: 

Retired Board members and their qualified dependents can elect to 
continue receiving these benefits through COBRA. 
 

  
Management Responsibility 
 
The General Manager’s office will be responsible for notifying outgoing Board members of their 
eligibility to continue receiving health and welfare benefits.  
 
Exceptions 
 
Two former Board members, Conrad Anderson and Darwin Buffington, separated from the Board 
of Directors under a previous agreement and are therefore exempt from this policy. 
 
Government Code Section 7507(b)(1) provides that, with certain exceptions , “… local legislative 
bodies, including community college district governing boards, when considering changes in 
retirement benefits or other postemployment benefits, shall secure the services of an actuary to 
provide a statement of the actuarial impact upon future annual costs, including normal cost and 
any additional accrued liability, before authorizing changes in public retirement plan benefits or 
other postemployment benefits for Board Members. 
 
 
 
Approved by:   Board Resolution No. 2574, dated 9/8/08 

Board Resolution No. 2213, dated 4/14/97 
   Board Resolution No. 2158, dated 10/9/95 
Author/Owner:  General Manager/HR Manager 
Reviewers:    Board of Directors 
Notify Person:  General Manager/HR Manager 
Revision Frequency: Every 3 years 
Next Review:   February, 2015June 2022 
 

59 of 172



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

   
Effective: 
6/3/2019 

Board Member Health and Welfare and Other Benefits Policy Number 
3090 

  Page 1 of 3 
 
 
Policy 
 
The District provides health and welfare benefits for active, retired and separated Board 
members as defined in this policy.  
 
Purpose 
 
To provide a written policy identifying the conditions under which health and welfare benefits 
are available to current, retired, and separated Board members. 
 
Definitions  
 
457 (b) Plan 
 
 

An “eligible deferred compensation plan” maintained by the District 
that qualifies for favorable tax treatment under section 457(b) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  Subject to certain limits under the tax 
laws, the plan allows eligible employees to elect to contribute a 
portion of their compensation to the plan, and also permits the 
District to make contributions for any eligible employee.   
Contributions to the plan are not taxed; income earned on the plan 
assets is tax free.  Amounts under the plan are fully taxable when 
distributed to participants.  When the participant becomes eligible 
to receive benefit payments under the plan — usually at 
termination of District employment — the benefit is based on the 
total amount in the participant’s plan account.  The account 
balance includes any employee and District contributions, adjusted 
for earnings or losses.   
 

Benefit Eligibility  
 

Board members and qualified dependents who meet the conditions 
specified in this policy. 
 

Board Member An elected or appointed representative of the legislative body of 
Union Sanitary District. 
 

COBRA The Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, which allows 
former employees and their dependents to purchase health and 
welfare insurance at the former employer’s group rate, plus a 2% 
administrative fee, for a specific period of time.  
 

Health and Welfare 
Benefits 

Medical, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage; participation in 
the District’s Employee Assistance Program. 

60 of 172



Board Member Health & Welfare Benefits Policy Number 3090 
 Page 2 of 3 
 
 
Coverage 
 
Active Board Members’ 
Medical, Dental, Vision, 
and Life Insurance; 
Employee Assistance 
Program Eligibility: 
 
Other Benefits: 

Active Board members are eligible to receive these benefits equal 
to the benefits of Unclassified District employees with the 
exception that Life insurance benefits are $10,000 for the Board 
member and $5,000 for dependents. See annual Summary of Board 
Member Benefits for current benefits. 
 
Active Board members are eligible to purchase computers and 
receive computer loans under the Computer Purchase and Student 
Loan Program. 
 

Retirement: Current Board members elected or appointed prior to July 1, 1994, 
with no break in service after June 30, 1994, will have retirement 
contributions made in the same manner as Unclassified District 
employees through PERS. 
 
Current Board members elected or appointed after July 1, 1994, or 
after a break in service from the office held on June 30, 1994, are 
not eligible to participate in the District’s PERS retirement plan. 
Current Board members are eligible to participate in the District-
sponsored 457 (b) Plan, for which the District makes a contribution 
as specified in Board Resolution No. 2574 dated 9/8/2008. 
 

Retiree Medical: Board members who retire under PERS within 120 days of 
separation from USD will receive the same medical benefit as 
retired Unclassified USD employees if the retiring Board member 
has at least 12 years of continuous service with USD, and was 
elected or appointed prior to July 1, 1994 with no break in service 
after June 30, 1994.  
 
Board members who retire within 120 days of separation from USD, 
are at least 50 years of age, have a minimum of eight(8) years of 
service on the Board, and for whom the District has contributed to 
the 457 (b) Plan, are eligible to participate in the PERS medical 
insurance program. Board members are responsible for paying the 
medical premium with the exception of the Minimum Employer 
Contribution (MEC), which is required by PERS to be paid by the 
District. 
 

Ineligibility for Retiree 
Medical: 

Separated Board members who are not eligible to retire (do not 
have 8 years of service, are not age 50 or older, and do not 
participate in the 457 (b) Plan).may elect to continue medical 
coverage under COBRA for themselves and their dependents.  
 

61 of 172



Board Member Health & Welfare Benefits Policy Number 3090 
 Page 3 of 3 
Dental, Vision, and EAP 
Benefits after 
Retirement: 

Retired Board members and their qualified dependents can elect to 
continue receiving these benefits through COBRA. 
 

  
Management Responsibility 
 
The General Manager’s office will be responsible for notifying outgoing Board members of their 
eligibility to continue receiving health and welfare benefits.  
 
Exceptions 
 
Two former Board members, Conrad Anderson and Darwin Buffington, separated from the Board 
of Directors under a previous agreement and are therefore exempt from this policy. 
 
Government Code Section 7507(b)(1) provides that, with certain exceptions local legislative 
bodies, including community college district governing boards, when considering changes in 
retirement benefits or other postemployment benefits, shall secure the services of an actuary to 
provide a statement of the actuarial impact upon future annual costs, including normal cost and 
any additional accrued liability, before authorizing changes in public retirement plan benefits or 
other postemployment benefits for Board Members. 
 
 
 
Author/Owner:  General Manager/HR Manager 
Reviewers:    Board of Directors 
Notify Person:  General Manager/HR Manager 
Revision Frequency: Every 3 years 
Next Review:   June 2022 
 

62 of 172



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

JUNE 3, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM # 14 

TITLE:  Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges 
on the Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2020 (This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 

Recommendation 

Set the time for holding the public hearing to consider collection of sewer service charges on 
the tax roll for fiscal year 2020, at 7p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, on 
June 24, 2019, in the Boardroom at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California. 

Previous Board Action 

This item is brought before the Board on an annual basis. 

Background 

On  January  25,  2016,  the  Board  approved  sewer  service  charge  rates  for  fiscal  years  2017 
through 2021. The collection of the sewer service charges on the tax rolls requires an annual 
hearing and consideration of the Board. The District may authorize the sewer service charges 
for  fiscal  year  2020  to  be  collected  on  the  tax  rolls,  consistent  with  past  practices,  by  1) 
creating a report setting forth the amount of the sewer service charges to be assessed on each 
parcel I the District; 2) filing the report with the Secretary of the Board; 3) scheduling a public 
hearing  for  the  Board  to  hear  all  objections  and  protests  (if  any);  and  4)  authorizing  the 
collection of the sewer service charges on the tax rolls, if there is no majority protest. 

63 of 172



If the Board would like to consider placing the sewer service charges for fiscal year 2020 on the 
tax rolls,  it should set the date for the public hearing to consider authorizing the collection. As 
the  hearing  is  set  by  the  Board,  staff  will  prepare  the  report  to  be  considered  at  the  public 
hearing and will publish the attached Notice of the time and place of the hearing in the Argus 
newspaper on May 24, 2019 and May 31, 2019, and in the Tri‐City Voice on May 21, 2019 and 
May 28, 2019. 

 
Attachment:  Notice  of  Filing  report  and  Public  Hearing  in  Connection With  the  Collection  of 
Fiscal Year 2020 Sewer Service Charges on the Property Tax Roll 

64 of 172



 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE OF FILING REPORT AND PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE COLLECTION OF 
FISCAL YEAR 2020 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Sections 5471 and 5473, et seq. of the Health and 
Safety Code of the State of California and Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 31, the Board 
of Directors of Union Sanitary District will  consider whether  to collect  its charges  for sewer 
services for fiscal year 2020 on the tax roll,  in the same manner as general taxes, consistent 
with past practices. 

 

The District has filed a written report with the Secretary of the Board of Directors describing 
each parcel of real property subject to the charges and the amount of the charges against that 
parcel for fiscal year 2020. The District’s report is on file and available for public inspection at 
the District Offices. 

 

For reference, the charges for a single family home owner (the majority of USD’s customers) 
are based on  the adopted  rate of $407.12  for Fiscal Year 2020. All  other  rates  for  individual 
customers can be found by contacting the District at (510) 477‐7500 or on the Districts website 
www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/sewerservice.htm 

 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday, the 24th day of June 2019, at the hour of 7:00 p.m. 

or  as  soon  thereafter  as  the  matter  may  be  heard,  at  the  Union  Sanitary  District  Boardroom,  5072 
Benson Road, Union City, California, in said District, the Board will hold a hearing to consider the report 
and whether  to  collect  the  sewer  service  charges  for  fiscal  year  2019 on  the property  tax  roll.  At  the 
hearing, the Board of Directors will hear and consider all objections or protests,  if any, to the District’s 
report. Any questions  regarding  the charges may be directed  to Finance & Acquisition Services Coach, 
Laurie Brenner. 

 

Publish dates:  May 24, 2019 – Argus 
May 31, 2019 – Argus 
May 21, 2019 – Tri‐City Voice 
May 28, 2019 – Tri‐City Voice 

 

By order of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District. 

65 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
TITLE: Schedule a Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 34.08, An Ordinance 

Providing for the General Regulation of Private and Public Sewers, Plan 
Review, Issuance of Construction Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, 
and the Collection of Fees for these Services, and to Repeal Ordinance No. 
34.07 (This is a Motion Item)  

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
 
Recommendation 
 
Schedule a public hearing to adopt Ordinance No. 34.08 on July 10, 2019 at 7:00pm, in the 
Boardroom at 5072 Benson Road, Union City. 
 
Publish the attached Notice that the time and place of the public hearing will be published in 
the Tri-City Voice on June 11, 2019 and June 25, 2019. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
06/22/2015 Board Meeting – Adopted Ordinance 34.07 (Resolution No. 2761). 
 
Background 
 
District Ordinance No. 34.07 provides for plan review, issuance of construction permits, 
inspection of sewer installation, and the collection of fees for these services.  It also governs 
the handling of deposits and includes the fees for Collection System services.  Whenever an  
 
 

66 of 172



Agenda Item No. 15 
Meeting of June 3, 2019 
Page 2 
 
Ordinance is revised, it is required to hold a public hearing to allow a forum for the public to 
comment on the proposed changes.   
 
The changes mainly consist of revisions to the schedule of construction costs that are used for 
calculating plan review and inspection fees, updates to the material and services fees used to 
calculate fees for work performed by the District, clarifications to District ownership of sewer 
lines, clarifications to the use of deposits, and an appeals provision.  The material and services 
fees have not been updated for over 3 years, since the adoption of Ordinance No. 34.07 on 
June 22, 2015.  Due to economic inflation, some of these fees no longer cover the minimum 
effort associated with performing these services.  Regarding the clarification of District 
ownership of sewer lines, provisions regarding private main sewers and their maintenance 
have been added, including a revised Access and Clearance Requirements Detail 31 that has 
been drafted to replace the current detail in the District’s 2017 Standard Specifications and 
Details.  A summary of the proposed revisions to Ordinance 34.07 is attached.   
 
The District is proposing to publish in the Tri-City Voice, two Notices of Public Hearing, on June 
11 and June 25, 2019, notifying the public that the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District 
will consider adoption of the above mentioned revisions to Ordinance No. 34.  A copy of 
Ordinance No. 34.08 with the proposed changes will be available for review at District offices. 
 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RA;dl 
 
 
Attachments:  Notice of Public Hearing  
  Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ordinance 34.07  
  Existing Street/Access Road Requirements Detail 31 

Proposed Access and Clearance Requirements Detail 31 
 

67 of 172



 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:  UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
     5072 BENSON ROAD 
     UNION CITY, CA  94587 
     CONTACT:  Regina McEvoy 
     (510) 477-7500 
 
     June 11 and June 25, 2019 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Section 5471 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California, the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District will consider adopting Ordinance No. 34.08, an 
Ordinance Providing for the General Regulation of Private and Public Sewers regarding Plan Review, 
Issuance of Construction Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, and the Collection of Fees for these 
Services, and to Repeal Ordinance No. 34.07.  The new ordinance includes revisions to the schedule of 
construction costs that are used for calculating plan review and inspection fees, updates to the material 
and services fees used to calculate fees for work performed by the District, clarifications to District 
ownership of sewer lines, and clarifications to the use of deposits. Copies of draft Ordinance 34.08 are 
available for review at the office of the Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California. 
 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday, the 8th day of July 2019, at the hour of 7:00 p.m., at the 
Union Sanitary District Boardroom, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California, in said District, said Board 
will hear and consider all protests and objections to said Ordinance 34.08. 
 
 
By order of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District. 
 
 
                         UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 
 

                      
  
___________________________ 

                                      Jennifer Toy 
                                Secretary 
 Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68 of 172



Page 1 of 14 
 

 
Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ordinance 34.07 

 

The proposed changes to Ordinance 34.07 are as follows. Additions are shown 
underlined and deletions are shown with strikethrough. 

 
1)   

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 34.078 

 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE GENERAL REGULATION OF PRIVATE AND 
PUBLIC SEWERS, PLAN REVIEW, ISSUANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PERMITS, 
INSPECTION OF SEWER INSTALLATION, AND THE COLLECTION OF FEES FOR 
THESE SERVICES  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District adopted Ordinance No. 
34.07 on June 22, 2015; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to adopt an amended version of Ordinance 
34.07, which, among other things:  (1) adds provisions regarding private main sewers and 
their maintenance; (2) updates fees; and (3) adds an appeals provision; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby finds that the fees set forth in Article IX, 
Schedule of Fees, of this Ordinance, do not exceed the reasonable cost of providing the 
service, product, benefit, privilege or activity for which the fee is charged. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, The Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District does hereby 
ordain as follows: 
 
2) ARTICLE I, SECTION 2 SPECIFIC DEFINITIONS 
 
 Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and terms shall have 
the meaning set forth in this article: 
 

a) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE 
 
A device installed in the building sewer for the purpose of preventing or 
minimizing the possibility of raw sewage backing up into the building. 

 

69 of 172



Page 2 of 14 
 

b) BUILDING DRAIN 
 

That part of the lowest piping of a drainage system which conveys 
wastewater from inside the walls of a building to a connection point with 
the building sewer. 

c) BUILDING SEWER 
 
  A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from the 

building or structure to a main sewer.  The building sewer includes that 
portion on the property and that portion from the property line or easement 
line to the sewer main (Lateral Sewer).  Building Sewers also include 
Private Sewers and House Sewers as defined. 

 
d) DEVELOPER 

 
A person or party submitting a request for connection to the District. 

 
e) DISTRICT 

 
Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California. 
 

f) DISTRICT ENGINEER or ENGINEER 
 
The General Manager of the District, or his designees, including, but not 
limited to, duly authorized personnel. 
 

 g) HOUSE SEWER 
 
  That part of a piping system which conveys wastewater from a point 30 

inches or less outside of a single family dwelling or residential unit to a 
main sewer.  The house sewer includes that portion on the property and 
that portion from the property line or easement line to the sewer main 
(Lateral Sewer). 
 

h) LATERAL SEWER 
 
 That portion of the building sewer from the sewer main to the property line 

of the parcel of which the sewer serves (sometimes referred to as the lower 
lateral).  
 

i) MAIN SEWER 
 
Any existing or proposed sewer dedicated to public use within the public 
right-of-way or sanitary sewer easement. 

 

70 of 172



Page 3 of 14 
 

j) PERMIT 
 
A document issued by the DISTRICT that allows the construction, 
replacement, modification, or repair of main, building, private, and house 
sewers. 

 
k) PERMIT HOLDER 

 
That person or company performing the sanitary sewer work to which a 
permit is issued. 

 
l) PRIVATE SEWER 

 
That part of a piping system serving a non-residential building which 
conveys wastewater from a point 30 inches or less outside of a building to 
a main sewer. Excluded from this definition is a house sewer as defined in 
“e)" above. 
 

m) PRIVATE MAIN SEWER 
 
  Any existing or proposed sewer within a private street and owned by 

maintained by a private party. 
 
m)n) PUBLIC NUISANCE 

 
Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of the regulations of 
the District’s latest Wastewater Discharge Ordinance (Series 36) or of any 
order issued by the District Engineer as authorized by those regulations, is 
considered a public nuisance. 
 

n)o) SEPTIC TANK 
 
A water-tight receptacle which receives the discharge of a sanitary 
drainage system, or part thereof, designed and constructed so as to retain 
solids, digest organic matter through a period of detention, and allow the 
liquids to discharge into the soil outside of the tank through an effluent 
disposal system, meeting the requirements of the local Health Department 
having jurisdiction over such installation. 

 
3) ARTICLE II, SECTION 1 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Main sewers, building sewers, and appurtenances shall be constructed, repaired, or 
altered in accordance with the latest revision of the District's Standard Specifications as 
adopted by the District's Board or the latest revision of the Uniform Plumbing Code.  In all 
cases the District's Standard Specifications shall take precedence. 

 
4) ARTICLE II, SECTION 4 OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE OF MAIN  

71 of 172



Page 4 of 14 
 

  SEWERS 
 
The District shall accept and maintain main sewers in the public right-of-way pursuant to 
this Section 4.  If a main sewer is constructed in a private street or driveway, depending 
on site conditions, overall relationship to the District’s system and conformance with 
District standards and specifications, the District may accept a sanitary sewer easement 
for the property in which the main sewer is constructed or may require the property owner 
or project developer or homeowner’s association to own and maintain the sewer as a 
private main sewer.  Whenever a main sewer in a public right-of-way or sanitary sewer 
easement has been constructed to the satisfaction of the District and accepted by the 
District, the District shall maintain the said main sewer.  Private main sewers not accepted 
by the District shall be maintained by the fee owner of the property in which the main 
sewer has been constructed or the project developer or homeowner’s association, as may 
be approved by the District, in accordance with the terms of a maintenance agreement in 
a form approved by the District. 
 
5) ARTICLE II, SECTION 7 CONNECTION OF BUILDING DRAINS 

 
Every building in which plumbing fixtures are installed shall be separately and 
independently connected to a main sewer, private main sewer, or septic tank. Where 
there is more than one building on a lot and where the lot cannot be subdivided under the 
provisions of any local regulations, a separate sewer will not be required.  Connection of 
each building on a lot to the separate sewer requires a District permit, inspection by USD 
the District and is subject to a separate capacity fee (Ordinance 35 Series) and separate 
sewer service charges (Ordinance 31 Series).  Any building sewers that have not been 
permitted, inspected; or where capacity and/or current sewer service charges have not 
been paid, will be subject to disconnection by USD the District forces under the authority 
of Health and Safety Code Sections 6520.1 and 6520.2.  Upon written notice from USD 
the District, the owner or occupant of any building having a building sewer that is not 
permitted in accordance with this ordinance shall terminate the connection of such 
building sewer to the main sewer within ten (10) days from the mailing of such notice.  
USD District forces are hereby authorized to enter any such property, cap or terminate 
any building sewer line and to charge the owner and/or occupant of all such buildings 
which are required to be disconnected from the sewer system, the reasonable cost of 
such effort.  Entry on private property and termination of service is authorized by Health 
& Safety Code Section 6523.2. 
 
6) ARTICLE III, SECTION 1 PROHIBITIVE DISCHARGES  
 
District Ordinance No. 36 Section 2.01 identifies those discharges to the sanitary sewer 
system that are prohibited.  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged, any of 
the following into a building sewer, private main sewer, or main sewer: 
 

• Any flammable or explosive substance, including gasoline, paint, oils or other 
flammable or explosive substance 

• Any toxic or hazardous substance that may cause a threat to the life or health of 

72 of 172



Page 5 of 14 
 

the public or sewer maintenance person, or to the environment. 

• Any substance that would cause an obstruction of flow in the sanitary sewer 

• Any radio-active substance 

• Any pesticide or herbicide 

• Any medical wastes, including prescription or non-prescription pharmaceuticals or 
medicines 

 
Any discharge or threat of a prohibitive discharge may be cause for the District to 
terminate service to prevent the harmful discharge to the District’s sewer system. 
 
In addition, storm water, groundwater, rain water (including from rain gutters), street 
drainage, subsurface drainage or yard drainage shall not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connections to the sewer unless a permit is issued for such connection by the 
District. 
 
See additional prohibitions under District Ordinance No. 36. 
 
7) ARTICLE IV, SECTION 1 PLAN SUBMITTALS 
 
All plans to be submitted for review must be prepared by a California Registered Civil 
Engineer and shall be of in such form as required by the District Engineer. 
 
8) ARTICLE IV, SECTION 2 PLAN REVIEW PERIOD 
 
If, during or after preliminary a plan review, no action has taken place within a period of 
six months, the review of the plans shall become void. If a plan is approved and a permit 
is not issued within one year of the plan approval date, the approval shall become void. 
Voided plans must be resubmitted along with a plan review fee based on fees in the 
amount in effect at the time of resubmittal before plans will be re-reviewed. Plans that are 
voided and resubmitted which are substantially the same as those originally approved 
shall be charged for one additional review or 30% of the total plan check fee. 
 
9) ARTICLE V, SECTION 1 PERMITS REQUIRED 
 
A person or company engaging in any of the following activities shall obtain a permit from 
the District for : 
 

a) Construction of a main sewer. 
b) Construction, replacement, alteration or repair of a building sewer. 
c) Connection of a building drain to a building sewer. 
d) Connection of a wash pad, RV dump station or other appurtenances to the 

building sewer. 
 

73 of 172



Page 6 of 14 
 

10) ARTICLE VI, SECTION 3 REQUEST FOR INSPECTIONS  
 
The permit holder shall advise the District that work is ready for request a District 
inspection by giving at least 24 48 hours’ notice during normal working hours in advance 
of the time inspection is requested. Inspections outside of normal working hours shall 
require that the permit holder file and obtain approval on applicable forms and pay for any 
inspections at the overtime rate. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, work will be done by a 
Contractor outside of normal working hours, the Engineer has the right to inspect the work 
and charge the permit holder at the overtime rate. Any permit holder requesting inspection 
on a normal day off shall be charged for a minimum inspection time of four hours.  
Whenever work under a permit has been accepted by the District, the permit holder will 
be notified within 15 days of the date of acceptance. 
 
 
12) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 1 INSURANCE REQUIRED 
A contractor who applies for a permit shall maintain, on file with USD, an insurance 
certificate evidencing the following insurances: 
 

a) Worker's Compensation 
b) Commercial General Liability ($1,000,000/incident minimum and 

$2,000,000 aggregate) 
 

USD shall be named as an Additional Insured for Public Liability under the required 
policies (Additional Endorsement needed). 

13) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 2 PURPOSE OF CASH DEPOSIT FOR SEWER   
  CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 
 
The District finds that the work of constructing, installing and repairing of sewers vitally 
affects the operation of the District's sewer system and has an adverse and deleterious 
effect upon it unless the work is inspected by the District and installed per District 
standards.  The reason for requiring a cash deposit from an applicant as provided in this 
section is to ensure that the District’s construction standards are met in case of poor or 
improper workmanship. D As provided in this Article, deposits may be used to complete 
unfinished work or, to pay for work that is performed by the District to ensure District’s 
standards are met., or be unused.   
 
14) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 3 DEPOSIT FOR MAIN SEWER CONSTRUCTION 
 
A cash deposit or surety bond in an amount established by Article IX Schedule of Fees, 
shall be submitted to the District for main sewers prior to the issuance of a permit for the 
construction, installation, or alteration of a main sewer. Any The remaining amount of any 
cash deposit will be refunded after one year from the date of acceptance. However, no 
additional cash deposit is required An exception to this requirement is where the 
municipality within which the work is to be performed requires the filing of a faithful 
performance bond guaranteeing correction of defects due to faulty, improper, or inferior 
workmanship or materials arising or discovered within one year after acceptance of the 

74 of 172



Page 7 of 14 
 

work. In this case, no additional cash deposit or surety bond is required. 
 
15) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 4 DEPOSIT FOR PRIVATE SEWER AND PRIVATE  
  MAIN SEWER CONSTRUCTION 
 
An applicant for a permit, and a developer for the construction, installation or alteration of 
a private sewer or private main sewer shall deposit with the District, the amount 
established in Article IX Schedule of Fees. This Any remaining amount of the deposit shall 
be refunded within 60 days after acceptance of the project by the District. 
 
16) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 5 DEPOSIT FOR BUILDING SEWER REPAIR,   
  ALTERATION, OR INSTALLATION 
 
An applicant for a permit to repair, alter, or install a building sewer(s) shall deposit with 
the District, the amount established in Article IX Schedule of Fees. This Any remaining 
amount of the deposit shall be refunded within 60 days after acceptance of the sewer by 
the District, or if the Deposit is for a tract of houses, within 60 days after the last house is 
accepted. 
 
17) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 6 FAILURE OF PERMIT HOLDER TO CORRECT  
  WORK 
 
A permit holder shall have ten days to correct any work, or respond in writing, after the 
District gives notice to correct deficient work. If the District Engineer, upon review of the 
written response, finds that there is insufficient reason for the permit holder not to correct 
the deficient work, the permit holder shall have five days to correct the said work. Failure 
to correct the deficient work in accordance with the schedule above will result in forfeiture 
of the deposit to the District.  The District may then take corrective action as it determines 
necessary to complete the work and deduct any amounts expended from the deposit. 
 
18) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 7 FAILURE TO CORRECT THE WORK AND THE  
  WORK CONSTITUTES A DANGER 
 
If a permit holder fails to correct any work within five days after notification in writing, and 
in the opinion of the District Engineer the work constitutes a danger to the public or District 
facilities, or that the District forces cannot correct the work, the work shall be disconnected 
by District forces.  The cost of this disconnection shall be deducted from the any deposits. 
 
19) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8 INCREASE IN DEPOSIT OR SUSPENSION FROM  
  WORK IN THE DISTRICT 
 
If a permit holder fails to correct the work on two permits within a one-year period, the 
required deposit for future permits may be doubled. Further failures to correct the work 
may result in additional increases or disallowance of the permit holder to obtain another 
permit within the District’s boundaries. 
 

75 of 172



Page 8 of 14 
 

20) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT REVIEW FEE 
 

a) Easements, Deeds and Quitclaims  $500.00 
b) Encroachment permits    $  50.00 
c) Special Agreements/Studies    Development/Review Cost (including 

 consulting and legal fees; $500 
 minimum) 

 
21) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 5 SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS (used for  
  calculating plan review and inspection fees, and,  
  permit holder and developer deposits). 

 
 
 
 

Item Unit Cost 

Manhole (Type II) Each $5,600.00 

Manhole (public or private) Each $3,500.00 

Drop Manhole (connection) Each $1,000.00 

Risers Each $800.00 

Nottingham Box Each $4,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 1500 Gallons Each $4,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 2000 Gallons Each $4,900.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 3000 Gallons Each $5,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 5000 Gallons Each $6,900.00 

Grease Sand Trap Sand-Oil Water Separator Each $2,150.00 

Trash Enclosure Interceptor Each $2,150.00 

Cleanout to Grade Each $375.00 

76 of 172



Page 9 of 14 
 

12 inch Sewer Linear Feet $120.00 

10 inch Sewer Linear Feet $100.00 

8 inch Sewer Linear Feet $80.00 

6 inch Sewer Linear Feet $60.00 

4 inch Sewer Linear Feet $40.00 

Sewer in Easement (additional charge) Linear Feet $10.00 

Sewer in Steel Casing Linear Feet $1,560.00 

30 inch Steel Casing Linear Feet $700.00 

Commercial/Multi-Family Pump Station Each $16,000.00 

Residential Pump Station Each $8,000.00 

Abandon Sewer Linear Feet $11.00 

Abandon Septic Tanks Each $1,300.00 

Abandon Manhole Each $900.00 

 
NOTE: The cost of items not listed will be estimated by the District Engineer. 

 
22) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 6 MATERIAL AND SERVICES FEES (used for   
  calculating fees associated with work performed by  
  District Forces.) 

 
 Description of Work Unit Fee Fee 

a) Install stub and channel manhole (Work 
inside manhole only) 

   

 1. 6”, 8”, 10” New pipe stub into an existing 
8” sewer or larger manhole base 

Each $2,300 $3,300 

77 of 172



Page 10 of 14 
 

 2. 12” or larger New pipe stub into an 
existing 12” sewer or larger manhole base 

Each $2,875 $4,235 

 3.    New pipe stub into an existing 18” sewer 
or larger manhole base 

Each  $14,500 

b) Channel new manhole    

 1. 6” to 10” main Each $1,820 $3,160 

 2. 12” to 18” main Each $2,625 $3,500 

 3. 21” or larger main Each $2,940 $7,225 

c) False Bottom    

 1. Install and remove Each $390 $495 

d) Adjust manhole to grade    

 1a. Structural adjustment with reference 
points, false bottoms, and asphalt 
concrete 

Each $840 $1,760 

 1b. In addition to 1a. above, for additional 
work including: excavation; removal; and 
replacement and/or installation of cone 
and/or barrel section 

Each $4,500 $7,600 

 2. Asphalt concrete overlay using riser rings 
up to 3” in height, including reference 
points 

Each  $575 

 3.    Asphalt concrete including adjustment of 
existing casting 

Each $785  

e) Pipe repairs less than 10 feet in length (cut & 
repair only) 

   

 1. 4” and 6” lateral Each $595 $625 

 2. 6” and 8” main Each $735 $730 

 3. 10” and 12” main Each  $975 

f) Wye or tee splices (cut and install only)    

78 of 172



Page 11 of 14 
 

 1. 6” to 12” Each $1,100 $1535 

g) *Television inspection    

 1. Laterals Each $315 $525 

 2. Mains, in excess of 1000 ft in length (if < 
1000 ft, then cost is on a time -and-
materials basis)  

   

 $0.80 $0.42 Cleaning +$1.24 $1.10 
TV 

Per Ft. $1.52 $2.04 

 • TV only Per Ft. $1.10 $1.24 

 *If laterals need additional work prior to TV, 
such as, snaking, repairs, or installing a 
cleanout, additional costs will be charged on 
a time-and-material basis 

   

h) Cleanouts    

 1. Install Each  $915 

 2. Raise cleanout to grade and install 
cleanout box 

Each  $395 

i) Miscellaneous    

 1. Install and remove temporary plug Each $495 $645 

 2. Catch debris Each $475 $630 

 3. Dye tracing Each  $265 

 4. Ferret tracing Each   $265 

j) Overtime inspection    

 1.   Hourly Rate (four hour minimum for 
weekends and holidays) 

Per 
Hour  

$210 $355 

k) Unforeseen conditions may increase the time and charges to complete 
work. 

 

l) Additional work will be charged based on a time–and-material basis.  

79 of 172



Page 12 of 14 
 

m) Contractors will be required to sign a work order agreeing to pay for 
work in advance of USD performing the work. 

 

n) USD work guaranteed for 12 months.  

 
23) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 7 PERMIT HOLDER DEPOSITS 
 
 

a) Main Sewers 

 

50% of Construction Costs 

 
b) Private Sewers  
 

 

1.  $2,500.00 per permit, or 
2.  $5,000.00 by cash, check or 

Credit Card payable to Union 
Sanitary District 

 
c) House Sewers (Repair, alteration, or 

installation) 
 

 

1. $500.00 per permit, or 
$2,500.00 per tract, or  

2. $5,000.00 cash, check or Credit 
Card payable to Union Sanitary 
District for multiple permits in 
lieu of the per permit 
permitholder deposit. 

 
24) ARTICLE X, SECTION 1 APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS   
 
Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination made by the District Engineer or another employee of the District in 
interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance or in any permit issued 
herein, may file with the District Engineer a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or 
determination, setting forth in detail the facts supporting the user's appeal or request for 
reconsideration. 

If the ruling made by the District Engineer is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or 
requesting reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the District's 
governing body within ten days after notification of District action.  The written appeal 
shall be heard by the governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon 
thereafter as reasonably possible.  The District’s governing body shall make a final 
ruling on the appeal within 30 days of the meeting. The District Engineer's decision, 
action, or determination shall remain in effect during such period of appeal.  The 
determination of an appeal by the governing body of the District shall constitute a final 
determination of the District and may be subject to judicial review. 

80 of 172



Page 13 of 14 
 

25) ARTICLE XI REPEAL   
 
Ordinance 34.07 6 is hereby repealed. 
 
26) ARTICLE XII EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force August 3, 2015 July 29, 2019 and at least 
one week prior to said date it shall be published once in THE ARGUS TRI-CITY VOICE, 
a newspaper of general circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT.  This 
ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 
 
27) ARTICLE XIII SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Ordinance or any subdivision thereof, or any application thereof, 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance or the 
subdivision, or the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall 
not be affected thereby. 
 
On motion duly made and seconded, this Ordinance was adopted after public hearing 
by the following vote on June 22, 2015 July 8, 2019: 
 

 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 ABSENT: 
 

       

Manny Fernandez Anjali Lathi 
President, Board of Directors 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
ATTEST 
 

 

        

Tom Handley Jennifer Toy 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

81 of 172



Page 14 of 14 
 

 

82 of 172



83 of 172



ACCESS AND CLEARANCE 
REQUIREMENTS

GROUND
SURFACE

SEWER

TRENCH

ZONE OF
INFLUENCE

1H
1V

BUILDING
FOUNDATION

R1 ≥ 25'

R2

12'
MIN.

FIGURE 1 - BULB TURNAROUND
NOT TO SCALE

FIGURE 2 - "T" TURNAROUND
NOT TO SCALE

FIGURE 6 - ZONE OF INFLUENCE 
NOT TO SCALE

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

12' MIN12' MIN

T

T

18'
MIN

12'
MIN.

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

T T

FIGURE 3 - HAMMERHEAD TURNAROUND 
NOT TO SCALE

18'
MIN

18'
MIN

5'
MIN.

5'
MIN.

≤11'

FIGURE 5 - HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE 
NOT TO SCALE

SEWER

PROPOSED
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

WITH
OVERHANG

ROAD
WITH CURB

DRIVE AISLE
WITHOUT

CURB

R1 ≥ 25'R1 ≥ 25'
R1 ≥ 25' R1 ≥ 25'

FIGURE 4 - DEAD-END ROADWAY/DRIVE AISLE 
NOT TO SCALE

18'
MIN

84 of 172

rods
Rectangle

rods
Oval

rods
Polygon

rods
Line

rods
Rectangle

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
NOTES:1.  SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS     PUBLIC SEWERS NOT LOCATED IN PUBLIC STREETS MUST BE SITUATED WITHIN A SANITARY SEWER     EASEMENT (SSE) GRANTED TO AND ACCEPTED BY THE DISTRICT. SSE SHALL HAVE A CONTINUOUS     MINIMUM WIDTH OF 15 FEET WITH MANHOLE CENTERED IN SSE. IF THERE IS NO MANHOLE WITHIN THE     SSE, THE MINIMUM WIDTH IS 10 FEET WITH THE MAIN CENTERED IN THE SSE.2.  ACCESS REQUIREMENTS     AT A MINIMUM, PRIVATE ROADWAYS ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE SUFFICIENT ACCESS AND TURNAROUND     AREAS, PER THIS DETAIL SHEET.       TURNAROUND GEOMETRY:           A.  RETURN RADII, R2:                a.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 12 FEET AND < 18 FEET, R2 ≥ 25 FEET                b.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 18 FEET, R2 ≥ 15 FEET          B.  TURNOUT TANGENT, T:                a.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 12 FEET AND < 18 FEET, T ≥ 7 FEET                b.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 18 FEET, T ≥ 2 FEET   HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CLEARANCES3.  HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE FROM BUILDING OVERHANG LESS THAN 11 FEET HIGH, CURB, EDGE OF     PAVEMENT, TREES OR OTHER OBSTRUCTION, WHICHEVER IS CLOSEST TO THE SEWER (SEE FIGURE 5):          A.  TO CENTER LINE OF SEWER MAIN = 5 FEET MINIMUM          B.  TO CENTER OF MANHOLE = 7.5 FEET MINIMUM   4.  OTHER UTILITIES: SEE DISTRICT'S DETAILS 16 AND 17 FOR REQUIREMENTS.   5.  SEWER CLEARANCE FROM BUILDINGS: SEWER MAINS SHALL BE LOCATED SUCH THAT EXCAVATION FOR     SEWER CONSTRUCTION MUST BE OUTSIDE OF THE "ZONE OF INFLUENCE" FROM BUILDING LOADS     (DEFINED BY A LINE OF REPOSE THAT EXTENDS DOWNWARD FROM THE EDGE OF A BUILDING'S     FOUNDATION AT A MAXIMUM ANGLE OF 1V:1H. SEE FIGURE 6).   6.  SSE MAINTENANCE ACCESS: ACCESS TO AND ALONG THE SSE, INCLUDING ALL MANHOLES, SHALL BE     FEASIBLE AND SAFELY ACHIEVABLE BY DISTRICT MAINTENANCE VEHICLES. PROPERTY OWNER     MAINTAINED ALL-WEATHER ACCESS ROADS TO MANHOLES ARE REQUIRED IN NON-PAVED AREAS.     ACCESS ROADS SHALL BE A MIN. 12 FEET WIDE, MAX. CROSS SLOPE OF 2%, AND CONSIST OF:          A.  ROAD SLOPE < 10% = MINIMUM 11 INCHES AGGREGATE BASE (AB)          B.  ROAD SLOPE 10% TO < 15% = MINIMUM 2.5 INCHES AC OVER MINIMUM 9 INCHES AB           C.  ROAD SLOPE 15% TO < 20% = MIN. 6 INCHES REINFORCE CONCRETE (#4 @16 INCHES OC EACH                WAY, OR EQUIVALENT WELDED-WIRE-FABRIC), WITH A GOOVED SURFACE OVER MIN. 3 INCHES AB          SUB-BASE AND AB SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MIN. 95% RELATIVE COMPACTION. AB SHALL COMPLY     WITH CALTRANS SPECIFICATIONS SECTION 26 (CLASS 2 AB) FOR 3/4" MAX. GRADING, AND SHALL BE     NEWLY QUARRIED MATERIAL (NO RECYCLED MATERIAL OR MINED ALLUVIUM). PAVED ROAD SURFACE     SHALL DRAIN AWAY FROM MANHOLE. MANHOLES IN NON-PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE MIN. 6-FOOT     DIAMETER REINFORCED CONCRETE COLLAR SURROUNDED BY A MIN. 12" WIDE BAND OF GRAVEL.   7.  OWNER'S USE OF SSE: NO TREES OR PERMANENT STRUCTURES SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN A SSE.     LANDSCAPING (SHRUBS, BUSHES, PLANTS, GROUNDCOVER, ETC.) AND SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS     (BRICK, CONCRETE, STONE, ETC.) ARE ALLOWED BUT DISTRICT HAS THE RIGHTS TO REMOVE, WITHOUT     REPLACEMENT, ANY IMPROVEMENTS, VEGETATION AND OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN A SSE AS NECESSARY     TO MAINTAIN OR REPAIR THE SEWER.

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
 d

rods
Text Box
 d

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Pencil

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
450' MAX

rods
Text Box
SSMH

rods
Typewritten Text
04-25-2019

rods
Line



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

JUNE 3, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 16 

TITLE: Consider a Resolution to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8208 – 
Prima Newark, Located at Cedar Boulevard and Cedar Court, in the City of 
Newark (This is a Motion Item)  

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
Rod Schurman, Associate Engineer 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Board consider a resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement for Tract 
8208 – Prima Newark, located at Cedar Boulevard and Cedar Court, in the City of Newark. 

Previous Board Action 

None. 

Background 

The developer, DR Horton, Inc., has constructed 42 single-family residences, 147 townhomes and 
92 condominiums for Tract 8208, located at Cedar Boulevard and Cedar Court, in the City of 
Newark.  A vicinity map is attached. 

Sanitary sewer service to the residential development has been provided by new 8-inch mains in 
the development’s private roadways and drive aisles, and discharge to an existing 8-inch sewer 
main along the south side of the development that discharges to Cedar Boulevard. The roadways 
of the development do not meet the City of Newark’s street dimensions and structure setback 

85 of 172



Agenda Item No. 16 
Meeting of June 3, 2019 
Page 2 

requirements for public streets and were, therefore, designated as private streets. DR Horton, 
Inc., has constructed the new 8-inch sewer mains and Prima Homeowners Association, Inc., 
(Prima HOA) has granted the District sanitary sewer easements that provide for access, 
maintenance, and service of the new sewer mains in the private roadways of the development. 

District staff has reviewed the legal description and plat map of the easement, as well as the 
Grant of Easement, and recommends approval. 

PRE/SEG/RA/RS;dl 

Attachments: Vicinity Map 
Resolution 
Recording Request with Certificate of Acceptance 
Grant of Easement with Exhibits A and B 

86 of 172



125.00 250.0

1: 3,000

For USD use only
The information on this map is provided by Union Sanitary District (USD) for internal use only. Such information 

is derived from multiple sources which may not be current, be outside the control of USD, and may be of 

indeterminate accuracy. The information provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date and any person or 

entity who relies on said information for any purpose whatsoever does so solely at their own risk.

Feet Notes

Printed:

250.0 0

Vicinity Map: Grant of SSE, TR 8208 - Prima Newark

5/16/2019 1:01 PM

Legend

Railroad / BART
<all other values>

BART

Public Right of Way
Private Right of Way
Sewer Easements
Parcels

<all other values>

Alameda Cnty Flood Cntrl

Sewer Manholes
Drop manhole

End Cap 

Junction structure 

Lamphole

Lift station

Manhole

New Manhole

Riser

Sewer Mains
New Gravity Main 

EBDA outfall 

Forcemain 

Gravity main 

Overflow main 

Siphons

Trunk Main

Tract 8208 
Prima Newark

87 of 172

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygon

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Rectangle

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Rectangle

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Rectangle

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Rectangle

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Callout
Existing 8-Inch Sanitary Sewer Mains

rods
Callout
Limits of Tract 8208,Prima Newark

rods
Callout
New Sanitary Sewer Easement

rods
Callout
New 8-Inch Sanitary Sewer Main

rods
Callout
Existing 15-Foot Wide Sanitary Sewer Easement

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Rectangle

rods
Rectangle



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 8208 – PRIMA NEWARK, LOCATED AT CEDAR BOULEVARD AND 

CEDAR COURT IN THE CITY OF NEWARK, CALIFORNIA 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, that it 
hereby accepts the Grant of Easement from Prima Homowners Association, Inc., 
executed on May 13, 2019, as described in the Grant of Easement for Sanitary 
Sewer Purposes and by the legal description and plat map, attached Exhibit A and 
Exhibit B, respectively. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
that it hereby authorizes the General Manager/District Engineer, or his designee, 
to attend to the recordation thereof. 
 
On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on June 3, 2019: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
   
 ANJALI LATHI 
 President, Board of Directors 
 Union Sanitary District  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

88 of 172



 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

Union Sanitary District 
Attn:  Regina McEvoy 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 
 

Record Without Fee 
Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 27383 

 

Space Above Reserved for Recorder’s Use Only 
 

Documentary Transfer Tax $0.00, consideration less than $100 (R&T Code 11911) 
This instrument is exempt from recording fees (Govt. Code 27383) 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

PRIMA HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

AND 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Effective Date:  June 3, 2019 
 
 

89 of 172



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Grant of Easement) 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Grant of Easement for 
Sanitary Sewer Purposes, dated May 13th, 2019, from Prima Homeowners Association, Inc., to 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, an independent special district (“District”), is hereby accepted by 
the undersigned officer or agent on behalf of the District pursuant to authority conferred by 
Resolution No. _____, dated June 3, 2019, and the District consents to recordation thereof by its 
duly authorized officer. 

Date: June __, 2019 District 
 
 UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 _  
 Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
 

State of California  ) 
    ) ss 
County of Alameda ) 

On    , 2019, before me,   Regina Dyan McEvoy             , 
       (Name of Notary) 

notary public, personally appeared ______________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

      
 (Notary Signature) 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, 
or validity of that document. 

90 of 172



91 of 172



92 of 172



93 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

94 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

95 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

96 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

97 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

98 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

99 of 172



Original map may be found at USD, 5072 Benson Rd., Union City, CA 94587

100 of 172



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
JUNE 3, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
TITLE:  Review and Consider Approval of Policy No. 2090 ‐ Reserves, Allocations and 

Fund Balance (This is a Motion Item)   
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 
   
Recommendation 
 
Review and consider approval of the District’s updated Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance 
Policy (No. 2090). This policy was previously titled Reserve Funds Policy. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
On April 9, 2018, the Board directed staff  to explore options to  increase the funding  level  for 
the Emergency Reserve. 
 
This proposed policy update was reviewed by the Board during the Budget Workshop on May 
20, 2019. 
 
Background 
 
 
On October 14, 2015, the District experienced a sinkhole on Alvarado Boulevard in Union City, 
which required the use of Emergency Reserve funds to cover necessary repairs to the damaged 
sewer pipe and nearby manhole.  The overall cost of the sinkhole repairs prompted the 
District’s Board to inquire about the sufficiency of the emergency reserve target. 
 
On April 9, 2018, the Board directed staff to explore options to include an inflationary factor 
and evaluate the funding level for the Emergency Reserve.,. As staff analyzed the target level of 
the Emergency Reserve fund, a comprehensive review of the entire Reserves Policy was 

101 of 172



conducted.  Staff determined that the old policy was unclear and incorrectly used key financial 
terms interchangeably. These issues have been resolved in the updated version. 
 
Suggested changes to the policy include the following: 
 

 Title change  

 Accurately calling out allocations separately from reserves and fund balances 

 Clarifying that the District may elect to access Emergency or other funds outside the 
general guideline for access/use 

 Inclusion of brief definitions of reserves, allocations and fund balance for clarity 

 An increase in the target level for the Emergency Reserve Fund 

 The creation of a new Industrial Customer Stabilization Reserve 
 
Attachments:  
Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance Policy No. 2090‐ redline version 
Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance Policy No. 2090‐ changes incorporated 
 
 
 

102 of 172



Union Sanitary District Policy 

   
Effective:   
9/22/14 

6/3/19 (tentative) 
 

Reserve Funds  

 
Reserves, Allocations, and Fund Balance  

 
 

Policy Number 
2090 

  Page 1 of 75 

 
 
Policy 
 

To responsibly plan This policy establishes reserves, reviews allocations, and discusses fund 
balances.  The policy is intended to guide responsible planning for funding of the long-term 
capital improvement program and ongoing operating budgets, and to meet while meeting legal 
and contractual obligations .  Prudent financial management of the District requires the 
development and maintenance of various reserve funds. This policy establishes fund reserve 

targets for each of the District’s reserve funds. These targets provide guidance for long-term 

financial planning reserves and for maintaining the District’s long-term financial 

health.allocations. Maintaining a prudentan appropriate level of fund reserves is an important 
component of financial management. Adequate fund reserves a) provideand allocations: 
 

• Provides a financial cushion for dealing with unanticipated financial needs and 
emergencies, b) enable.  

• Enables the District to accrue adequate funds to meet future financing needs, c) 

provide.  

• Provides working capital to help stabilize rates, and d) are.  

• Are a component of achieving favorable credit ratings which can help to minimize the 

costs of issuing debt.  
 

 
Purpose 
 

Reserve fundsFunds, reserves, and allocations are needed at the District to fund planned and 
unplanned events. Planned events include, but are not limited to, accumulating balances to 
fund the expected ten twenty-year capital improvement program, setting aside funds to 
account for cash flow variances throughout the fiscal year, segregating funds for State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan reserves, and other covenants required as a result of debt 
issuesobligations. Unplanned events include accounting for revenue short falls, (e.g. significant 
industrial users closing or scaling back operations), unanticipated expenses, and paying for 

unforeseen emergency events.  
 
 

Reserve Fund TargetsLevels 
 

103 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 2 of 13   

 

TheAll District maintains a number of reserve funds.  All fundsreserves are designated or 
restricted for specific purposes. The matrix attached matrix to the end of this policy summarizes 
minimum restricted and designated reserves, allocations, and fund reserve targets. Each year 

the balances. District shouldstaff will review its actual and recommended reserve targets and 
replenish eachallocations levels annually to ensure appropriate financial positioning. 
 
Definitions of common terms referred to in this policy and attached matrix are as follows: 
 
Restricted Reserves 

• Fund amounts that are restricted to specific purposes with constraints placed on the use 

of resources are either:  

o Externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 

contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments. 

o Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

o Fund amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 

constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Directors level of decision-

making authority. 

 

Designated Reserves 

• Amounts that are constrained by the Board of Directors intent to be used for specific 

purposes, should be reported as designated reserve fund as needed. Remaining reserves, 

ifbalances. Those designated amounts cannot be used for any, can be retained in the 

Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund.  other purpose unless the Board of Directors 

removes or changes the specified use by taking the appropriate type of action (e.g., 

legislation, resolution, ordinance) it employed to previously commit those amounts. 

 

Allocations 

• Amounts that are constrained by the Board of Directors intent to be used for specific 

purposes but are neither restricted nor designated. Allocations amounts are generally 

established during the budgeting process and approved by the Board of Directors.  

 
 
Achieving Fund Reserve Targets 
 

The District will update its 10-year rate model each year in order to determine an appropriate 

level of rate and fee adjustments. Rate and fee adjustments should be adopted to achieve and 

maintain the District’s minimum fund reserve targets over the ten year planning period. This can 

include phasing in a series of rate increases to gradually restore reserves to target levels over a 

number of years. For financial planning purposes, it is acceptable for reserves to drop below 
their target level on a temporary basis, as long as provided(EBDA JPA, Plant Master Plan and 

Budget) takes actionacts to achieve the target over the planning period.  
 

104 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 3 of 13   

 

Order of Use for Reserve Funds 
 

The California Special Districts Association (CSDA) recommendsFinancial best practices 
recommend that “Districts’District policies should specify the order in which fund 

balancesfunds are spent when more than one amount is available for a specific purpose.”  The . 
In general, the order of use of fund reserves willfunds, upon consumption of other available 
fund balances and allocations, should be such that designated:  
 

1. Designated funds are used first, the 
2. Operating Cashflow Reserve, next, the Future  
3. Special Projects  
4. Vehicle and Equipment Renewal & Replacement 
5. Information Systems Renewal & Replacement 
6. Industrial Customer Stabilization 
7. EmergencyReserve, and finally 

 
Under certain circumstances, the District may elect to access the Emergency Fundor other 
funds outside this general guideline for access/use. 
 
 
 
 
Investing Reserve Funds 
 

Reserve FundsReserves and fund balances will generally be fully invested according to the 
District’s Investment Policy.  
 
Policy Updates 
 

This policy and the District’s reserves, allocations, and fund reserve targetsbalances will be 
periodically reviewed and amended as needed to ensure they remain up-to-date and support 
the District’s future financial objectives.  
 
 

Types of  
 

• Planned Reserves 

 are cash, 
✓ Capacity Fund (Restricted) – The 10 year Financial Plan includes 

projections of capacity revenues derived from new connections or 
increased discharges, capital project expenditures related to expanded  

capacityassets readily convertible into cash, held aside, as by a 
corporation, bank, state or maintenance of capacity in the 

collectionnational government or treatment systems, as well as any debt 

105 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 4 of 13   

 

issues and payments. The Capacity Fund balance is comprised of the 

amount of funds (cash and investments) the enterprise, etc., to meet 
expected or unexpected demands. Reserves currently utilized at the 
District is projecting at the end of each fiscal year to be available to fund 

the capacity   portion of the CIP and Special Projects, if applicable, for the 

following year.  

  

❖ Target Criteria - The Capacity Fund balance should at a 

minimum remain positive throughout the ten year planning 

horizon. In addition, at the ten year mark the fund balance 

should be greater than $3M or the average annual capacity-

related capital costs based on the ten year CIP, whichever is 

greater.  This minimum amount should account for 

uncertainties in the next five year planning horizon. The 

maximum fund balance at the tenth year should not exceed the 

targeted amount plus 50%, unless a specific project(s) is 

identified for the next five year planning horizon.  

  

❖ Fund Maintenance – Revenues and expenditures shall be 

reviewed each year in the budget planning cycle and 

adjustments recommended to remain within the Capacity Fund 

target criteria. Excesses shall be adjusted by reducing future 

rate increases until the target criteria is within range. 

  

✓ Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund (Designated) – The 10 year Financial Plan 

includes projections of sewer service charge revenues, other revenues, operating expenditures, 

and planned capital projects for asset renewal and replacement expenditures as well as debt 

issues and payments. The Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund balance is comprised of the 

amount of funds (cash and investments) the District is projecting are required to fund approved 

renewal and replacement capital projects, including debt. In addition, this fund will include 

reserve amounts above maximums identified for other funds identified in this policy. At the 

beginning of the fiscal year, any funds not allocated to designated reserves will be allocated to 

the Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund and accounted for in a sub-fund entitled Future 

Projects Reserve.  At the end of the fiscal year, the balance in the Future Projects reserve will be 

transferred to the Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund to mitigate any negative fund 

balance, and to ensure adequate funding of CIP and debt for the upcoming fiscal year.  This fund 

will receive its full budgeted allocation in conjunction with the first sewer service charge 

payment each December.: 
  

❖ Target Criteria – The Structural Renewal and Replacement 

Fund balance should at a minimum remain positive throughout 

the ten year planning horizon. In addition, at the ten year mark 

the fund balance should be greater than $5M or the average 

annual renewal/replacement capital costs based on the ten year 

CIP, whichever is greater.  This minimum amount should 

account for uncertainties in the next five year planning horizon. 

106 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 5 of 13   

 

The maximum fund balance at the tenth year should not exceed 

three times the annual average CIP expenditure.  

  

❖ Fund Maintenance – Revenues and expenditures shall be 

reviewed each year in the budget planning cycle and 

adjustments recommended to remain within the Renewal and 

Replacement Fund target criteria. Excesses shall be adjusted by 

reducing future rate increases until the target criteria is within 

range. 

 

✓ Information Systems Renewal and Replacement Fund (Designated) – 

The District maintains a five year schedule that tracks the replacement of 

hardware and software assets. This reserve also funds the Information 

Technology Master Plan projects. The ending year fund balance should be 

positive in each year. In addition the fund balance should be $250k or the 

average annual information systems renewal/replacement costs projected 

over the next five years, whichever is greater. The maximum fund balance 

should not exceed the targeted amount plus 50%, unless a specific 

expenditure(s) is identified for the next five year planning horizon. 

 

✓ Vehicle and Equipment Renewal and Replacement Fund (Designated) 

- The District maintains a five year schedule that tracks the replacement of 

fleet and major equipment assets. The ending year fund balance should be 

positive in each year. In addition the fund balance should be $500k or the 

average annual equipment renewal/replacement costs projected over the 

next five years, whichever is greater.  The maximum fund balance should 

not exceed the targeted amount plus 50%, unless a specific expenditure(s) 

is identified for the next five year planning horizon. 

 
✓ Plant and Pump Station Renewal and Replacement Fund (Designated)   

– This fund was established to fund high cost plant and pump station equipment 

purchases, and to protect the Operating budget from spikes.  There is an annual 

provision of $250k, with the fund balance set at zero for each year. 
 

✓ Retiree Medical Benefit Plan Fund (Designated) – The District has 

negotiated a retiree medical benefit for employees that meet certain 

criteria. Periodically the District updates funding requirements needed to 

provide these benefits by conducting an actuarial study.  This fund is a 

clearing account for the District’s California Employers’ Retiree Medical 

Trust (CERBT) activity.  Its target balance is zero at the end of the fiscal 

year. While the CERBT is not a District Reserve, the District’s funding 

intent is to perform biennial actuarial studies and deposit into the trust the 

recommended Annual Required Contribution (ARC).  The maximum fund 

balance is the ARC. 

 

107 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 6 of 13   

 

✓ SRF Loan Contingency Reserve (Restricted) – The District is ableeligible to 
utilize low interest rate loans through the State of California to finance capital 
projects. A requirement of the loan is the establishment and maintenance of a 
contingency reserve that is defined in the loan documents. The fund balance will be 
set at the amount required in the loan documents, typically one annual payment per 
loan.  

 
✓ Risk Management (Liability Insurance) Reserve (Designated) – The 
District is a member of and purchases liability insurance from the California 

Sanitation Risk Management Association (CSRMA).a pooled insurance provider. 
The selected deductible of $500k reduces the amount of premiums incurred by the 
District, thereby keeping the insurance rates low. In order to account for an event 
that is either not covered by insurance or under the deductible amount, the District 
reserves two times the annual deductible, which is based on claim history. 

  
✓ Operating Cashflow Reserve (Designated) – Sewer Service Charge (SSC) 
revenues are collected by the Alameda County Tax Assessor’s Office and remitted to 
the District in two major installments in April and December of each year. In 

orderThis designated reserve is to ensure adequate funds are available for the 
District to pay its on-going expenses throughout the year it reserves six months 

(50%) of gross operating expenditures at the start of each fiscal year. . 
 
It is the goal of the District to have six months (50%) of gross operating expenditures 
in reserve at the beginning of each fiscal year.   However, the range of this reserve 
can fluctuate between a minimum of three months (25%) and a maximum reserve 
level of six months (50%) of the annual operating expense.  If the reserve is drawn 
down to the minimum level, funds will be added to ensure the maximum level is 
achieved within four fiscal years, but will be evaluated on an annual basis during the 
budgeting process.  

 
Industrial Customer Stabilization Reserve (Designated) – The District has several 
Significant Industrial Users (SIU). If one or more of these SIU’s significantly scaled 
back operations, or went out of business, the District could experience a significant 
loss of revenue quickly. This reserve would allow the District to implement 
appropriate responses and actions over a reasonable time frame. The reserve level 
represents two years of averages for the top three SIU’s and is recalculated annually. 

 
✓ Emergency FundReserve (Designated) – In order to help mitigate the 
financial impacts of an emergency or catastrophic event, the District has initiated an 
Emergency Reserve. The target for this reserve in the year 20182019 is $5M. The 

target amount5,000,000 and will be reachedincrease by depositing $750,000 
yearlyannually until reaching 25% of the balance reaches $5M. operating budget or 
approximately $9,500,000 in 2025. This target will be re-evaluated annually. 

 

108 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 7 of 13   

 

Allocations 
Allocated funds are those budgeted and directed for specific purposes. These funds may be re-
allocated or shifted based on demonstrated need and appropriate District approvals. 
 
The following allocations are made through the annual budget process and are reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors: 
 

Information Systems Renewal and Replacement Fund – The District maintains a 
five-year schedule for replacement of hardware and software assets.  The allocation 
is the actual amount projected for replacement, renewal, or acquisition of hardware 
and software assets plus any approved carryover items from the previous year.  

 
Vehicle and Equipment Renewal and Replacement Fund – The District maintains a 
five-year schedule for the replacement of fleet and major equipment assets. The 
allocation is the actual amount projected for replacement, repair, or acquisition of 
vehicles and equipment based upon conditional assessments that include, but are 
not limited to age, mileage, repair history, and any additional influencing factors plus 
approved carryover items from the previous year.   
 
 Plant and Pump Station Renewal and Replacement Fund – This fund was 
established to fund high cost plant and pump station equipment purchases, and to 
minimize large annual fluctuations in the Operating budget. Historically, there has 
been an annual allocation of $250,000.  Requested items are approved by the Board 
of Directors as part of the District’s Operating Budget. Board approval for additional 
funds may be obtained during the budgeting process. 
 
Retiree Medical Benefit Plan Fund – The District has a retiree medical benefit for 
employees. The District updates funding requirements needed to provide these 
benefits by conducting an actuarial study every two years and adjusting funding as 
evidenced and recommended per the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) 
from that study and additional scenarios.  The District may allocate additional funds 
to reduce current and future liability associated with this benefit.  The Trust is 
reviewed and funded each fiscal year.   
 
✓ Special Projects/Programs Fund (Designated) – This fundallocation is 
divided into three major parts: Administrative/Regulatory, Studies, and Hayward 

MarshPilot Projects. It includes non-routine expenses such as one-time studies and 

new programs where long-term financial impact is not known. and might include 
land acquisitions for future infrastructure expansion. The projects and related 
funding are approved on an annual basis by the Board of Directors. The intent is to 
reduce volatility in operating budgets from one-time expenditures. The target for the 

fundallocation is the approved budget for the following year’s projects plus the 
unspent budget carry-over from the previous year’s uncompleted projects. The 

109 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 8 of 13   

 

maximum fund balance should not exceed the targeted amount plus 50%.ongoing, 
multi-year projects.  
  

• Other Funds 

 

✓ Cash in Bank Short Term Liquidity –(Designated) - The District 
maintains a minimum amount in immediately available funds, 125% of bi-weekly to 
cover the rolling 6-month average monthly payroll, plus a rolling 6-month average 
monthly accounts payable, held in a local bank account, in cash deposits.  

 
Pretreatment Fund (Designated) – This fund Balance 
Fund balance is the special account referenceddifference between assets and liabilities in a 
given fund at the close of a specific financial reporting period (e.g. monthly, quarterly, 
annually).   These funds are generally reported in the Administrative Procedures and Penalties 

section of Ordinance No. 36.  Only expenses authorized under Ordinance No. 36 

mayclassifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District 
is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be 
spent. 
 

Capacity Fund charged to this fund.– The maximum fund balance should not exceed 

$200,000. ExcessDistrict projects capacity revenues derived from new connections 
or increased discharges in permitted, commercial, and industrial users. Eligible 
capital project expenditures must be related to expanded capacity or maintenance 
of capacity in the collection or treatment systems, which includes capacity related 
debt. The capacity fund balance amounts will be transferred into the Vehicle and 

Equipmentis comprised of the amount of funds (cash and investments) the District is 
projecting at the end of each fiscal year to be available to fund the capacity portion 
of the CIP and Special Projects, including related debt, for the following year.  
Connection fees cannot be used for any operational expenses. 
 
✓ Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund to purchase Environmental 

Compliance related equipment and vehicles– The District projects revenues derived 
from sewer service charges and other revenues. The Structural Renewal and 
Replacement Fund balance is comprised of the amount of funds (cash and 
investments) the District is projecting are required to fund approved capital projects, 
including debt.  

 
 
Management Responsibility 
 

Management will ensure that these funds and the reserves, allocations and fund balances are 
reviewed during the annual budget cycle and are adjusted as necessary to remain within the 
guidelines outlined in this document and per Board direction.  
 

110 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
 Page 9 of 13   

 

 
 
 
Approved by:   Board of Directors 
Author/owner:   General Manager/District Engineer and Business Services Manager/CFO 
Reviewers:   Executive Team and Board of Directors 
Notify Person:  Business Services Manager/CFO 
RevisionReview frequency:  Every 3 years 
Next Review:   9/22/20176/3/2022 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

111 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                                                                                  

Policy Number 2090 

 Page 10 of 13 

                                                                                                Minimum ReserveReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance Targets 

 

Reserve, Allocation, 
Fund Balance 

Purpose Reserve Fund Target/ Allocation Level  Reserves 
06/30/1318 

DESIGNATED & 
RESTRICTEDRESERVES 

      

SRF Loan Contingency 
(Restricted)Special 
Projects 
 

Required by SRF Equivalent to one year’s principal and interest 
payment for each outstanding SRF loan.  Requirement 
may vary based on each loan agreementNon-routine 
expenses, studies, and programs 
 

$3,902,080 
 
 

Approved 
budget plus 
unspent 
budget 
carry-over 
from prior 
year. 

 

Risk Management 
(Liability Insurance) 
(Designated) Capacity         

(Restricted) 

For CSRMA liability insurance 
deductible and for non-covered 
events 
Activities related to collection and 
treatment system capacity 
increases 

2 X annual deductible Average annual capacity-related capital 
costs based on 10-year CIP, with minimum 10-year target of $3 million (no 
maximum recommended for capital reserves) 
 

 
$1,249,000,0

00 
 

Structural Renewal & 
ReplacementOperating 
Cashflow 
(Designated)  

For operating & maintenance 
expenses, particularly between 
semi-annual receipt of service 
charges on property tax 
rollsRenewal and replacement of 
infrastructure 

Average annual renewal/replacement capital costs based on 10-year CIP, 
with minimum 10-year target of $5 million (no maximum recommended for 
capital reserves) 
Minimum of 3 months (25%) and a maximum of 6 
months (50%) of budgeted operating expenditures 
should be in this reserve fund on July 1 of each fiscal 
year 

 
($3,792,647)$1

8,762944 

Industrial Customer 
Stabilization 

To minimize the impact on other 
customers from the loss of 

Average annual information systems renewal/ replacement costs projected 
over next 5 years, with a minimum of $250,000The average 
revenue generated over a two-year period from the 

 
$545$1,400,0

00 

112 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 Policy Number 
2090 
 Page 11 of 13   

 

(Designated) Information 
Systems Renewal &  

revenues from a significant 
industrial user (SIU)Replacement 
of computer hardware and 
software 

top three incoming producing SIU’s. 
 

Replacement    

Emergency  
(Designated)Vehicle & 
Equipment Renewal & 
Replacement 

To help mitigate the financial 
impacts of an emergency or 
catastrophic eventReplacement 
of District fleet and major 
equipment 
 

Average annual equipment renewal/replacement costs projected over next 
5 years, with a minimum of $500,000FY 2019 balance is 
$5,000,000.  Accrue $750,000 annually until the 
reserve reaches 25% of the operating budget.  
Projected to reach $9,500,000 by 2024. 

$3885,000,0
00 

 

ALLOCATIONSPlant & 
Pump Station Renewal 
& 

Replacement of plant & pump 
station equipment (limited-term 
fund) 

None (This is a limited term fund that will be superseded by an asset 
management recommendation in the Plant R&R study) 

 
$158,524 

Information Systems 
Renewal & 
Replacement 

Replacement of computer 
hardware and software 

The actual amount projected for replacement, 
renewal, or acquisition of hardware and software 
assets, plus any approved carryover items from the 
previous year. Typically, this allocation has been set at 
$250,000 maximum per year. 
 

$250,000 

Vehicle & Equipment 
Renewal & 
ReplacementRetiree 
Medical Benefit Plan 

Replacement of District fleet and 
major equipment 
 

The actual amount projected for replacement, 
renewal, or acquisition of vehicles and equipment 
based upon conditional assessments that include, but 
are not limited to age, mileage, repair history, and any 
additional influencing factors, plus approved carryover 
items from the previous year.  Typically, this allocation 
has been set at $500,000 per year. 
Clearing account for Retiree Medical fund 
transactions.  Funds are currently held in CalPERS 
OPEB Trust.  
 

Maintain fund 
reserves at level 
recommended in 
actuarial study 
$500,000 

113 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 Policy Number 
2090 
 Page 12 of 13   

 

Plant & Pump Station 
Renewal & 
ReplacementSRF 
Wastewater Capital 
(Restricted) 

Replacement of plant & pump 
station equipment (limited-term 
fund)Required by SRF; can be used 
for expansion, major repairs & replacements 

There is an annual allocation of $250,000, which may 
be increased or decreased with Board approval during 
the budget process based on demonstrated 
need.Equivalent to one year’s principal and interest 
payment for each outstanding SRF loan.  Requirement 
may vary based on each loan agreement 

 

$3,457250,00
0 

Retiree Medical 
Benefit PlanLiability 
Insurance  

Clearing account for Retiree 
Medical fund transactions.  Funds 
are currently held in CalPERS 
OPEB Trust. For CSRMA liability 
insurance deductible and for 
non-covered events 
 

Allocation amount equal to the level recommended in 
actuarial study to maintain the best discount trust 
rate.2 X annual deductible  

$1,500,000 

Special Projects 
Cashflow  

Non-routine expenses, studies, 
and programs 
For operating & maintenance 
expenses, particularly between 
semi-annual receipt of service 
charges on property tax rolls 

Approved budget plus unspent budget carry-over from 
prior year. 
6 months (50%) of budgeted operating expenditures should be in this 
reserve fund on July 1 of each fiscal year 

 
$23,124$1,00

0,000 

PretreatmentEmergency  Ord. 36, Enforcement revenue 
and expensesAccrue and maintain $5 
million within by 2018 

$2,000,000Approved budget plus unspent budget carry-
over from prior year 

$5,000200,00
0 

PretreatmentShort Term 
Liquidity 

To cover normal operating costs 6-month rolling averages of payroll and accounts 
payable as minimumOrd. 36, Enforcement revenue 
and expenses 

$365,000,00
0 

Future ProjectsFUND 
BALANCE 

To allocate excess resources for long-term 
infrastructure funding 
 

A sub-fund of Structural Renewal & Replacement 
 
 

$12,669,050 

Cash in BankStructural 
Renewal & 
Replacement 

District maintains a minimum amount in 
immediately available funds held in a local 
bank 
Renewal and replacement of 
infrastructure 

Immediate liquidity to fund 125% of payroll;  in cash deposits  
 
 
Sufficient fund balance to fund Structural Renewal & 
Replacement CIP projects 

 
$643,752 

114 of 172



Reserve FundsReserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 Policy Number 
2090 
 Page 13 of 13   

 

                        Revised 09/14 

TOTALCapacity  
(Restricted) 

Activities related to collection and 
treatment system capacity 
increases 

Sufficient fund balance to fund Capacity CIP Projects $51,560,164 

115 of 172



Union Sanitary District Policy 

     
Effective:   
6/3/19 (tentative) 
 

Reserves, Allocations, and Fund Balance  
 
 

Policy Number 
2090 

    Page 1 of 5 

 
 
Policy 
This policy establishes reserves, reviews allocations, and discusses fund balances.  The policy is 
intended  to  guide  responsible  planning  for  funding  of  the  long‐term  capital  improvement 
program  and  ongoing  operating  budgets  while  meeting  legal  and  contractual  obligations.  
Prudent  financial management  of  the District  requires  the  development  and maintenance  of 
various reserves and allocations. Maintaining an appropriate  level of reserves  is an  important 
component of financial management.  Adequate reserves and allocations: 
 

 Provide  a  financial  cushion  for  dealing  with  unanticipated  financial  needs  and 
emergencies.  

 Enable the District to accrue adequate funds to meet future financing needs.  

 Provide working capital to help stabilize rates.  

 Are a component of achieving favorable credit ratings which can help minimize costs of 
issuing debt.  

 
Purpose 
Funds,  reserves,  and  allocations  are  needed  at  the  District  to  fund  planned  and  unplanned 
events.  Planned  events  include,  but  are  not  limited  to,  accumulating  balances  to  fund  the 
expected  twenty‐year  capital  improvement  program,  setting  aside  funds  to  account  for  cash 
flow variances throughout the fiscal year, segregating funds for State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan 
reserves,  and  other  covenants  required  as  a  result  of  debt  obligations.  Unplanned  events 
include revenue short falls  (e.g. significant  industrial users closing or scaling back operations), 
unanticipated expenses, and emergency events.  
 
Reserve Levels 
All District  reserves are designated or restricted  for specific purposes. The matrix attached to 
the  end  of  this  policy  summarizes  restricted  and  designated  reserves,  allocations,  and  fund 
balances. District staff will review the actual and recommended reserve and allocations  levels 
annually to ensure appropriate financial positioning. 
 
Definitions of common terms referred to in this policy and attached matrix are as follows: 
 
Restricted Reserves 

 Fund amounts that are restricted to specific purposes with constraints placed on the use 

of resources are either:  

o Externally  imposed  by  creditors  (such  as  through  debt  covenants),  grantors, 

contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments. 

116 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
  Page 2 of 8    

o Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

o Fund  amounts  that  can  only  be  used  for  specific  purposes  pursuant  to 

constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Directors level of decision‐

making authority. 

 

Designated Reserves 

 Amounts  that are constrained by  the Board of Directors  intent  to be used  for  specific 

purposes, should be reported as designated fund balances. Those designated amounts 

cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes or changes 

the specified use by  taking  the appropriate  type of action  (e.g.,  legislation,  resolution, 

ordinance) it employed to previously commit those amounts. 

Allocations 

 Amounts  that are constrained by  the Board of Directors  intent  to be used  for  specific 

purposes but are neither  restricted nor designated. Allocations amounts are generally 

established during the budgeting process and approved by the Board of Directors.  

 
Achieving Reserve Targets 
For financial planning purposes, it is acceptable for reserves to drop below their target level on 
a temporary basis provided the District acts to achieve the target over the planning period.  
 
Order of Use for Reserve Funds 
Financial  best  practices  recommend  that  District  policies  should  specify  the  order  in  which 
funds are spent when more than one amount is available for a specific purpose. In general, the 
order  of  use  of  funds,  upon  consumption  of  other  available  fund  balances  and  allocations, 
should be:  
 

1. Designated funds are used first 
2. Operating Cashflow Reserve 
3. Special Projects  
4. Vehicle and Equipment Renewal & Replacement 
5. Information Systems Renewal & Replacement 
6. Industrial Customer Stabilization 
7. Emergency 

 
Under  certain  circumstances,  the  District may  elect  to  access  the  Emergency  or  other  funds 
outside this general guideline for access/use. 
 
Investing Reserve Funds 
Reserves  and  fund  balances will  generally  be  invested  according  to  the District’s  Investment 
Policy.  
 
 

117 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
  Page 3 of 8    
Policy Updates 
This  policy  and  the  District’s  reserves,  allocations,  and  fund  balances  will  be  periodically 
reviewed and amended as needed to ensure they remain up‐to‐date and support the District’s 
future financial objectives.  
 
Reserves 
Reserves are cash, or assets readily convertible into cash, held aside, as by a corporation, bank, 
state  or  national  government  or  enterprise,  etc.,  to meet  expected  or  unexpected  demands. 
Reserves currently utilized at the District include: 
 

SRF  Loan  Contingency  Reserve  (Restricted) –  The  District  is  eligible  to  utilize  low 
interest  rate  loans  through  the  State  of  California  to  finance  capital  projects.  A 
requirement  of  the  loan  is  the  establishment  and  maintenance  of  a  contingency 
reserve  that  is defined  in  the  loan documents. The  fund balance will be  set at  the 
amount required in the loan documents, typically one annual payment per loan.  

 
Risk  Management  (Liability  Insurance)  Reserve  (Designated)  –  The  District 
purchases  liability  insurance  from  a  pooled  insurance  provider.  The  selected 
deductible  reduces  the  amount  of  premiums  incurred  by  the  District,  thereby 
keeping the insurance rates low. In order to account for an event that is either not 
covered  by  insurance  or  under  the  deductible  amount,  the  District  reserves  two 
times the annual deductible, which is based on claim history. 

 
Operating  Cashflow  Reserve  (Designated)  –  Sewer  Service  Charge  (SSC)  revenues 
are  collected  by  the  Alameda  County  Tax  Assessor’s  Office  and  remitted  to  the 
District  in  two  major  installments  in  April  and  December  of  each  year.  This 
designated reserve is to ensure adequate funds are available for the District to pay 
its on‐going expenses throughout the year. 
 
It  is  the goal of  the District  to have six months  (50%) of operating expenditures  in 
reserve at the beginning of each fiscal year.  However, the range of this reserve can 
fluctuate between a minimum of three months (25%) and a maximum reserve level 
of six months (50%) of the annual operating expense.  If the reserve is drawn down 
to the minimum level, funds will be added to ensure the maximum level is achieved 
within four fiscal years but will be evaluated on an annual basis during the budgeting 
process.  

 
Industrial  Customer  Stabilization  Reserve  (Designated)  –  The  District  has  several 
Significant  Industrial  Users  (SIU).  If  one  or more  of  these  SIU’s  significantly  scaled 
back operations, or went out of business, the District could experience a significant 
loss  of  revenue  quickly.  This  reserve  would  allow  the  District  to  implement 
appropriate responses and actions over a reasonable time frame. The reserve level 
represents  two  years  of  averages  for  the  top  three  SIU’s  for  three  years  and  is 
recalculated annually. 

118 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
  Page 4 of 8    

 
Emergency Reserve (Designated) – In order to help mitigate the financial impacts of 
an emergency or catastrophic event, the District has initiated an Emergency Reserve. 
The reserve  in  the year 2019  is $5,000,000 and will  increase by $750,000 annually 
until  reaching  25%  of  the  operating  budget  or  approximately  $9,500,000  in  2025. 
This target will be re‐evaluated annually. 

 
Allocations 
Allocated funds are those budgeted and directed for specific purposes. These funds may be re‐
allocated or shifted based on demonstrated need and appropriate District approvals. 
 
The  following allocations are made through the annual budget process and are reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors: 
 

Information  Systems  Renewal  and  Replacement  Fund  –  The  District  maintains  a 
five‐year schedule for replacement of hardware and software assets.  The allocation 
is the actual amount projected for replacement, renewal, or acquisition of hardware 
and software assets plus any approved carryover items from the previous year.  

 
Vehicle and Equipment Renewal and Replacement Fund – The District maintains a 
five‐year  schedule  for  the  replacement  of  fleet  and major  equipment  assets.  The 
allocation  is  the actual amount projected for replacement,  repair, or acquisition of 
vehicles  and equipment based upon  conditional  assessments  that  include,  but  are 
not  limited  to  age:  mileage,  repair  history,  and  any  additional  influencing  factors 
plus approved carryover items from the previous year.   
 
Plant  and  Pump  Station  Renewal  and  Replacement  Fund  –  This  fund  was 
established to fund high cost plant and pump station equipment purchases, and to 
minimize  large  annual  fluctuations  in  the Operating budget. Historically,  there has 
been an annual allocation of $250,000.  Requested items are approved by the Board 
of Directors as part of the District’s Operating Budget. Board approval for additional 
funds may be obtained during the budgeting process. 
 
Retiree Medical Benefit Plan Fund –  The District has a  retiree medical benefit  for 
employees.  The  District  updates  funding  requirements  needed  to  provide  these 
benefits by conducting an actuarial study every two years and adjusting funding as 
evidenced  and  recommended  per  the  Actuarially  Determined  Contribution  (ADC) 
from that study and additional scenarios.  The District may allocate additional funds 
to  reduce  current  and  future  liability  associated  with  this  benefit.  The  Trust  is 
reviewed and funded each fiscal year.   
 
Special Projects/Programs Fund – This allocation  is divided  into three major parts: 
Administrative/Regulatory,  Studies,  and  Pilot  Projects.  It  includes  non‐routine 
expenses  where  long‐term  financial  impact  is  not  known  and  might  include  land 

119 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
  Page 5 of 8    

acquisitions  for  future  infrastructure  expansion.    The  projects  and  related  funding 
are approved on an annual basis by the Board of Directors. The  intent  is to reduce 
volatility  in  operating  budgets  from  one‐time  expenditures.  The  allocation  is  the 
approved  budget  for  the  following  year’s  projects  plus  the  unspent  budget  carry‐
over from the previous year’s ongoing, multi‐year projects.  
 
Short  Term  Liquidity  –  The  District maintains  a minimum  amount  in  immediately 
available funds to cover the rolling 6‐month average monthly payroll, plus a rolling 
6‐month  average monthly  accounts  payable,  held  in  a  local  bank  account  in  cash 
deposits.  

 
Fund Balance 
Fund balance  is  the difference between assets and  liabilities  in a given  fund at  the close of a 
specific financial reporting period (e.g. monthly, quarterly, annually).   These funds are generally 
reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the 
District  is  bound  to  honor  constraints  on  the  specific  purposes  for  which  amounts  in  those 
funds can be spent. 
 

Capacity  Fund  –  The  District  projects  capacity  revenues  derived  from  new 
connections or increased discharges in permitted, commercial, and industrial users. 
Eligible  capital  project  expenditures  must  be  related  to  expanded  capacity  or 
maintenance  of  capacity  in  the  collection  or  treatment  systems,  which  includes 
capacity  related  debt.  The  capacity  fund  balance  is  comprised  of  the  amount  of 
funds (cash and investments) the District is projecting at the end of each fiscal year 
to be available to fund the capacity portion of the CIP and Special Projects, including 
related  debt,  for  the  following  year.  Connection  fees  cannot  be  used  for  any 
operational expenses. 
 
Structural Renewal and Replacement Fund – The District projects revenues derived 
from  sewer  service  charges  and  other  revenues.  The  Structural  Renewal  and 
Replacement  Fund  balance  is  comprised  of  the  amount  of  funds  (cash  and 
investments) the District is projecting are required to fund approved capital projects, 
including debt.  

 
Management Responsibility 
Management will ensure the reserves, allocations and fund balances are reviewed during the 
annual budget cycle and are adjusted as necessary to remain within the guidelines outlined in 
this document and per Board direction.  
 
Approved by:     Board of Directors 
Author/owner:    General Manager/District Engineer and Business Services Manager/CFO 
Reviewers:     Executive Team and Board of Directors 
Notify Person:   Business Services Manager/CFO 
Review frequency:   3 years 

120 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 
Policy Number 2090 
  Page 6 of 8    
Next Review:     6/3/2022

121 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                                                                                  
Policy Number 2090 

 Page 7 of 8 
                                                                                                Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance Targets 
 

Reserve, Allocation, 
Fund Balance 

Purpose  Reserve / Allocation Level   Reserves 
06/30/18 

RESERVES          

SRF Loan Contingency 
(Restricted) 

Required by SRF  Equivalent to one year’s principal and interest 
payment for each outstanding SRF loan.  Requirement 
may vary based on each loan agreement 

$3,902,080 
 
 
 

Risk Management 
(Liability Insurance) 
(Designated)  

For CSRMA liability insurance 
deductible and for non‐covered 
events 
 

2 X annual deductible   $1,000,000 
 

Operating Cashflow 
(Designated)  

For operating & maintenance 
expenses, particularly between 
semi‐annual receipt of service 
charges on property tax rolls 

Minimum of 3 months (25%) and a maximum of 6 
months (50%) of budgeted operating expenditures 
should be in this reserve fund on July 1 of each fiscal 
year 

$18,762944 

Industrial Customer 
Stabilization 
(Designated)  

To minimize the impact on other 
customers from the loss of 
revenues from a significant 
industrial user (SIU) 

The average revenue generated over a two‐year 
period from the top three incoming producing SIU’s. 
 

$1,400,000 

       

Emergency  
(Designated) 

To help mitigate the financial 
impacts of an emergency or 
catastrophic event 

FY 2019 balance is $5,000,000.  Accrue $750,000 
annually until the reserve reaches 25% of the 
operating budget.  Projected to reach $9,500,000 by 
2024. 

$5,000,000 
 

ALLOCATIONS       

Information Systems 
Renewal & 
Replacement 

Replacement of computer 
hardware and software 

The actual amount projected for replacement, 
renewal, or acquisition of hardware and software 
assets, plus any approved carryover items from the 
previous year. Typically, this allocation has been set at 

$250,000 

122 of 172



Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance                                                                                                                 Policy Number 2090 
  Page 8 of 8    

 

$250,000 maximum per year. 
 

Vehicle & Equipment 
Renewal & 
Replacement 

Replacement of District fleet and 
major equipment 
 

The actual amount projected for replacement, 
renewal, or acquisition of vehicles and equipment 
based upon conditional assessments that include, but 
are not limited to age, mileage, repair history, and any 
additional influencing factors, plus approved carryover 
items from the previous year.  Typically, this allocation 
has been set at $500,000 per year. 
 

$500,000 

Plant & Pump Station 
Renewal & 
Replacement 

Replacement of plant & pump 
station equipment (limited‐term 
fund) 

There is an annual allocation of $250,000, which may 
be increased or decreased with Board approval during 
the budget process based on demonstrated need. 

$250,000 

Retiree Medical 
Benefit Plan 

Clearing account for Retiree 
Medical fund transactions.  Funds 
are currently held in CalPERS 
OPEB Trust.  

Allocation amount equal to the level recommended in 
actuarial study to maintain the best discount trust 
rate. 

 

Special Projects 
 

Non‐routine expenses, studies, 
and programs 
 

Approved budget plus unspent budget carry‐over from 
prior year. 
 

$1,000,000 

Pretreatment  Ord. 36, Enforcement revenue 
and expenses 

Approved budget plus unspent budget carry‐over from 
prior year 

$200,000 

Short Term Liquidity  To cover normal operating costs  6‐month rolling averages of payroll and accounts 
payable as minimum 

$5,000,000 

FUND BALANCE       

Structural Renewal & 
Replacement 

Renewal and replacement of 
infrastructure 

Sufficient fund balance to fund Structural Renewal & 
Replacement CIP projects 

 

Capacity  (Restricted)  Activities related to collection and 
treatment system capacity 
increases 

Sufficient fund balance to fund Capacity CIP Projects   

123 of 172



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

JUNE 3, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #18 

TITLE: Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2020 (This is a Motion 
Item)  

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 

Recommendation 

Review the Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for FY 2020, and direct staff to present the 
final version at the June 24th Board meeting. 

Previous Board Action 

This item was presented to the Board in a Workshop on 5/20/19 and is brought before the 
Board on an annual basis. 

Background 

Attached for your review is the Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for FY 2020.  This budget 
reflects the Board’s input and information presented at the Budget Workshop on May 20, 
2019. 

The presentation of the FY 2020 Budget follows the same format as was used in FY 2019 for 
clarity. The FY 2020 Budget Summary reflects: 

1. An increase in Total Revenues of 1.8%
2. An increase in Total Expenditures of 29.4% (includes the CIP budget)
3. An increase in the Operating Budget of 9.5%

124 of 172



This document also reflects the following changes since the May 20th Budget Workshop: 

1. Changes to the Special Projects listing and budgeted values (addition of Capacity Fee
Study and Cost of Service Analysis projects and changes to budgeted values)

2. Changes to the Reserves (increase to the Emergency Reserve Fund and addition of
the new Industrial Customer Stabilization Reserve Fund)

3. Updated Salaries and Benefits costs associated with Unclassified merit increase

Attachments: 
Proposed Operating and CIP Budget FY 2020 

125 of 172



Union Sanitary District
Union City, California

Proposed Operating & CIP Budget
FY 2020

126 of 172



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

127 of 172



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: June 24, 2019 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2020 Adopted Operating and CIP Budget 
  
  
Union Sanitary District (USD) staff is pleased to present the comprehensive annual budget for  
Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 to the Board of Directors.  This budget covers the period from July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2020.  The District continues to focus on the operation and maintenance of its 
infrastructure and assets, capital project construction, planning, and effective use of 
technology.   

Outstanding Performance and Cost-Effective Service for the District’s Customers 

In keeping with our Mission, the District continues to provide a high level of award-winning 
service to its customers at competitive rates.  During FY 2016, USD conducted a major Cost of 
Service Analysis (COSA) to determine a five-year rate plan that met all requirements related to 
charges for services under Proposition 218.  The COSA took into consideration current and 
future operational and capital costs, and reserve requirements for the next five years.  The 
study provided the District with a baseline against which we can analyze future USD needs.  The 
Sewer Service Charge for FY 2020 incorporates the fourth rate increase of the five-year rate 
increase plan.  The annual single-family rate will increase from $407 to $421 in FY 2020, and to 
$436 by the fifth year (FY 2021).  This increased rate is still well below the national average 
annual sewer service charge of $504 as reflected in the 2018 National Association of Clean 
Water Agencies price index.  The average annual rate of the 35 Bay Area agencies the District 
surveys is $623.40. 

We continue the District’s record of outstanding stewardship and service.  Once again, USD 
received the Platinum Award from the National Association of Clean Water Agencies for Peak 

128 of 172



Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District  June 24, 2019 
Fiscal Year 2020 Adopted Operating and CIP Budget Page 2 
 
 
Performance for operating for ten consecutive years without exceeding the limits or conditions 
of the District’s permit.  This is a tribute to the outstanding work by District Operations and 
Maintenance teams.  We continue to average less than one spill per hundred miles of pipeline 
per year, ranking us among the best in the State, while doing so in a very cost-effective manner.  
The District Collections Services and Environmental Compliance groups have successfully 
implemented measures to minimize spills and back-ups. 

Financial State of the District 

The current (general) improvement in the economy has had positive effects on the District.  
Revenues are increasing over the prior fiscal year, but we anticipate a slight decrease in 
development activity in our service area.  While economic improvements have proven 
beneficial, the District continues to exercise fiscal prudence considering our ever-increasing 
expenses.  It is because of this cautionary approach that the District has continued to remain 
financially healthy.  

USD has seen slight decreases in permit applications in the past twelve months, and that is 
expected to continue in FY 2020.  A portion of USD capital projects is funded by capacity fees; 
however, the majority are funded through Sewer Service Charges.  The District continues to be 
vigilant in its efforts to control expenses.  Like other agencies, USD faces significant pressures 
associated with the costs of health care and pensions, as well as costs for treatment plant 
chemicals and utilities (primarily PG&E), in addition to other capital expenditures. 

Revenues 

Sewer Service Charges are expected to increase from $57 million in FY 2019 to $60 million in FY 
2020 due to previously approved rate increases and the addition of new users.  With 
approximately 73.41% of the District’s revenue based on residential customers; USD’s income 
remains relatively stable despite the slight volatility in non-residential revenues. 

Capacity Fee revenues incorporate increased Capacity Fees approved by the Board, effective 
July 1, 2016.  As previously stated, the Tri-City area has experienced a continued increase in 
construction development; however, there are indicators that this trend is beginning to slow 
down.  As a result, total Capacity Fee revenues are expected to come in at $13.6 million in FY 
2020, which is below both the 2019 actual and original FY 2019 budgeted values.  Anticipated 
expenditures associated with capacity fees over the next several years indicate that there will 
likely be an overall declining balance in this fund, starting in FY 2020 as projects associated with 
the Plant Master Plan begin at the District. 

Expenditures 

Total expenditures in the Sewer Service Fund for the coming fiscal year are projected to 
increase by 23.2%.  Operating expenses are anticipated to increase by 9.5%, primarily due to 
salary and pension contribution rate increases, as well as the addition of professional consulting 

129 of 172



Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District  June 24, 2019 
Fiscal Year 2020 Adopted Operating and CIP Budget Page 3 
 
 
services intended to support training necessary for long-term succession planning.  Chemical 
costs had been relatively stable due to the District’s participation in the Bay Area Chemical 
Consortium for many years; however, significant increases in several chemicals utilized in the 
treatment process are reflected in the FY 2020 budget.   

No significant changes to the number of District employees are budgeted during this fiscal year. 
The District filled many vacancies during FY 2019, mostly attributable to planned retirements, 
with just a few voluntary separations.  Balancing the District’s ability to attract and retain a 
qualified workforce against the bottom line will continue to be a challenge as more of our 
tenured workforce becomes eligible for retirement. 

Capital project spending will continue to focus on rehabilitation and replacement of key 
elements of the wastewater treatment plant and collections system pipeline.  Many of the 
District’s buildings and treatment processes have been in operation for over 35 years.  
Replacing and upgrading these facilities and equipment will ensure that we can efficiently 
operate the plant in the long-term.  Projects for FY 2020 include plant facilities improvements 
such as a seventh anaerobic digester, standby power generation system upgrades, and pump 
station improvements.   

Staff conducted a thorough analysis of the infrastructure needs of the District and developed a 
20-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that totals approximately $1.09 billion.  The total CIP 
budgeted for FY 2020 is just over $21.9 million, compared to $10.2 million in FY 2019.  USD 
continues to keep its CIP costs as low as possible by taking advantage of available low interest 
loans through the State and federally funded Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) program 
administered by the State Water Resources Control Board (as available), although the District 
continues to explore alternative financing methods that give the District greater flexibility while 
still meeting our policy requirements for debt. 

The Information Systems Renewal and Replacement (R&R) Program will continue to fund new 
projects, such as Non-Residential Billing Program Replacement, the replacement of older 
servers and hardware for business continuity, and disaster recovery. 

Special Projects Fund expenditures will increase from $1.4 million in FY 2019 to just over $4.3 
million in FY 2020.  Of the $4.3 million, $352,000 is for special projects that will carry forward to 
FY 2020.  Some of the studies planned or continuing this year include the Old Alameda Creek 
Report of Discharge, Odor Control Pilot Study and the IT Master Plan.  Other expenditures 
include those for the Outreach programs, including the USD newsletter, and GIS Joint Powers 
Authority (JPA). 
 
Balanced Budget, Reserves and Rates 

USD has long operated with a balanced budget and FY 2020 is no exception.  District reserves 
continue to be stable. 

130 of 172



Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District  June 24, 2019 
Fiscal Year 2020 Adopted Operating and CIP Budget Page 4 
 
 
Conclusion 

The District’s high level of service and competitive rates reflect its highly efficient and 
customer-oriented staff.  The District is fortunate to have a very talented and dedicated 
workforce. The District is firmly committed to meeting every challenge brought forth while 
building a premier organization.  This budget enables us to continue to move forward in 
meeting those challenges.  By continuing to follow the budget policy set forth by the District, 
we will continue to deliver the highest level of service hopefully for the next 100 years, and 
beyond. 
 

 

131 of 172



 

132 of 172



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

133 of 172



 

 

SUMMARY AND COMMENTS 
FISCAL YEAR 2020 BUDGET 

 
Budget Summary – All Funds (Sewer Service and Capacity Funds) 

 
 Budget 

FY 2019 
Estimated 

Actual FY 2019 
Proposed 

Budget FY 2020 
 

% Change 
Total Revenues     
    Sewer Service Charges $57,016,142 $58,250,000 $60,099,000 5.4 
    Capacity Fees 16,211,521 14,238,350 13,567,000 (16.3) 
    Work Group Revenues 1,326,550 1,264,672 1,283,500 (3.2) 
    Interest 650,000 2,000,000 1,350,000 107.7 
    Other 250,000 1,294,800 512,000 104.8 
    SRF Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 0 
Total Revenues $75,454,213 $77,047,822 $76,811,500 1.8 
Total Expenditures     
    Operating $39,902,746 $39,532,067 $43,689,365 9.5 
    Capital Projects (90%) 9,292,500 7,200,000 19,732,500 112.3 
    Debt Service 3,902,080 3,902,080 3,902,080 0.0 
    Special Projects 1,410,000 840,005 4,354,600 208.8 
    Other Internal Funds 1,872,501 1,706,201 1,260,750 (32.7) 
Total Expenditures $56,379,827 $53,180,353 $72,939,295 29.4 
Revenues in Excess of 
Expenditures – To Reserves 

 
$19,074,386 

 
$23,867,469 

 
$3,872,205 

 
(79.7)   

 
Proposed Combined Budget – Sewer Service and Capacity Funds 

 
 Sewer Service 

Fund  
(Incl Fund 80) 

Capacity Fund 
(Fund 90) 

 
Total 

Total Revenues    
    Sewer Service Charges $60,099,000 $0 $60,099,000 
    Capacity Fees 0 13,567,000 13,567,000 
    Work Group Revenues 1,283,500 0 1,283,500 
    Interest 850,000 500,000 1,350,000 
    Other 387,000 125,000 512,000 
    SRF Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 
Total Revenues $62,619,500 $14,192,000 $76,811,500 
Total Expenditures    
    Operating $43,689,365 $               0 $43,689,365 
    Capital Projects (90%) 12,132,000 7,600,500 19,732,500 
    Debt Service 2,785,617 1,116,463 3,902,080 
    Special Projects 4,354,600 0 4,354,600 
    Other Internal Funds 1,260,750 0 1,260,750 
Total Expenditures $64,222,332 $8,716,963 $72,939,295 
Revenues in Excess of 
Expenditures – To Reserves 

 
($1,602,832) 

 
$5,475,037 

 
$3,872,205 

134 of 172



 

 

 

SEWER SERVICE FUND 

The FY 2020 budget for the Sewer Service Fund is presented below: 

 Budget 
FY 2019 

Estimated 
Actual FY 2019 

Proposed 
Budget FY 2020 

 
% Change 

Total Revenues     
    Sewer Service Charges $57,016,142 $58,250,000 $60,099,000 5.4 
    Work Group Revenues 1,326,550 1,264,672 1,283,500 (3.2) 
    Interest 375,000 1,000,000 850,000 126.7 
    Other 125,000 1,169,800 387,000 209.6 
    SRF Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 0 
Total Revenues $58,842,692 $61,684,472 $62,619,500 6.4 
Total Expenditures     
    Operating $39,902,746 $39,532,067 $43,689,365 9.5 
    Capital Projects (90%) 6,142,500 5,100,000 12,132,000 97.5 
    Debt Service 2,785,617 2,785,617 2,785,617 0.0 
    Special Projects 1,410,000 840,005 4,354,600 208.8 
    Other Internal Funds 1,872,501 1,706,201 1,260,750 (32.7) 
Total Expenditures $52,113,364 $49,963,890 $64,222,332 23.2 
Revenues in Excess of 
Expenditures – To 
Reserves 

 
$6,729,328 

 
$11,720,582 

 
($1,602,832) 

 
(123.8) 

 

REVENUES:  Revenues in the Sewer Service Fund are anticipated to increase 5.4% in comparison to the 
FY 2019 budget.  With respect to the estimated actual amounts for FY 2019, the FY 2020 budget is 3.2% 
more.  Each of the individual revenue elements is discussed below: 

Sewer Service Charges:  The principal revenue source for the Sewer Service Fund is the annual Sewer 
Service Charges, estimated to be just over $60 million in FY 2020.  The existing annual sewer service 
charge for Single Family Dwellings (SFD) will increase from $407.12 in FY 2019 to $421.37 in FY 2020 (an 
increase of 3.5%), and the annual Multi-family Dwelling rate will increase from $352.97 in FY 2019 to 
$365.32 in FY 2020 (also an increase of 3.5%).  Residential rates account for 73.41% of total sewer 
service charge revenues.  For non-residential customers, rates are calculated annually using flow based 
on water usage and sewage strength. 

Work Group Revenues:  These revenues consist of things like field inspection fees, plan check fees, 
permits, external work orders, and services provided to the City of Fremont’s Urban Runoff program.  
Because these items tend to vary based on external demands, anticipated revenues are typically 
estimated in a conservative manner.  The FY 2020 budget estimate is $43,050 (3.2%) lower than the 
prior year’s budget amount. 

 

Interest:  Interest income is expected to increase 126.7% from the FY 2019 budget amount. This change 
is based on new, high yield investment instruments being added to the portfolio and strong returns 
projected based on a positive market. 

135 of 172



 

 

Other:  Other revenues consist of rebates from the Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) 
administered by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) related to cogeneration and other 
miscellaneous income, including the sale of surplus equipment.   

SRF Loan Proceeds:  Although the State Revolving Fund (SRF) has been, and will likely continue to be, an 
ongoing source of funding for District capital needs, no SRF loan proceeds are anticipated to be received 
in FY 2020. 

EXPENDITURES:  Expenditures in the Sewer Service Fund are anticipated to increase 23.2% in 
comparison to the FY 2019 budget.  Each of the individual expenditure elements is discussed below: 

Operating:  Operating expenditures are those required for the day-to-day operations of the District, 
including maintenance, regulatory activities, engineering, and administration.  Operating expenditures 
are estimated to increase 9.5% in FY 2020.  Of that increase, 9.0% is due primarily to salaries and 
benefits adjustments in accordance with the District’s Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with its 
classified employees, performance-based merit increases for the Unclassified staff, and increased 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) contributions.   

Below is additional information about the components of salaries and benefits: 

 Budget 
FY 2019 

Proposed Budget 
 FY 2020 

Dollar Change  
% 

Change 
Wages $17,198,665 $18,396,408 $1,197,743   7.0 
CalPERS 
Contributions 

4,433,146 5,432,246 999,100 22.5 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

314,142 322,808 8,666 2.8 

Other (Medical, 
Medicare) 

3,758,768 3,858,369 99,601   2.6 

Vacancy Factor (2%) (508,028) (552,952) (44,924)   8.8 
Total Salaries and 
Benefits 

$25,196,693 $27,456,879 $2,260,186   9.0 

 

Increased payments to CalPERS are the result of primarily an increase in the CalPERS contribution rate, 
from 25.359% in FY 2019 to 29.203% in FY 2020, resulting in a 22.5% overall increase in CalPERS costs.  
Workers’ compensation costs have increased because of increased wages (upon which workers’ 
compensation premiums are based) and an anticipated 5% rate increase.  Medical amounts are 
increasing in accordance with the MOU.  Consistent with prior years, salaries and benefits include a 2% 
vacancy factor, in recognition of the fact that vacancies occur throughout the year and are not 
immediately refilled. 

 

 

 

136 of 172



 

 

Below is information about the Fund 20 components of Operating expenditures, which include salaries 
and benefits: 

 
Work Group 

Budget 
FY 2019 

Estimated Actual  
FY 2019 

Proposed Budget 
 FY 2020 

% 
Change 

Board of Directors $     179,111 $     168,685 
 

$     179,176 0.04 

General Manager 1,043,506 933,668 1,066,367 2.2 

Business Services 3,762,036 3,581,223 4,342,142 15.4 

Collection Services 6,888,192 6,784,531 7,316,485 6.2 

Technical Services 6,354,451 6,087,921 6,639,720 4.5 

Treatment & Disposal 
Services 

10,444,839 10,382,197 11,299,505 8.2 

EBDA 1,581,000 1,233,000 1,614,002 2.0 

Fabrication, 
Maintenance, and 
Construction 

 
8,264,515 

 
8,500,202 

 
8,837,462 

 
6.9 

Non-Departmental 652,008 679,457 910,506 39.7 

Total Operating 
Expenditures 

$39,169,658 $38,350,884 
 

$42,205,365 7.8 

 

Salaries and benefits account for 65.1% of total operating expenditures in FY 2020 (up slightly from 
64.5% in FY 2019).  In addition to salary and benefit increases discussed above, some of the other 
reasons for the 7.8% increase in operating expenditures are as follows: 

• Actual costs for Districtwide accounts (telephones, training, insurance premiums and other 
miscellaneous items) are projected to increase 

• Treatment & Disposal is projecting increases in chemical and energy costs associated with 
treatment processes 

• Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction expects to incur additional costs due to 
increased maintenance needs for aging infrastructure, the purchase of standby pumps as a 
contingency plan for a force main or pump station outage and utility rate increases. 

District-wide training, property insurance, and telephones, that benefit the entire District, not just one 
or two individual work groups were placed into a Non-Departmental category in FY 2018.  This change 
will remain in effect and has been beneficial in tracking District-wide expenses.  The FY 2020 budget 
continues to reflect this change.   

137 of 172



 

 

Districtwide training is anticipated to increase as it remains a pillar in the District’s strategic planning 
efforts.   

Capital Projects:  This line item is discussed separately later in this document. 

Debt Service:  This line item is discussed separately later in this document. 

Special Projects:  This line item includes non-routine expenditures for things like one-time studies, hiring 
consultants, and new programs where the long-term financial impact, if any, is not known.   
  A detailed listing of Special Projects is included later in this document. 

Other Internal Funds:  These are separate components of the Sewer Services Fund that account for 
renewals and replacements of vehicles, equipment and technology.  Below is detailed information about 
this line item: 

 Budget  
FY 2019 

Estimated 
Actual  

FY 2019 

Proposed 
Budget  
FY 2020 

 
% Change 

Renewal & Replacement – Vehicles 
and Equipment (Fund 50) 

 
$660,201 

 
$660,201 

 
$153,050 

 
(76.8) 

Renewal & Replacement – 
Information Systems (Fund 60) 

 
712,300 

 
746,000 

 
857,700 

 
20.4 

Renewal & Replacement – Plant 
and Pump Station (Fund 70) 

 
500,000 

 
300,000 

 
250,000 

 
(50.0) 

Total Other Funds $1,879,501     $1,706,201 $1,260,750 (39.9) 
 

• Renewal & Replacement – Vehicles and Equipment:  Vehicles and equipment that are scheduled 
to be replaced due to age or obsolescence are purchased through this fund.  The provision is 
based on a conditional assessment/age specific replacement schedule and expenditure 
projection.  The vehicles scheduled for replacement in FY 2020 are as follows (no equipment is 
included in the plan this year): 

Vehicles:  
ARV Support Truck $125,000 
Construction Inspector’s Vehicle 28,050 
 Total Vehicles $153,050 
 
Equipment: 

 

No Equipment in FY20 $0 
  
Total Vehicles and Equipment $153,050 

 

As noted in the table above, two vehicles were approved for purchase in FY 2020 and no 
equipment purchases are planned. Therefore, estimated actual expenditures in FY 2020 are 
significantly less than the FY 2019 budget amount. 

• Renewal & Replacement – Information Systems:  The FY 2020 budget for Information Systems 
renewal and replacement consists of the following: 

138 of 172



 

 

Hardware (Desktops, Switches, Servers, Routers, etc.) $367,700 
SharePoint Upgrade 125,000 
IT Various Projects (Eg. CMMS, ECMS and LIMS updates) 125,000 
Replace Non-Residential Billing (NRB) Program 100,000 
GIS – Various 90,000 
Remote Site Security Keypads 50,000 
Total Information Systems $857,700 

 

• Renewal & Replacement – Plant and Pump Station:  Plant and pump station renewals and 
replacements anticipated in FY 2020 consist of the following: 

12” Portable Pump 130,000 
 Unplanned Maintenance 90,000 
(4) Samplers 30,000 
Total Plant and Pump Station $250,000 

 

Sewer Service Fund Reserves:  In accordance with debt covenants and District Policy No. 2090, 
“Reserves, Allocations and Fund Balance,” the District maintains several reserves in the Sewer Service 
Fund.  In FY 2020, approximately $1.6 million is anticipated to be transferred from reserves.  This is 
planned based on projected CIP needs. A summary of the various reserve/allocation budgets for FY 2020 
is shown in the following table:   

 
Reserve/Allocation  Descriptions 

Proposed Budget 
 FY 2020 

Cash Flow $21,844,683 
Structural Renewal & Replacement 44,178,000 
Emergency 5,750,000 
Short Term Liquidity 5,000,000 
SRF Loan Contingency 3,902,080 
Liability Insurance 1,000,000 
Information Systems Renewal & Replacement 857,700 
Industrial Customer Stabilization 500,000 
Vehicle & Equipment Renewal & Replacement 153,050 
 
Total Reserves/Allocations – Sewer Service Fund 

 
$83,185,513 

 

A description of each reserve or allocation and target funding levels are as follows: 

• Cash Flow – Sewer Service Charge revenues are collected by the Alameda County Tax Collector’s 
Office and remitted to the District in two major installments in April and December of each year.  
For the District to pay its ongoing expenditures throughout the year, it reserves between three 
and six months (25-50%) of gross operating expenditures at the start of each fiscal year. 

• Structural Renewal & Replacement – To maintain the ability to renew and replace 
infrastructure, this reserve is funded at the average annual renewal/replacement capital costs 
based on the 10-year CIP. This is a conservative approach. 

139 of 172



 

 

• Emergency – In order to help mitigate the financial impacts of an emergency or catastrophic 
event, the District has an Emergency Reserve.  The target for FY 2020 is $5.75 million. 

• Industrial Customer Stabilization- The District has several Significant Industrial Users (SIUs). This 
reserve allows the District to implement appropriate responses and actions should one or more 
of these SIUs significantly scale back or cease operations unexpectedly, resulting in a rapid loss 
of revenue to the District. 

• SRF Loan Contingency – The District is eligible to apply for low interest rate loans through the 
State of California to finance capital projects.  A requirement of these loans is the establishment 
and maintenance of a contingency reserve that is defined in the loan documents.  The reserve 
balance is set at the amount required in the loan documents, typically one annual payment per 
loan. 

• Short-Term Liquidity – The District maintains a minimum amount of immediately available 
funds, to cover the rolling 6-month average monthly payroll, plus a rolling 6-month average of 
the monthly accounts payable, held in a local bank account, in cash deposits. 

• Liability Insurance – The District is a member of and purchases liability insurance from the 
California Sanitation Risk Management Association (CSRMA).  The deductible of $500,000 
reduces the amount of premiums charged to the District.  In order to account for an event that 
is either not covered by insurance or under the deductible amount, the District reserves two 
times the annual deductible amount, based on claims history. 

• Information Systems Renewal & Replacement – To maintain the ability to replace computer 
hardware and software, this fund is allocated at the actual planned annual information systems 
renewal/replacement costs, plus approved carry over from the previous year. 

• Vehicle & Equipment Renewal & Replacement – To maintain the ability to replace the District’s 
fleet and major equipment, this fund is allocated at the actual planned annual equipment 
renewal/replacement costs, plus approved carry over from the previous year. 

  

140 of 172



 

 

CAPACITY FUND 

The FY 2020 budget for the Capacity Fund is presented below: 

 Budget 
FY 2019 

Estimated Actual  
FY 2019 

Proposed 
Budget FY 2020 

 
% Change 

Total Revenues     
    Capacity Fees $16,211,521 $14,238,350 $13,567,000 (16.3) 
    Interest 275,000 1,000,000 500,000 81.8 
    Other 125,000 125,000 125,000 0.0 
    SRF Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0 
Total Revenues $16,611,521 $15,363,350 $14,192,000 (14.6) 
Total Expenditures     
    Capital Projects (90%) $3,150,000 $2,100,000 $7,600,500 141.3 
    Debt Service 1,116,463 1,116,463 1,116,463 0.0 
Total Expenditures $4,266,463 $3,216,463 $8,716,963 104.3 
Revenues in Excess of 
Expenditures – To 
Reserves 

 
$12,345,058 

 
$12,146,887 

 
$5,475,037 

 
(55.6) 

 

REVENUES:  Revenues in the Capacity Fund are anticipated to decrease 14.6% in comparison to the  
FY 2019 budget.  Each of the individual revenue elements is discussed below: 

Capacity Fees:  The principal revenue source for the Capacity Fund is Capacity Fees, estimated to be 
$13.57 million in FY 2020.  These fees are collected in accordance with the provisions of California 
Assembly Bill (AB) 1600 and are intended to mitigate the impacts of new development.  In the case of 
the District, these fees are collected from new development as a requirement of connecting to the 
sewer system.  As such, they can only be used for capital projects that increase the system’s capacity to 
serve that new development.  The last several years have seen significant new development in the Tri-
Cities area.  The pace of that development is anticipated to slow in FY 2020, resulting in a reduced 
revenue estimate as compared to FY 2019 estimated actual.  Pursuant to Ordinance No. 35.22, based on 
a capacity fee study and adopted by the Board in April 2016, capacity fees will increase annually through 
FY 2020.  Capacity fees for Single Family Dwellings (SFD) will increase from $8,072 in FY 2019 to $8,898 
in FY 2020 (an increase of 10.2%), and capacity fees for Multi-family Dwellings will increase from $6,919 
in FY 2019 to $7,627 in FY 2020 (also an increase of 10.2%). 

Interest:  Interest income is expected to increase 81.8% from the FY 2019 budget amount and decrease 
50% from the FY 2019 estimated actual amount.  This overall increase is based on new investment 
instruments being added to the portfolio.  

Other:  Other revenues consist of rebates from the Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) 
administered by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) related to cogeneration. 

SRF Loan Proceeds:  Although the State Revolving Fund (SRF) has been, and will likely continue to be, an 
ongoing source of funding for District capital needs, no SRF loan proceeds are anticipated to be received 
in FY 2020. 

EXPENDITURES:  Expenditures in the Capacity Fund are anticipated to increase 104.3% in comparison to 
the FY 2019 budget.  This is attributable to increased spending on capital projects. Debt service may also 

141 of 172



 

 

increase accordingly; however, funding sources have not yet been identified.  These items are discussed 
in more detail later in this document. 

Capacity Fund Reserves:  In FY 2020, approximately $5.5 million is anticipated to be transferred to 
reserves.  Because Capacity Fees are collected in accordance with AB 1600, they are subject to 
regulatory restriction.  As a result, $69,093,531 is restricted for use on capital projects that increase the 
District’s capacity to serve new development. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Capital projects are accounted for in the Sewer Service Fund (Structural Renewal and Replacement 
[Fund 80]) and the Capacity Fund (Fund 90).  The District adopts a 20-year Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) each year in conjunction with the adoption of the annual operating budget.  Actual appropriations 
are established at 90% of the CIP amount for that year.  Although spending for capital projects is 
anticipated to be higher in FY 2020 than in the prior year, it is also expected to continue to increase over 
the next five years, as the result of the Plant Master Planning efforts.   

Below is information about capital projects spending for FY 2019 and FY 2020: 

 Budget  
FY 2019 

Estimated Actual  
FY 2019 

Proposed Budget  
FY 2020 

% Change 

Sewer Service Fund – Structural 
Renewal and Replacement 

 
$6,142,500 

 
$5,100,000 

 

 
$12,132,000 

 
97.5 

Capacity Fund 3,150,000 2,100,000 7,600,500 141.3 
Total Capital Projects $9,292,500 $7,200,000 $19,732,500 112.3 

 

Key elements of the FY 2020 capital improvement program include design of the following projects:  

• Master Plan Projects – Various concurrent and phased projects to rehabilitate and leverage existing 
assets and facilities associated with the activated sludge treatment process. 

• Centrifuge Building Improvements – Various rehabilitation and improvement projects associated 
with final solids handling, odor control and conveyance systems at the centrifuge building in the 
treatment plant. 

• Cherry Street Pump Station – Analysis and design of capacity upgrades to the existing pump station 
in support of local development. 

• Digester No. 2 Inspection and Rehab -This project will include inspection and analysis of the exact 
condition of existing Digester No.2 and provide design for rehabilitation of the structure to maintain 
existing solids handling capacity. 

• WAS Thickeners Replacement– This project will replace the existing WAS thickeners to maintain 
existing solids handling capacity and provide improved treatment.  

 

142 of 172



 

 

Key elements of the FY 2020 capital improvement program include construction of the following 
projects: 

• Digester No. 7 – The Plant Solids Capacity/Assessment Study identified a need for reliable solids 
capacity in the primary digester system and recommended the District construct new Primary 
Digester No. 7.  

• Standby Power Generation System Upgrade – The plant’s standby generators are at the end of their 
useful lives, and the generator controls are obsolete and complicated to update and maintain.  This 
project will replace the existing equipment with new generators and updated controls. 

• Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements – This project will replace the station’s wastewater 
pumps, variable frequency drives (VFDs), and electrical switchboard because they are at the end of 
their useful lives, and replacement parts are difficult to obtain because of lack of availability of 
original equipment and manufacturers’ support. 

• Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements (Depending on Site Conditions) – The study and 
environmental impacts assessment for improvements to the Old Alameda Creek Outfall, potentially 
enabling the District to enhance our existing State Water resources Control Board discharge permit. 

• Force Main Corrosion Repairs, Phase 3 – The project consists of removing and replacing manways 
and appurtenances of air release valves, blow offs and access manways; welding new steel 
components; sandblasting and painting / coating existing and new components; implementing 
biological control measures / BMPs and site restoration; access improvements to three sites; and 
bollard improvements and other miscellaneous repairs throughout the District’s service area. 

• Headworks Screens Replacement – This project will install new mechanical bar screens at the 
Headworks Building to improve removal of debris from the wastewater prior to the plant’s 
downstream processes, and to restore capacity and redundancy of the system. 

• Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement at Various Locations throughout the Tri-Cities – The project will 
install full-length cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) lining of damaged sewer mains at several locations in 
the District’s service area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143 of 172



 

 

DEBT SERVICE 

Debt service is related to capital projects and is accounted for in the Sewer Service Fund (Structural 
Renewal and Replacement [Fund 80]) and the Capacity Fund (Fund 90).  The District has nine 
outstanding loans from the State Water Resources Control Board’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
(SRF).  Details about debt service payments are presented below: 

 

Related Project 

Sewer Service Fund – 
Structural Renewal and 

Replacement Capacity Fund 
Total Debt 
Service – 
FY 2020 

Maturity 
Date FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 

Irvington Equalization $   681,123 $   681,123 $   227,041 $   227,041 $   908,164   8/30/2023 
Willow/Central Avenue 108,385 108,385 0 0 108,385 11/16/2027 
Lower Hetch Hetchy 139,634 139,634 0 0 139,634 11/17/2028 
Newark Pump Station 342,703 342,703 342,702 342,702 685,405   1/26/2030 
Cedar Blvd. Corridor 
Rehab. 

127,349 127,349 0 0 127,349   2/26/2030 

Primary Clarifier Rehab. 442,337 442,337 147,446 147,446 589,783   1/15/2033 
Substation 1 157,327 157,327 0 0 157,327   2/28/2032 
Boyce Road Lift Station 205,532 205,532 205,532 205,532 411,064   7/31/2033 
Thickener Control 
Building 

581,227 581,227 193,742 193,742 774,969   3/31/2037 

Total Debt Service $2,785,617 $2,785,617 $1,116,463 $1,116,463 $3,902,080  
 

144 of 172



                                                                                       SPECIAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES

Adopted Estimated Proposed
DESCRIPTION Budget Actual Estimated New $ Budget

FY19 FY19 Carryover (Provision) FY20
Administrative & Regulatory
Anticipated Biosolids Coalition Membership Dues $25,000 $0 $25,000 $0 $25,000
Anticipated Election Costs (Fremont, Newark & Union City; 164,200 
registered voters) 0 0 0 820,600 820,600
GIS JPA 27,000 27,000 0 27,000 27,000
IBB Labor Negotiations Facilitation 20,000 305 0 0 0
Public Outreach Programs 100,000 81,000 19,000 131,000 150,000
Public Information Program 90,000 51,000 39,000 36,000 75,000
Property Acquisition 0 0 0 1,500,000 1,500,000
Recruitment 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
Sub-Total Administrative & Regulatory $262,000 $159,305 $83,000 $2,544,600 $2,627,600

Studies & Other
Air Permitting Consultant Assistance 50,000 0 0 0 0
Alvarado Sub-Surface Investigation (Plant Groundwater Monitoring) 10,000 5,933 4,067 3,933 8,000
Financial Master Plan 25,000 10,000 15,000 10,000 25,000
Forcemain Condition Assessment 10,000 4,094 5,906 24,094 30,000
IT Master Plan 200,000 86,000 114,000 0 114,000
Lateral Pilot Program - Condition Assessment 25,000 14,775 0 0 0
Local Limits Study 10,000 0 0 0 0
MBR Pilot Program 100,000 0 0 0 0
Newark Basin Master Plan/PACP Update 225,000 255,751 0 30,000 30,000
Odor Control Alternatives Studies 100,000 171,637 0 50,000 50,000
Plant Asset Condition Assessment Update 50,000 23,689 0 0 0
Plant Master Plan 100,000 100,000 0 75,000 75,000
Plant Solids System/Capacity Assessment 0 8,821 0 0 0
Seismic Evaluation 8,000 0 0 0 0
Treatment Plant IT Network Master Plan 135,000 0 130,000 0 130,000
Water Reclamation Pilot Program (Fill Station) 100,000 0 0 0 0
ACWD/SFPUC Joint Reclaimed Water Study 0 0 0 95,000 95,000
Capacity Fee Study 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
CIP Front End Specs Update 0 0 0 100,000 100,000
Cogen Options Evaluation 0 0 0 150,000 150,000
Cost of Service Analysis (COSA) 0 0 0 85,000 85,000
Forcemain Geotech Investigation at Alameda Creek 0 0 0 100,000 100,000
Irvington Basin MP Update 0 0 0 60,000 60,000
Odor Control Pilot Study 0 0 0 250,000 250,000
Old Alameda Creek Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD) 0 0 0 300,000 300,000
Pump Stations Odor Control Study 0 0 0 75,000 75,000
Sub-Total Studies & Other 1,148,000 680,700 268,973 1,458,027 1,727,000

Total Special Projects $1,410,000 $840,005 $351,973 $4,002,627 $4,354,600

145 of 172



        Annual Contract Purchases of Supplies, Services, and Vehicle and 
Equipment Renewal /Replacement

Over $100,000
for Fiscal Year 2020

Estimated  
Expenditure

Supplies:
Sodium Hypochlorite, 1-year contract with successful bidder $686,000
Ferrous Chloride, 1-year contract with successful bidder 547,000
Hydrogen Peroxide, 1-year contract with Evoqua 487,000          
Polymer, emulsion, 2-year contract with 3 optional 1-year renewals 454,000          
Polymer, mannich, 2-year contract with 3 optional 1-year renewals 106,000

Total Supplies $2,280,000

Services:
CalPERS Retirement contribution payments for employees $5,412,301
State Water Resources Control Board - Debt payments for nine SRF loans 3,902,080       
CalPERS Medical - payments for employee coverage 3,515,632       
PG&E - Alvarado site ($1,500,000) and Newark P.S. ($245,000) 1,745,000       
EBDA Operations & Maintenance payments 1,614,002       
Biosolids, year four of five with Synagro 929,000          
OPEB Retiree Medical Trust payments (ADC)  908,022          
Gas Conditioning 350,000          
Insurance (Property & Contents, Fleet, General Liability) 323,500          
Musgraves Consulting LLC contract for Business Services 180,000          
DGS natural gas service, PG&E billed through DGS 160,000          
Grit screening and disposal, 1-year contract 110,000          

Total Services $19,149,537

Vehicle and Equipment Renewal/Replacement:
12" portable pump $130,000

Total Vehicles & Equipment $130,000

146 of 172



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage 250 250 250

800 1 Prog/Des Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops) 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 72,400 72,400

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repairs 200 1,500 1,600 3,300 3,300

800 3 FMC Storage 300 300 300

800 3 Des/Constr Plant Paving 200 250 300 200 950 200 200 200 200 200 1,950

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement 150 150 150

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0 150 150
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0 150 150

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50 300 350
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50 300 350

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150 900 1,050
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150 900 1,050

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750 200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700
Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550 0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950
Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500 200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities 700 10,450 42,500 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,550 200 300 1,100 0 350 0 200 0 200 0 79,900
Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities 0 50 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0 300 900 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 1,550

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 500 500 500 500 500 2,500 500 500 500 500 4,500

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation 50 1,000 1,050 1,050

800 2 Design Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 7,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin) 350 3,500 3,850 3,850

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin) 300 3,000 3,300 3,300

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin) 350 3,500 3,850 3,850

900 3 Stevenson at Davis St. 200 1,500 1,700 1,700

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250

Total Priority 1 Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
Total Priority 2 Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500
Total Priority 3 Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

Total Fund 800 - Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 850 5,000 500 22,050 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 31,550
Total Fund 900 - Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250 2,500 1,500 4,250
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250 2,500 1,500 4,250

800 2 Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Transport 300 500 150 150 1,100 150 150 150 1,550

900 1 Design Cherry St. PS 400 1,400 1,200 3,000 3,000

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington 75 250 550 875 875

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark 1,500 4,600 10,800 16,900 16,900

800 1 Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3 500 500 1,000 1,000

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4 550 500 1,050 1,050

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation 0 1,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 53,000

H:\BusServ\FAST\PFA\Budget (Districtwide)\FY 2020\Actual Budget Document\Items for Assembly\CIP FY 2020-2039_v5 1 of 4147 of 172



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

800 3 Hayward Marsh Decommissioning 100 1,000 1,100 1,100

800 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375 3,375
900 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375 3,375

800 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impr 100 1,050 1,600 2,750 2,750
900 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impr 100 1,050 1,600 2,750 2,750

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100 4,100
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100 4,100

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R 2,150 3,850 1,000 200 7,200 4,750 100 5,900 10,250 28,200

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 2,250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 4,750

800 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800 800
900 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800 800

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025 5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975

Total Priority 1 Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650
Total Priority 2 Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825 0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275
Total Priority 3 Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550 5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050

Total Fund 800 - Transport System 1,400 2,750 3,850 2,400 675 6,300 2,150 1,000 2,900 1,550 24,975 5,000 3,900 14,750 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 105,925
Total Fund 900 - Transport System 1,000 2,750 2,800 0 425 2,050 900 2,125 7,350 12,650 32,050 0 2,500 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,050

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Des/Costr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improveme 400 1,900 2,000 4,300 4,300

800 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500 1,500
900 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500 1,500

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200 4,200
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200 4,200

800 2 Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 2 500 3,400 3,900 3,900

800 2 Des/Constr Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2 100 700 800 800

800 2 Des/Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant 75 900 500 150 150 1,775 150 150 150 150 150 2,525

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300 3,300
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300 3,300

800 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250 8,250
900 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250 8,250

800 2 Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement 600 2,400 2,400 5,400 5,400

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550 650 1,200
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550 650 1,200

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500 600 750 1,850
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500 600 750 1,850

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100 1,100
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100 1,100

800 2 Contact Tank Improvements 250 250 250

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements 650 4,400 1,950 7,000 7,000

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement 0 600 3,400 1,400 5,400

800 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650 8,650
900 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650 8,650

H:\BusServ\FAST\PFA\Budget (Districtwide)\FY 2020\Actual Budget Document\Items for Assembly\CIP FY 2020-2039_v5 2 of 4148 of 172



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity 0 0

800 3 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 400 3,600 4,000 600 5,700 10,300

800 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 1,500 1,000 2,500 600 5,300 8,400

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab 0 450 4,150 4,600

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab 450 4,100 4,550 4,550

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab 450 4,300 4,750 4,750

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab 400 3,300 3,700 600 4,300

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab 0 550 5,200 5,750

900 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 7 2,000 13,000 10,000 25,000 25,000

800 3 Diffuser Replacement 0 950 750 1,700

800 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650 650
900 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650 650

800 2 Flares Replacement 700 5,300 6,000 6,000
900 2 Flares Replacement 0 0

800 2 Headworks Gates 0 500 3,500 4,000

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,680 420 2,100 2,100
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,120 280 1,400 1,400

800 2 MCC Replacement 100 900 50 500 1,550 1,550

800 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300 31,300
900 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300 31,300

800 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950 50,950
900 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950 50,950

800 1 MP - Effluent Facilities 2,000 3,000 21,400 21,400 47,800 47,800

900 1 MP - Plant Equalization Storage 550 1,650 17,300 19,500 19,500

800 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0 2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750
900 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0 2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements 850 1,700 7,500 5,700 1,500 17,250 400 3,000 1,300 7,000 4,400 7,500 3,700 3,500 800 6,300 55,150

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements 100 900 1,000 1,000

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 700 2,800 3,500 3,500
900 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 0 0

800 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 700 3,500 4,200 4,200
900 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 0 0

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0 250 2,000 2,750 5,000
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0 250 2,000 2,750 5,000

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100 150 2,000 500 1,000 3,750 200 300 4,500 1,150 2,650 400 200 0 400 0 13,550

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Projects 2,400 3,000 800 6,200 3,350 3,350 3,350 16,250

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775 775
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775 775

800 2 Des/Constr Plant Grating Replacement 50 50 50

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 4,500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 9,500

800 2 PLC Replacement 250 300 350 900 400 450 1,750

H:\BusServ\FAST\PFA\Budget (Districtwide)\FY 2020\Actual Budget Document\Items for Assembly\CIP FY 2020-2039_v5 3 of 4149 of 172



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 400 2,900 1,300 4,600 4,600
900 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 0 0

800 75 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 375 750 4,125 4,125 750 10,125 10,125
900 25 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 125 250 1,375 1,375 250 3,375 3,375

800 3 Reclaimed Water 0 0
900 3 Reclaimed Water 0 0

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 350 3,200 3,550 500 4,700 8,750

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 400 3,400 3,800 550 5,000 9,350

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures 200 300 300 300 1,100 300 300 300 300 300 2,600

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150 3,150
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150 3,150

800 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175 100 275
900 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175 100 275

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 1,500 12,500 10,000 4,000 28,000 28,000

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 3 0 2,300 14,500 7,200 24,000

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 100 800 350 1,250 1,250
900 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 0 0

800 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 150 1,000 500 1,650 1,650
900 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 0 0

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation 200 1,700 750 2,650 2,650

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 0 650 3,000 3,650

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners 500 3,000 4,000 500 8,000 8,000

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy 0 500 5,000 5,500

Total for TREATMENT PLANT 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825 7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500 1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975 6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350 500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant 9,830 33,370 44,775 29,450 72,350 64,125 14,175 17,675 23,550 7,900 317,200 6,600 14,500 15,750 11,250 14,700 12,500 17,850 16,550 49,100 55,550 531,550
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant 7,445 26,480 29,175 13,150 34,800 25,875 20,325 2,425 6,650 2,300 168,625 1,100 5,000 100 650 0 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 297,975

Project Type FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total
Administrative Facilities 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750 200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450

Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250
Transport System 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025 5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975
Treatment Plant 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825 7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

GRAND TOTAL 21,925 77,350 125,050 67,900 110,050 99,400 42,850 25,775 48,750 25,300 644,350 14,400 27,000 35,600 25,650 30,200 32,150 24,700 53,200 95,000 103,950 1,086,200

R&R (Fund 800) Total 13,480 48,070 92,925 54,750 74,825 71,475 21,625 21,025 33,250 10,350 441,775 13,300 19,200 33,100 25,000 30,050 32,150 19,800 27,700 51,050 55,800 748,925
Capacity (Fund 900) Total 8,445 29,280 32,125 13,150 35,225 27,925 21,225 4,750 15,500 14,950 202,575 1,100 7,800 2,500 650 150 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 337,275

Priority 1
Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700

Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500 1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
Total Priority 1 Projects 12,750 61,050 104,300 50,600 82,250 61,200 20,800 1,850 5,100 0 399,900 1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 409,800

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550 0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950

Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500
Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825 0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275

Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975 6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
Total Priority 2 Projects 8,975 15,550 15,650 14,150 20,750 33,650 16,000 19,425 37,400 24,800 206,350 7,500 20,300 18,000 9,550 9,650 8,900 6,350 5,100 3,650 6,800 302,150

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500 200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800

Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700
Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550 5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050

Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350 500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700
Total Priority 3 Projects 200 750 5,100 3,150 7,050 4,550 6,050 4,500 6,250 500 38,100 5,700 6,700 17,600 14,200 15,250 23,250 18,350 48,100 89,850 97,150 374,250

H:\BusServ\FAST\PFA\Budget (Districtwide)\FY 2020\Actual Budget Document\Items for Assembly\CIP FY 2020-2039_v5 4 of 4150 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 711341210171072

$3,162.08
$204,557.17

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS5/9/2019 143

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE11341228

$201,395.09

5/9/2019 143

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS176416171076

$56,015.61
$75,967.53

CAROLLO ENGINEERS5/9/2019 143

NEWARK EQUALIZATION STORAGE FACILITIES176446

$19,951.92

5/9/2019 143

1 CHEVY BOLT PURCHASE10937171272

$37,788.80
$75,577.60

WINNER CHEVROLET INC5/23/2019 123

1 CHEVY BOLT PURCHASE10938

$37,788.80

5/23/2019 123

45,360 LBS CLARIFLOC C-62671347007171171

$50,494.49
$50,494.49

POLYDYNE INC5/16/2019 110

SERV TO 05/01/19 CHERRY ST PS380420190502171167

$206.76
$43,584.52

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC5/16/2019 170

SERV TO 05/01/19 PASEO PADRE PS666720190508

$350.46

5/16/2019 170

SERV TO 04/22/2019 PLANT170120190502

$42,733.92

5/16/2019 110

SERV TO 05/01/19 CATHODIC PROJECT096020190502

$37.34

5/16/2019 170

SERV TO 05/01/19 FREMONT PS898220190508

$200.17

5/16/2019 170

SERV TO 05/01/19 HAYWARD MARSH892820190508

$55.87

5/16/2019 110

MONTHLY CAL CARD STMT - APRIL 2019533620190422171181

$37,752.50
$37,752.50

US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM5/16/2019

CONTROL BOX NO. 1 IMPROVEMENTS162219171186

$31,852.17
$31,852.17

WOODARD & CURRAN INC5/16/2019 143

AIR DUCT CLEANING10659171131

$27,600.00
$27,600.00

WINTERS CLEANING & STOVE WORKS5/9/2019 121

CREDIT FOR DISCOUNT >5000 TONS & APRIL 2019 BIOSOLIDS DISP30105196171260

$23,073.20
$23,073.20

SYNAGRO WEST LLC5/23/2019 110

Page 1 of 19151 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

APRIL 2019 DENTAL3386367C171081

$16,567.63
$18,865.56

DELTA DENTAL SERVICE5/9/2019

APRIL 2019 DENTAL3386367A

$2,297.93

5/9/2019

SERV TO 04/26/19 NEWARK PS761520190426171110

$16,496.00
$16,521.31

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC5/9/2019 170

SERV TO 04/23/19 CS TRAINING TRAILER224720190430

$25.31

5/9/2019 110

ASTD LUMBERJACK 300 SERIES 8", 10", 12", 15" CUTTING CHAINS613306171248

$1,315.50
$15,198.60

NOZZTEQ INC5/23/2019 121

LUMBERJACK 200 SERIES REBUILD (SERIAL#466)613302

$958.90

5/23/2019 121

1 EA LUMBER JACK 300 SERIES 8-15" ADJUSTABLE KIT613280

$12,924.20

5/23/2019 121

CAST IRON PIPE LINING PHASE VII2700CPRET171109

$14,022.45
$14,022.45

NORCAL PIPELINE SERVICES5/9/2019 143

4948.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE936001171124

$3,551.31
$13,958.53

UNIVAR USA INC5/9/2019 110

4801.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE936160

$3,445.82

5/9/2019 110

5001.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE935636

$3,589.35

5/9/2019 110

4698.7 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE935355

$3,372.05

5/9/2019 110

4798.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE938688171265

$3,443.96
$13,885.20

UNIVAR USA INC5/23/2019 110

4801.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE937699

$3,445.54

5/23/2019 110

4798.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE938329

$3,443.45

5/23/2019 110

4949.80 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE938618

$3,552.25

5/23/2019 110

GAS SKID MEDIA CHANGE OUT22600171172

$12,676.00
$12,676.00

PROMINENT SYSTEMS INC5/16/2019 171

2019 GOVERNMENT AUDIT31817171235

$11,660.00
$11,660.00

LANCE, SOLL & LUNGHARD LLP5/23/2019 130

20' CONEX CONTAINER PER QUOTE FROM TPU30282171178

$10,865.25
$10,865.25

TRANSPORT PRODUCTS UNLIMITED5/16/2019 121

Page 2 of 19152 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

42,680 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE35163171143

$5,245.08
$10,787.12

CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES5/16/2019 110

43,500 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE35154

$5,542.04

5/16/2019 110

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL MANAGEMENT231638171188

$10,362.33
$10,362.33

ADVANCED CHEMICAL TRANSPORT5/23/2019 172

SACGISA308472171154

$10,204.00
$10,204.00

CITY OF FREMONT5/16/2019 173

ASTD PARTS AND MATERIALS104373171111

$9,976.50
$9,976.50

PIIAN SYSTEMS LLC5/9/2019 170

1 FLEX A SEAL MIX PUMP 4-529527171192

$9,553.37
$9,553.37

ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP5/23/2019 170

LABORATORY INFORMATION MGMT SYSTEM1603171086

$9,500.00
$9,500.00

ETHOSOFT INC5/9/2019

1 AB 1 ROTORK AIR CONTROL VALVE242359171222

$8,727.45
$8,727.45

FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY5/23/2019 170

1 CENTERVILLE PROJECTORRVB5309171207

$3,696.62
$8,719.90

CDW GOVERNMENT LLC5/23/2019 173

1 CENTERVILLE PROJECTORRWF1659

$235.00

5/23/2019 173

2 FY19 Q4 PRINTERSRWK4251

$4,788.28

5/23/2019 173

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - MAY 201937432220190501171102

$8,588.51
$8,588.51

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP5/9/2019

25 MANHOLE FRAMES AND COVERS17913009085171079

$8,486.15
$8,486.15

CORIX WATER PRODUCTS INC5/9/2019 121

4800.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE937111171179

$3,444.82
$6,997.79

UNIVAR USA INC5/16/2019 110

4950.8 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE937118

$3,552.97

5/16/2019 110

SPECIAL COUNSEL - MARCH 2019240053171201

$1,638.00
$6,788.69

BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP5/23/2019 150

GENERAL LEGAL - MARCH 2019240058

$3,742.01

5/23/2019 150

CIP - MARCH 2019240054

$917.28

5/23/2019 150

CIP - MARCH 2019240052

$491.40

5/23/2019

Page 3 of 19153 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

COATINGS INSPECTION - DIG 3 REHAB PROJECT6670.1171067

$6,672.25
$6,672.25

BAY AREA COATING CONSULTANT5/9/2019 143

48 CLAY FITTINGS720621171105

$2,299.48
$6,392.19

MISSION CLAY PRODUCTS LLC5/9/2019 120

25 ASTD CLAY FITTINGS720631

$1,841.22

5/9/2019 120

46 ASTD CLAY FITTINGS720571

$2,251.49

5/9/2019 120

41,740 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391348244171250

$5,689.56
$5,689.56

POLYDYNE INC5/23/2019 110

SERV TO: 5/03/19 - FREMONT BLVD4017275220190506171135

$157.66
$5,403.11

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT5/16/2019 170

SERV TO: 05/03/19 - FREMONT BLVD4017420220190506

$58.85

5/16/2019 170

SERV TO: 5/03/19 - FREMONT BLVD4017274120190506

$5,186.60

5/16/2019 170

42,720 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE35176171203

$5,394.50
$5,394.50

CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES5/23/2019 110

EMERGENCY OUTFALL OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS11341780171141

$5,302.91
$5,302.91

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS5/16/2019 143

LABOR & EMPLOYMENT LAW FEES29753171271

$5,246.00
$5,246.00

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH LLP5/23/2019 132

HAZMAT CONSULTING SERVICES2000199216171059

$5,161.25
$5,161.25

AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC5/9/2019 171

39,600 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE35118171074

$5,000.51
$5,000.51

CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES5/9/2019 110

1 SOCKET SET94267244171165

$68.05
$4,901.18

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC5/16/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS94691556

$696.67

5/16/2019

1 MOBILE EASY-STORE ADJUSTABLE CRANE94716075

$3,628.68

5/16/2019 170

2 EA LARGE-CELL BATTERIES94654440

$114.37

5/16/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS94381039

$393.41

5/16/2019

2 RECLAIM PUMP 3 AND 5 CHECK VALVES14419171211

$4,820.86
$4,820.86

CRUMP & CO INC5/23/2019 170

Page 4 of 19154 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES - MAY 201943589171213

$1,440.00
$4,684.00

DEL CONTE'S LANDSCAPING INC5/23/2019 122

VINE REMOVAL313367

$2,250.00

5/23/2019 122

WEED ABATEMENT WORK MAY 201943652

$994.00

5/23/2019 170

GOLD - FULL MAINTENANCE MAY 2019-APRIL 20203004571285171177

$4,583.41
$4,583.41

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP5/16/2019 122

CUSTOMER SERVICE GIS NEEDS ASSESSMENT190559171224

$4,575.00
$4,575.00

GEOSPAGO INC5/23/2019 173

LAB SUPPLIES8086026490171183

$21.74
$4,496.38

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC5/16/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8086032107

$205.23

5/16/2019

BOD INCUBATOR8086038228

$3,973.84

5/16/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8086018788

$63.59

5/16/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8086022726

$231.98

5/16/2019 113

PLANT GIS ENHANCEMENTS TO GEOCORTEX2019129171221

$4,360.00
$4,360.00

FARALLON GEOGRAPHICS INC5/23/2019 173

04/19 - ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES20190410171193

$1,797.82
$4,096.82

AMAZON.COM LLC5/23/2019

WIRELESS VIDEO EQUIPMENT FOR SEWER WORK594955398577

$2,299.00

5/23/2019 173

12 EA COGEN SPARK PLUGS201681901171223

$4,071.12
$4,071.12

GATEWAY PRODUCTS GROUP INC5/23/2019

GRIT HAULING 04/02, 04/08, 04/11 & 04/15/201919041706171117

$3,247.48
$4,008.00

S&S TRUCKING5/9/2019 110

GRIT HAULING 04/04/201919041805

$760.52

5/9/2019 110

1 EA ODOR SCRUBBER DUCT WRAP T FLEX 18"342967171161

$3,877.06
$3,877.06

KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES5/16/2019 170

Page 5 of 19155 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV: 03/20/19 - 04/19/1912935571171137

$3,580.81
$3,814.50

AT&T5/16/2019

SERV: 03/20/19 - 04/19/1912935569

$20.61

5/16/2019

SERV: 03/20/19 - 04/19/1912935593

$213.08

5/16/2019

SURVEY 123 IPACS INTEGRATION STUDY1900963171197

$3,750.00
$3,750.00

ATKINS NORTH AMERICA INC5/23/2019 173

REFUND # 219689466171133

$3,327.50
$3,327.50

WOODSTOCK BOWERS LLC5/9/2019

MAY 2019 VISION STMT20190501171129

$3,152.16
$3,152.16

VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA5/9/2019

1 EA TEFLON/FIBERGLASS BELT 12IN W X 50 FT6325171097

$3,127.41
$3,127.41

KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES5/9/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS68561171134

$916.61
$3,101.87

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC5/16/2019 134

2 PIPE PATCH KITS WINTER68563

$2,185.26

5/16/2019

ROCKWELL PLC TRAINING313087400171073

$3,014.00
$3,014.00

BUCKLES SMITH ELECTRIC5/9/2019 173

SERV TO 05/06/19 BOYCE RD PS013720190513171249

$2,743.10
$2,743.10

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC5/23/2019 170

CAMERA REPAIRS AND PARTS43141171130

$2,661.46
$2,661.46

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC5/9/2019 121

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - MAY 2019916003826302171115

$2,611.87
$2,611.87

REPUBLIC SERVICES #9165/9/2019 120

REFUND # 2200810188171255

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

RUDOLPH & SLETTEN5/23/2019

WIRELESS SERV 03/21/2019 - 04/20/20199828580925171128

$2,487.06
$2,487.06

VERIZON WIRELESS5/9/2019

Page 6 of 19156 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 REDUCER9135976851171090

$21.64
$2,475.97

GRAINGER INC5/9/2019 122

2 FEMALE DISCONNECT, BLUE9132528499

$48.00

5/9/2019 170

CREDIT FOR 5 DUST PLUGS INV 91359768699139672639

$-67.50

5/9/2019

6 ASTD FEMALE UNIONS9135139385

$110.55

5/9/2019 170

1 E-STOP PUSH BUTTON9132958068

$23.28

5/9/2019 122

5 DUST PLUGS9135976869

$67.50

5/9/2019

4 FIRE EXTINGUISHER COVERS9132576548

$54.56

5/9/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9135414283

$648.47

5/9/2019 122

10 PACKS DISPOSABLE GLOVES9131525660

$120.73

5/9/2019

3 ADAPTERS9133234469

$27.86

5/9/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9136674356

$511.51

5/9/2019 134

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9132796690

$909.37

5/9/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS1833660001171252

$2,458.40
$2,458.40

R&B COMPANY5/23/2019 121

Page 7 of 19157 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 SURGE PROTECTOR OUTLET STRIP9147379813171227

$8.15
$2,329.30

GRAINGER INC5/23/2019 110

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9146440822

$457.32

5/23/2019 134

1 PK CLEAN/STRIP DISCS9148765143

$175.53

5/23/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9147366026

$581.67

5/23/2019 170

5 PINTS PIPE CEMENT9147379805

$102.51

5/23/2019

1 GAS PRESSURE WASHER9145846805

$894.75

5/23/2019 110

5 PR INSOLES9146104352

$109.37

5/23/2019

GRIT HAULING 04/18, 04/22, 04/25/201919050116171256

$2,296.93
$2,296.93

S&S TRUCKING5/23/2019 110

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721744594401171119

$333.68
$2,283.20

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL5/9/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721333092801

$508.78

5/9/2019 134

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721573192201

$324.82

5/9/2019

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721656899101

$758.39

5/9/2019

JANITORIAL & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES721589970501

$357.53

5/9/2019 134

SALES & USE TAX 04/01/2019 - 04/30/201920190430171144

$2,199.38
$2,199.38

STATE OF CALIFORNIA5/16/2019

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 7 - PERMIT4EA50.2171066

$2,170.00
$2,170.00

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MGMT DIST5/9/2019 143

1248 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE939711171140

$678.13
$2,028.23

BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC5/16/2019 121

2496 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE939710

$1,350.10

5/16/2019 121

CAMERA PARTS43201171184

$1,957.60
$1,957.60

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC5/16/2019 134

Page 8 of 19158 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21655229171146

$784.42
$1,782.80

CARBOLINE COMPANY5/16/2019 170

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21654400

$998.38

5/16/2019 170

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - UL CERTIFICATE129663171263

$350.00
$1,747.07

TRI-SIGNAL INTEGRATION INC5/23/2019 123

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - MONTHLY CHARGE MONITORING AGREEMENT129662

$266.67

5/23/2019 123

ANNUAL FIRE ALARM TEST & INSPECTION129661

$1,130.40

5/23/2019 123

04/01/19 - 04/30/19 GUARD AT DISTRICT GATE12194171194

$1,716.00
$1,716.00

AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY5/23/2019 121

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS94047386171104

$415.45
$1,660.09

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC5/9/2019 122

6 EA MINIATURE COUNTERTOP SINKS93584185

$285.56

5/9/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS94027037

$526.91

5/9/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS94149862

$143.05

5/9/2019

4 EA EXTRA-LONG REACH PLASTIC LADLES93741711

$249.48

5/9/2019 111

2 ALUMINUM PLATES93346390

$39.64

5/9/2019 170

LONGWATCH ANNUAL SUPPORT5021902171232

$1,595.00
$1,595.00

INDUSTRIAL VIDEO & CONTROL5/23/2019 173

EXP REIMB:  WEFTEC REGIS (SEPT 19) & AIRFARE (CHICAGO)20190522171236

$1,546.96
$1,546.96

CONGNA LI5/23/2019 113

DIGESTER NO. 3 INSP & REHAB176596171206

$1,526.85
$1,526.85

CAROLLO ENGINEERS5/23/2019 143

ADDITIONAL TRAINING DAY2680171112

$1,500.00
$1,500.00

PIPELINE RENEWAL TECHNOLOGIES5/9/2019 123

04/19 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS20190425171212

$1,434.06
$1,467.75

DALE HARDWARE INC5/23/2019

6 PURDY ROLLERS325305

$33.69

5/23/2019 134

1 GROUNDWATER PUMP276204171254

$1,386.00
$1,386.00

RF MACDONALD CO5/23/2019 170

Page 9 of 19159 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

KEMP PROXY ANNUAL SUPPORTRXR8024171077

$1,327.00
$1,327.00

CDW GOVERNMENT LLC5/9/2019 173

STANDBY GENERATOR TROUBLESHOOTING3221171068

$1,324.00
$1,324.00

BAY POWER LLC5/9/2019 170

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - MAY 20191940172171244

$1,245.43
$1,245.43

MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP5/23/2019 171

REFUND # 2200010163171266

$700.00
$1,200.00

USA ROOTER & PLUMBING5/23/2019

REFUND # 2199810163.1

$500.00

5/23/2019

1 DEPTH-LIMITING STOP COLLAR95330609171240

$21.36
$1,194.62

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC5/23/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS95197796

$522.29

5/23/2019 120

2 EQUIPMENT-COOLING FAN KITS94654439

$101.60

5/23/2019 170

4 EA SEALED LARGE-CELL BATTERIES94777577

$101.38

5/23/2019 170

2 SATD VITON FLUORELASTOMER O-RING CORD STOCK95186646

$410.71

5/23/2019 170

2 PACKS ENGRAVING PLATE95243163

$37.28

5/23/2019 170

1 CHEMICAL TRANSFER MIXING PUMP43249171268

$511.70
$1,188.30

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC5/23/2019 121

1 CONTROL BOX & 2 FOAM COAT NOZZLES43250

$676.60

5/23/2019 121

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - APRIL 201920190425171107

$1,183.42
$1,183.42

NAPA AUTO PARTS5/9/2019

55 GAL DRUMS SOLVENT MEK29224171173

$1,182.86
$1,182.86

PROTECTION ENGINEERING5/16/2019 170

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - APRIL 2019APMN779171233

$804.81
$1,170.32

IRON MOUNTAIN5/23/2019 141

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - APRIL 2019APKJ524

$365.51

5/23/2019 141

ARCGIS ONLINE USER LICENSES93620458171219

$1,150.00
$1,150.00

ESRI INC5/23/2019 173

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL20190429171210

$1,052.73
$1,052.73

COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC5/23/2019 170

Page 10 of 19160 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

NEWARK BASIN MASTER PLAN/PACP UPDATE161781171132

$1,038.64
$1,038.64

WOODARD & CURRAN INC5/9/2019 143

TEMP LABOR-THACH, P. WK END 04/14/201915026967171098

$1,036.20
$1,036.20

KELLY SERVICES INC5/9/2019 113

TEMP LABOR-THACH, P. WK END 04/21/201916024005171162

$1,036.20
$1,036.20

KELLY SERVICES INC5/16/2019 113

APRIL PEST CONTROL667633171064

$1,005.00
$1,005.00

A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC5/9/2019 170

REFUND # 2200510198171234

$500.00
$1,000.00

JC'S GREEN PLUMBING5/23/2019

REFUND # 2200410198.1

$500.00

5/23/2019

EMERGENCY STANDBY RETAINER21090516171239

$1,000.00
$1,000.00

MCGUIRE & HESTER5/23/2019 143

MISC. BOILER REPAIRS13354171082

$966.00
$966.00

DIABLO BOILER & STEAM INC5/9/2019 170

CYLINDER RENTAL9961858157171189

$866.69
$962.23

AIRGAS NCN5/23/2019 170

1 CYL AR CD25409088410198

$95.54

5/23/2019 134

MAR 2019 SERVICE FEES2522190351171138

$959.95
$959.95

BANK OF NEW YORK5/16/2019 136

SERV:  03/13/19 - 04/12/1912904046171065

$42.82
$939.42

AT&T5/9/2019

SERV:  03/13/19 - 04/12/1912904044

$743.37

5/9/2019

SERV:  03/13/19 - 04/12/1912904048

$87.36

5/9/2019

SERV:  03/13/19 - 04/12/1912904047

$65.87

5/9/2019

TREVEL REIMB: NACWA CLASS PER DIEM/AIRFARE/TAXI20190514171170

$909.00
$909.00

RIC PIPKIN5/16/2019 110

COATINGS INSPECTION - DIG 3 REHAB PROJECT6726171198

$900.00
$900.00

BAY AREA COATING CONSULTANT5/23/2019 143

REPLACEMENT PIPELOGIX LICENSE DONGLES4862171113

$878.00
$878.00

PIPELOGIX INC5/9/2019 173

10.48 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R1998809171092

$870.87
$870.87

HANSON AGGREGATES INC5/9/2019 123

Page 11 of 19161 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 SINGLE PANE GLASS REPLACEMENT1311171116

$848.00
$848.00

ROAD RUNNER GLASS & MIRROR INC5/9/2019 121

2 EA WASTE GAS BURNER FLAME CHECK3957171242

$842.31
$842.31

M-I-C INC5/23/2019 170

ELEVATOR SERVICE CONTRACT5001065232171261

$837.00
$837.00

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP5/23/2019 122

5 DUST PLUGS9138592481171156

$55.26
$834.03

GRAINGER INC5/16/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9139494398

$322.01

5/16/2019

1 EA MECHANICAL COUNTER & MEASURING WHEEL9144037554

$456.76

5/16/2019 122

8 MSB, OCB,  IPS HYPO PUMP COVER GASKETS8251171202

$827.54
$827.54

BURLINGAME ENGINEERS INC5/23/2019 170

1 POWER PRUNER38888171176

$655.49
$823.30

SCHAA'S LAWNMOWER SALES & SERV5/16/2019 123

1 MICRO SAW CHAIN38845

$167.81

5/16/2019 123

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/13/1998XW53159171125

$769.03
$769.03

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/9/2019 136

9.17 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R2001797171158

$763.04
$763.04

HANSON AGGREGATES INC5/16/2019 123

GRIT BIN RENTAL 04/01/201919042630171175

$750.00
$750.00

S&S TRUCKING5/16/2019 110

7 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1162393171217

$725.00
$725.00

ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC5/23/2019 113

ULTRASOUND ANNUAL CALIBRATION143480171122

$710.66
$710.66

UE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED5/9/2019 170

1 PISTOL GRIP CHIPPER70329171060

$466.42
$698.23

AIR & TOOL ENGINEERING COMPANY5/9/2019 120

ASTD TOOL SUPPLIES70455

$231.81

5/9/2019 120

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE4029093358171145

$686.41
$686.41

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC5/16/2019 136

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102168375171136

$369.51
$665.46

AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC5/16/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102168359

$295.95

5/16/2019

Page 12 of 19162 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

AWS CLOUD STORAGE - MARCH 2019428982171151

$660.99
$660.99

DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC5/16/2019 173

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL1102165071171063

$47.58
$658.46

AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC5/9/2019 122

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102165031

$251.49

5/9/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102165050

$359.39

5/9/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102171712171195

$362.01
$613.08

AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC5/23/2019

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102171695

$251.07

5/23/2019

REPLACE 6 MANHOLE MONITOR BATTERIES1028640171243

$483.00
$609.00

MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC5/23/2019 120

RETURN FREIGHT FOR MANHOLE MONITOR BATTERIES1028638

$126.00

5/23/2019 120

SERVICE CALL: BLDG 82 COOLING AC #3190402493171190

$600.00
$600.00

AIRTECH MECHANICAL INC5/23/2019 123

2 TONER13485480171070

$462.47
$599.12

BLAISDELL'S5/9/2019 120

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13483590

$74.03

5/9/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13478420

$62.62

5/9/2019 120

METRO MOBILE ANNUAL RADIO SERVICE - MAY 2019190551171241

$599.08
$599.08

METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC5/23/2019 170

12 GASKETS / 36 O-RINGS6001171215

$597.51
$597.51

ENERGY CHOICE INC5/23/2019

LEGAL SERVICES - CAL-PERS UNIFORM APPEAL1476852171237

$594.00
$594.00

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE5/23/2019 132

40 STRUT STRAPS5206514171191

$569.35
$569.35

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY5/23/2019 134

WATER SERVICE 04/07/19 - 05/06/1909E0036018380171253

$557.68
$557.68

NESTLE WATERS NO. AMERICA READYREFRESH5/23/2019 120

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS1833773001171114

$546.23
$546.23

R&B COMPANY5/9/2019 121

PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT20190513171169

$545.22
$545.22

PETTY CASH5/16/2019

Page 13 of 19163 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

WIRELESS INTERNET BACKUP - MAY1164371720171262

$528.30
$528.30

TPX COMMUNICATIONS5/23/2019

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES603418845171230

$522.99
$522.99

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO5/23/2019

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1161205171084

$60.00
$510.00

ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC5/9/2019 113

1 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1161207

$20.00

5/9/2019 113

16 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1160754

$430.00

5/9/2019 113

TRAVEL REIMB: CWEA CONF PER DIEM/MILEAGE/MISC20190502171071

$505.33
$505.33

LAURIE BRENNER5/9/2019 130

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES603403299171093

$501.11
$501.11

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO5/9/2019

REFUND # 219679895.1171101

$500.00
$500.00

JAMES LASSETER5/9/2019

REFUND # 1019010190171120

$500.00
$500.00

STAR ROOTER AND PLUMBING5/9/2019 120

REFUND # 219919329171163

$500.00
$500.00

SATISH KUMAR5/16/2019 141

REFUND # 219929925171174

$500.00
$500.00

ROOTER HERO5/16/2019 141

REFUND # 2199510232171185

$500.00
$500.00

RAYMOND WONG5/16/2019 141

REFUND # 2200710221171187

$500.00
$500.00

ABC PLUMBING AND DRAIN5/23/2019

REFUND # 220119569.1171199

$500.00
$500.00

BAY REALTY INVESTMENTS LLC5/23/2019

REFUND # 2200910064171245

$500.00
$500.00

MONARCH PLUMBING & ROOTER INC5/23/2019

REFUND # 2200110202171259

$500.00
$500.00

STAR ROOTER & PLUMBING INC5/23/2019

WIRELESS SERV 04/02/19-05/01/19 & (6) IPADS9829168510171182

$496.70
$496.70

VERIZON WIRELESS5/16/2019

ORANGE TOW JACKETS FOR ROLLINS & HOGUE22515171150

$307.28
$489.82

DANOC MANUFACTURING5/16/2019 121

2 SAFETY JACKETS22331

$182.54

5/16/2019 121

Page 14 of 19164 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

DI WATER SYSTEM903971824171087

$489.49
$489.49

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES5/9/2019 170

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM203632171247

$345.76
$470.44

NAYLOR STEEL INC5/23/2019 122

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM203730

$124.68

5/23/2019 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS3N4498171228

$461.51
$461.51

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS5/23/2019

5 FLOW METERS24059399171166

$453.18
$453.18

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC5/16/2019

PLANT MAINTENANCE - MAY 201975637171209

$431.86
$431.86

CITYLEAF INC5/23/2019 150

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS341732171100

$396.48
$429.41

KLEEN BLAST ABRASIVES5/9/2019 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS341752

$32.93

5/9/2019 170

SAFETY SHOES: R. CULBERTSON/ M.LOTHIAN22332500171069

$416.00
$416.00

BECK'S SHOES5/9/2019

4 DZ G-TEK GLOVES4645675171164

$159.16
$396.53

MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC5/16/2019

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS4644049

$237.37

5/16/2019

TRAVEL EXP: APA CONGRESS PER DIEM20190417171085

$393.00
$393.00

MARIELA ESPINOSA5/9/2019 136

LEGAL SERVICES - CATHODIC PROTECTION IMPROVEMENTS - PLANT105858171103

$192.50
$385.00

MCINERNEY & DILLON, P.C.5/9/2019 143

LEGAL SERVICES - DIGESTER 3 REHABILITATION105859

$192.50

5/9/2019 143

12 ASTD PVC FITTINGS3N4185171159

$369.29
$369.29

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS5/16/2019 170

APRIL 2019 SERVICE FEE147355171251

$361.52
$361.52

PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC5/23/2019

4 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS598155171075

$349.20
$349.20

CALTEST ANALYTICAL LABORATORY5/9/2019 113

4 INTERCOOLER GASKETS4016008171269

$342.71
$342.71

WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS5/23/2019 170

1 CORDLESS IMPACT WRENCH24058512171106

$327.13
$327.13

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC5/9/2019 170

Page 15 of 19165 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

1 MICRO SAW CHAIN38995171257

$283.49
$321.95

SCHAA'S LAWNMOWER SALES & SERV5/23/2019 123

1 MICRO SAW CHAIN38939

$38.46

5/23/2019 123

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13507390171139

$40.14
$314.92

BLAISDELL'S5/16/2019 141

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13500930

$167.52

5/16/2019 120

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13514280

$36.26

5/16/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13506320

$25.17

5/16/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13521060

$25.23

5/16/2019 144

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13528240

$6.89

5/16/2019 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13511210

$13.71

5/16/2019 130

FIRST AID & AED SUPPLIES25770171231

$301.64
$301.64

ICE SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC5/23/2019

156 7-LB BAGS OF ICE484978838171155

$296.54
$296.54

GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC5/16/2019 144

COMPETENT PERSON,TRENCHING & SHORING-PETROSYAN10726171121

$275.00
$275.00

TURNER SAFETY5/9/2019 141

RENTAL: J. RODRIGUES, PALM SPRINGS, CA90113861765171216

$269.49
$269.49

ENTERPRISE GOV 43-15148615/23/2019 121

EXP REIMB: CWEA MEMBERSHIP20190502171088

$263.00
$263.00

MICHAEL FULKERSON5/9/2019 111

2 TIRES1841086895171089

$218.40
$218.40

GOODYEAR COMM TIRE & SERV CTRS5/9/2019 122

2 EA FORMAZIN TURBIDITY STANDARD11443453171157

$217.16
$217.16

HACH COMPANY5/16/2019

EXP REIMB: NETWORK DEVICE BACKUP SOFTWARE20190522171226

$213.00
$213.00

MICHAEL GILL5/23/2019 173

1 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1378171083

$210.00
$210.00

ELITE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES5/9/2019 110

11 SAFETY VESTS24059592171246

$199.96
$199.96

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC5/23/2019

Page 16 of 19166 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

EXP REIMB: CWEA MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL20190411171258

$188.00
$188.00

SAM SOTH5/23/2019 111

FIRST AID KITS & AED SERVICE25769171096

$175.00
$175.00

ICE SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC5/9/2019 132

FREIGHT CHARGE29739592171127

$168.83
$168.83

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/9/2019 170

1 LINER CARRIER16218171270

$165.00
$165.00

WESTERN MACHINE & FAB INC5/23/2019 170

7 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1780305171142

$164.75
$164.75

BUREAU VERITAS/ANALYSTS INC5/16/2019 170

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL - V HOLSLAG12060620190403171225

$150.00
$150.00

GFOA-GOV FIN OFFICERS ASSOC5/23/2019 136

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM203392171108

$144.54
$144.54

NAYLOR STEEL INC5/9/2019 171

TRAVEL REIMB: APA CONGRESS MILEAGE/PARKING/GAS20190520171218

$125.86
$125.86

MARIELA ESPINOSA5/23/2019

PEST CONTROL - BLDG 83 WASP NEST670667171196

$125.00
$125.00

A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC5/23/2019 170

MAY 2019 PAGER SERVICE20190430171118

$123.94
$123.94

SPOK INC5/9/2019 141

REKEY 2 LOCKS310176171208

$120.98
$120.98

CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH5/23/2019 120

PE LICENSE RENEWAL - R. PIPKIN20190520171204

$115.00
$115.00

STATE OF CALIFORNIA5/23/2019 110

12 KEYSTONE IGNITOR5205698171062

$112.33
$112.33

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY5/9/2019 170

UI 1ST Q 2019 - B. ESTRADA1700937312171152

$109.00
$109.00

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT5/16/2019 140

EXP REIMB: WEBINAR REGISTRATION20190508171148

$99.00
$99.00

MITCHELL COSTELLO5/16/2019 110

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - APRIL 2019768520190426171094

$96.41
$96.41

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES5/9/2019 170

3 NEW HIRE FINGERPRINTS373578171205

$96.00
$96.00

STATE OF CALIFORNIA5/23/2019 132

MONTHLY CYLINDER RENTAL - APRIL 201977931168171238

$89.22
$89.22

MATHESON TRI-GAS INC5/23/2019 170

Page 17 of 19167 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13538461171200

$42.18
$86.66

BLAISDELL'S5/23/2019 120

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES13538460

$44.48

5/23/2019 120

1 HEARING TEST/1VACCINE116530652171153

$84.00
$84.00

FREMONT URGENT CARE CENTER5/16/2019 132

EXP REIMB: ADMIN PROFESSIONALS DAY LUNCH - TPO20190507171091

$77.31
$77.31

TIMOTHY GRILLO5/9/2019 110

SESSION REG: G. CALANOG20190506171080

$70.00
$70.00

CWEA5/9/2019 113

SEMINAR REG: D. JACKSON20190509171149

$70.00
$70.00

CWEA5/16/2019 113

1 SPRING CAGE310145171147

$68.76
$68.76

CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH5/16/2019 122

ASTD PAINT SUPPLIES62600000160574171099

$16.74
$67.36

KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY5/9/2019 170

ASTD PAINT SUPPLIES62600000160340

$50.62

5/9/2019 170

JUN 2019 - SERVICE FEE615320190520171214

$65.91
$65.91

DISH NETWORK5/23/2019

LAB SUPPLIES8086107660171267

$37.05
$58.79

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC5/23/2019 113

LAB SUPPLIES8086103664

$21.74

5/23/2019 113

WATER SERV 03/08/19 - 05/08/191516053171229

$49.43
$49.43

HAYWARD WATER SYSTEM5/23/2019 110

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9087802302171061

$48.65
$48.65

AIRGAS NCN5/9/2019 122

2 CS TISSUES603411256171160

$44.32
$44.32

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO5/16/2019

COURIER SVCS: 1 BOARDMEMBER DELIVERY - 04/03/19416119171123

$42.00
$42.00

ULTRAEX LLC5/9/2019 141

COURIER SVCS: 1 BOARDMEMBER DELIVERY - 04/17/19416386171264

$42.00
$42.00

ULTRAEX LLC5/23/2019 141

6 GAL OIL MIX471103171078

$29.73
$29.73

CENTERVILLE SAW AND TOOL5/9/2019 123

2019 HEARING AND RESPIRATOR TESTS262635171220

$24.75
$24.75

EXAMINETICS5/23/2019 132

Page 18 of 19168 of 172



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/04/2019-05/24/2019

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

10 1/3 X 3 PVC NIPPLE THREADED BOTH ENDS5303967171168

$22.62
$22.62

PACIFIC MECHANICAL SUPPLY5/16/2019

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/27/1998XW53179171180

$13.23
$13.23

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/16/2019 136

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/20/201998XW53169171126

$10.43
$10.43

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/9/2019 136

1 EA 8 FTX-S5845282171095

$1.79
$1.79

HOSE & FITTINGS ETC5/9/2019 122

 19

 86

 1

 223

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 1

 330 

 201,395.09

 480,829.27

 5,074,677.50

 1,184,832.08

-16,744.44

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 1,043,786.56

 48,493.38

 265,827.65

 524,908.36

 204,557.17

 1,043,786.56

 118

 75

 20

 1

 214

Page 19 of 19169 of 172



 

Hayward rate hike proposed for 
water and sewer services  
Increases needed to help pay for ongoing costs, city says 

By Peter Hegarty | phegarty@bayareanewsgroup.com | Bay Area News Group 
May 23, 2019 at 5:49 am 

HAYWARD — Residents and businesses will likely see a rate increase in what 
they are paying for water and sewer services later this year. 

The proposed bimonthly fee for fixed water service, a flat charge based on a 
meter’s size, will go up $4 during the next fiscal year for typical home and 
business customers, under a proposed rate hike. 

The rate would increase another $4 for each bimonthly bill the following fiscal 
year. 

That would bring the fixed water service fee for the typical meter up to $28 in 
fiscal year 2019 and $32 the next fiscal year. The current fee is $24. 

No increases are proposed for water usage charges, which are based on how 
much water a customer uses. 

City employees also are recommending a 4.4 percent jump in the standard 
residential sewer rate over each of the next two fiscal years. 

The current monthly fixed sewer charge for a house is $32.85 each month, or 
$65.70 every bimonthly billing period. The proposed increase would bring that 
charge up to $34.30 a month, or $68.60 per bill, starting next fiscal year, then to 
$35.81 a month, or $71.62 per billing period, the following fiscal year. 

Combined fixed water and sewer charges would increase from the current 
$93.70 every two months to $96.60 the first year, and then to $103.62 the next. 
The total bill for a Hayward residential customer using 200 gallons of water a day 
would go up to $131.52 beginning in October, according to a staff report. 

170 of 172



Unlike residential customers, commercial and business customers pay a sewer 
fee based on the volume and strength of their water discharge. They can expect 
an increase in their sewer bills over the next two fiscal years from 3.1 percent to 
7.3 percent under the city’s plan, according to Public Works Director Alex Ameri. 

The increases are aimed at keeping pace with the cost of securing and delivering 
water, as well as sewer collection, treatment and disposal, according to city staff. 

The City Council, which still must approve the hikes, took no action when it was 
briefed on the proposed increases May 14. 

Hayward purchases its water from the Hetch Hetchy Regional Water System, 
which is managed by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. 

Even if the proposed increases for the fixed water charge and for sewer rates are 
approved, Hayward customers will still pay less for those parts of their bills than 
people in some neighboring cities. 

The East Bay Municipal Utility District charges a bimonthly fixed water fee of 
$52.46, for instance, and the Alameda County Water District $56.61, according to 
a city report. 

Oakland residents pay $65.63 for sewer services at a house, while those in 
Castro Valley pay $38.17 and those in San Leandro pay $35.75, the report said. 
However, Oro Loma Sanitary District customers pay $22.92. 

But while the fixed water rate may be lower for Hayward residents, their overall 
water bills are higher because the city’s water comes entirely via the San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission, which raised its rates 37 percent in fiscal 
years 2016 and 2017. 

According to the report, the bimonthly cost for 200 gallons per day in Hayward is 
$131.52. It’s $125.13 in the Alameda County Water District and will be $130.05 
under proposed rates at EBMUD. 

Ameri told the council that costs for water in Hayward work out for a residential 
customer to about 15 cents for an eight-minute shower, 21 cents for a single load 
of laundry and 2 cents for a single toilet flush. 

“Here we are delivering water at a penny or two a gallon, right into your home, 
clean and drinkable,” Councilman Al Mendall said. “That’s pretty impressive. Not 
too many private businesses can match that, in my opinion.” 

If approved, the first round of increases will start Oct. 1. 

171 of 172



Rates are calculated based on guidelines developed by the California State 
Water Resources Control Board. 

“As much as I am frugal about a lot of these things — we all want to spend our 
hard-earned cash on something, let’s say a bit more fun — we know that rates 
are increasing across the board,” Councilwoman Aisha Wahab said. 

A public hearing and a vote on the proposed rate hike will take place July 2. 

Customers can submit a protest, which must be in writing, about the increases up 
until the closing of the hearing. Protests can be submitted or mailed to City of 
Hayward, Attn. City Clerk, 777 B St., Hayward, Calif., 94541. 

Protests must include your name and either your address or water and/or sewer 
account number or numbers. 

The proposed rate changes will not take effect if written protests are received 
from a majority of property owners and tenants responsible for paying utility bills. 

 

172 of 172



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

JUNE 3, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 

TITLE: Schedule a Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 34.08, An Ordinance 
Providing for the General Regulation of Private and Public Sewers, Plan 
Review, Issuance of Construction Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, 
and the Collection of Fees for these Services, and to Repeal Ordinance No. 
34.07 (This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 

Recommendation 

Schedule a public hearing to adopt Ordinance No. 34.08 on July 10, 2019July 22, 2019 at 
7:00pm, in the Boardroom at 5072 Benson Road, Union City. 

Publish the attached Notice that the time and place of the public hearing will be published in 
the Tri-City Voice on June 11, 2019 and June 25, 2019. 

Previous Board Action 

06/22/2015 Board Meeting – Adopted Ordinance 34.07 (Resolution No. 2761). 

Background 

District Ordinance No. 34.07 provides for plan review, issuance of construction permits, 
inspection of sewer installation, and the collection of fees for these services.  It also governs 
the handling of deposits and includes the fees for Collection System services.  Whenever an  

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Agenda Item No. 15 
Meeting of June 3, 2019 
Page 2 

Ordinance is revised, it is required to hold a public hearing to allow a forum for the public to 
comment on the proposed changes.   

The changes mainly consist of revisions to the schedule of construction costs that are used for 
calculating plan review and inspection fees, updates to the material and services fees used to 
calculate fees for work performed by the District, clarifications to District ownership of sewer 
lines, clarifications to the use of deposits, and an appeals provision.  The material and services 
fees have not been updated for over 3 years, since the adoption of Ordinance No. 34.07 on 
June 22, 2015.  Due to economic inflation, some of these fees no longer cover the minimum 
effort associated with performing these services.  Regarding the clarification of District 
ownership of sewer lines, provisions regarding private main sewers and their maintenance 
have been added, including a revised Access and Clearance Requirements Detail 31 that has 
been drafted to replace the current detail in the District’s 2017 Standard Specifications and 
Details.  A summary of the proposed revisions to Ordinance 34.07 is attached.   

The District is proposing to publish in the Tri-City Voice, two Notices of Public Hearing, on June 
11 and June 25, 2019, notifying the public that the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District 
will consider adoption of the above-mentioned revisions to Ordinance No. 34.  A copy of 
Ordinance No. 34.08 with the proposed changes will be available for review at District offices. 

PRE/SEG/RA;dl 

Attachments:  Notice of Public Hearing 
Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ordinance 34.07 
Existing Street/Access Road Requirements Detail 31 
Proposed Access and Clearance Requirements Detail 31 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
5072 BENSON ROAD 
UNION CITY, CA 
94587 
CONTACT: Regina McEvoy 
(510) 477-7500

June 11 and June 25, 2019 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Section 5471 of the Health and Safety Code of the 
State of California, the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District will consider adopting Ordinance 
No. 34.08, an Ordinance Providing for the General Regulation of Private and Public Sewers 
regarding Plan Review,  Issuance of Construction Permits, Inspection of Sewer Installation, and the 
Collection of Fees for these Services, and to Repeal Ordinance No. 34.07. The new ordinance 
includes revisions to the schedule of construction costs that  are  used  for  calculating plan  review 
and inspection  fees, updates  to the material  and services fees used to calculate fees for work 
performed by the District, clarifications to  District  ownership of sewer lines, and clarifications to the 
use of deposits. Copies of draft Ordinance 34.08 are available for review at the office of the Union 
Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California. 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday, the 8th 22nd day of July 2019, at the hour of 7:00 
p.m., at the Union Sanitary District Boardroom, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California, in said
District, said Board  will hear and consider all protests and objections to said Ordinance 34.08.

By order of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District. 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Jennifer Toy 
Secretary 

Board of Directors 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 1 of 13 
 

Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ordinance 34.07 

The proposed changes to Ordinance 34.07 are as follows. Additions are shown 
underlined and deletions are shown with strikethrough. 

1) 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 34.078 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE GENERAL REGULATION OF PRIVATE AND 
PUBLIC SEWERS, PLAN REVIEW, ISSUANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PERMITS, 
INSPECTION OF SEWER INSTALLATION, AND THE COLLECTION OF FEES FOR 
THESE SERVICES  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District adopted Ordinance No. 
34.07 on June 22, 2015; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to adopt an amended version of Ordinance 
34.07, which, among other things:  (1) adds provisions regarding private main sewers and 
their maintenance; (2) updates fees; and (3) adds an appeals provision; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby finds that the fees set forth in Article IX, 
Schedule of Fees, of this Ordinance, do not exceed the reasonable cost of providing the 
service, product, benefit, privilege or activity for which the fee is charged. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

2) ARTICLE I, SECTION 2 SPECIFIC DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and terms shall have 
the meaning set forth in this article: 

a) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE

A device installed in the building sewer for the purpose of preventing or
minimizing the possibility of raw sewage backing up into the building.

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 2 of 13 
 

b) BUILDING DRAIN

That part of the lowest piping of a drainage system which conveys
wastewater from inside the walls of a building to a connection point with
the building sewer.

c) BUILDING SEWER

A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from the
building or structure to a main sewer.  The building sewer includes that
portion on the property and that portion from the property line or easement
line to the sewer main (Lateral Sewer).  Building Sewers also include
Private Sewers and House Sewers as defined.

d) DEVELOPER

A person or party submitting a request for connection to the District.

e) DISTRICT

Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California.

f) DISTRICT ENGINEER or ENGINEER

The General Manager of the District, or his designees, including, but not
limited to, duly authorized personnel.

g) HOUSE SEWER

That part of a piping system which conveys wastewater from a point 30
inches or less outside of a single family dwelling or residential unit to a
main sewer.  The house sewer includes that portion on the property and
that portion from the property line or easement line to the sewer main
(Lateral Sewer).

h) LATERAL SEWER

That portion of the building sewer from the sewer main to the property line
of the parcel of which the sewer serves (sometimes referred to as the lower
lateral).

i) MAIN SEWER

Any existing or proposed sewer dedicated to public use within the public
right-of-way or sanitary sewer easement.

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 3 of 13 

j) PERMIT

A document issued by the DISTRICT that allows the construction,
replacement, modification, or repair of main, building, private, and house
sewers.

k) PERMIT HOLDER

That person or company performing the sanitary sewer work to which a
permit is issued.

l) PRIVATE SEWER

That part of a piping system serving a non-residential building which
conveys wastewater from a point 30 inches or less outside of a building to
a main sewer. Excluded from this definition is a house sewer as defined in
“e)" above.

m) PRIVATE MAIN SEWER

Any existing or proposed sewer within a private street and owned by
maintained by a private party.

m)n) PUBLIC NUISANCE

Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of the regulations of 
the District’s latest Wastewater Discharge Ordinance (Series 36) or of any 
order issued by the District Engineer as authorized by those regulations, is 
considered a public nuisance. 

n)o) SEPTIC TANK

A water-tight receptacle which receives the discharge of a sanitary 
drainage system, or part thereof, designed and constructed so as to retain 
solids, digest organic matter through a period of detention, and allow the 
liquids to discharge into the soil outside of the tank through an effluent 
disposal system, meeting the requirements of the local Health Department 
having jurisdiction over such installation. 

3) ARTICLE II, SECTION 1 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 

Main sewers, building sewers, and appurtenances shall be constructed, repaired, or 
altered in accordance with the latest revision of the District's Standard Specifications as 
adopted by the District's Board or the latest revision of the Uniform Plumbing Code.  In all 
cases the District's Standard Specifications shall take precedence. 

4) ARTICLE II, SECTION 4 OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE OF MAIN 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 4 of 13 
 

SEWERS 

The District shall accept and maintain main sewers in the public right-of-way pursuant to 
this Section 4.  If a main sewer is constructed in a private street or driveway, depending 
on site conditions, overall relationship to the District’s system and conformance with 
District standards and specifications, the District may accept a sanitary sewer easement 
for the property in which the main sewer is constructed or may require the property owner 
or project developer or homeowner’s association to own and maintain the sewer as a 
private main sewer.  Whenever a main sewer in a public right-of-way or sanitary sewer 
easement has been constructed to the satisfaction of the District and accepted by the 
District, the District shall maintain the said main sewer.  Private main sewers not accepted 
by the District shall be maintained by the fee owner of the property in which the main 
sewer has been constructed or the project developer or homeowner’s association, as may 
be approved by the District, in accordance with the terms of a maintenance agreement in 
a form approved by the District. 

5) ARTICLE II, SECTION 7 CONNECTION OF BUILDING DRAINS 

Every building in which plumbing fixtures are installed shall be separately and 
independently connected to a main sewer, private main sewer, or septic tank. Where 
there is more than one building on a lot and where the lot cannot be subdivided under the 
provisions of any local regulations, a separate sewer will not be required.  Connection of 
each building on a lot to the separate sewer requires a District permit, inspection by USD 
the District and is subject to a separate capacity fee (Ordinance 35 Series) and separate 
sewer service charges (Ordinance 31 Series).  Any building sewers that have not been 
permitted, inspected; or where capacity and/or current sewer service charges have not 
been paid, will be subject to disconnection by USD the District forces under the authority 
of Health and Safety Code Sections 6520.1 and 6520.2.  Upon written notice from USD 
the District, the owner or occupant of any building having a building sewer that is not 
permitted in accordance with this ordinance shall terminate the connection of such 
building sewer to the main sewer within ten (10) days from the mailing of such notice. 
USD District forces are hereby authorized to enter any such property, cap or terminate 
any building sewer line and to charge the owner and/or occupant of all such buildings 
which are required to be disconnected from the sewer system, the reasonable cost of 
such effort.  Entry on private property and termination of service is authorized by Health 
& Safety Code Section 6523.2. 

6) ARTICLE III, SECTION 1 PROHIBITIVE DISCHARGES

District Ordinance No. 36 Section 2.01 identifies those discharges to the sanitary sewer 
system that are prohibited.  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged, any of 
the following into a building sewer, private main sewer, or main sewer: 

• Any flammable or explosive substance, including gasoline, paint, oils or other
flammable or explosive substance

• Any toxic or hazardous substance that may cause a threat to the life or health of

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 5 of 13 
 

the public or sewer maintenance person, or to the environment. 

• Any substance that would cause an obstruction of flow in the sanitary sewer

• Any radio-active substance

• Any pesticide or herbicide

• Any medical wastes, including prescription or non-prescription pharmaceuticals or
medicines

Any discharge or threat of a prohibitive discharge may be cause for the District to 
terminate service to prevent the harmful discharge to the District’s sewer system. 

In addition, storm water, groundwater, rain water (including from rain gutters), street 
drainage, subsurface drainage or yard drainage shall not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connections to the sewer unless a permit is issued for such connection by the 
District. 

See additional prohibitions under District Ordinance No. 36. 

7) ARTICLE IV, SECTION 1 PLAN SUBMITTALS

All plans to be submitted for review must be prepared by a California Registered Civil 
Engineer and shall be of in such form as required by the District Engineer. 

8) ARTICLE IV, SECTION 2 PLAN REVIEW PERIOD

If, during or after preliminary a plan review, no action has taken place within a period of 
six months, the review of the plans shall become void. If a plan is approved and a permit 
is not issued within one year of the plan approval date, the approval shall become void. 
Voided plans must be resubmitted along with a plan review fee based on fees in the 
amount in effect at the time of resubmittal before plans will be re-reviewed. Plans that are 
voided and resubmitted which are substantially the same as those originally approved 
shall be charged for one additional review or 30% of the total plan check fee. 

9) ARTICLE V, SECTION 1 PERMITS REQUIRED

A person or company engaging in any of the following activities shall obtain a permit from 
the District for : 

a) Construction of a main sewer.
b) Construction, replacement, alteration or repair of a building sewer.
c) Connection of a building drain to a building sewer.
d) Connection of a wash pad, RV dump station or other appurtenances to the

building sewer.

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 6 of 13 
 

10) ARTICLE VI, SECTION 3 REQUEST FOR INSPECTIONS

The permit holder shall advise the District that work is ready for request a District 
inspection by giving at least 24 48 hours’ notice during normal working hours in advance 
of the time inspection is requested. Inspections outside of normal working hours shall 
require that the permit holder file and obtain approval on applicable forms and pay for any 
inspections at the overtime rate. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, work will be done by a 
Contractor outside of normal working hours, the Engineer has the right to inspect the work 
and charge the permit holder at the overtime rate. Any permit holder requesting inspection 
on a normal day off shall be charged for a minimum inspection time of four hours. 
Whenever work under a permit has been accepted by the District, the permit holder will 
be notified within 15 days of the date of acceptance. 

12) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 1 INSURANCE REQUIRED
A contractor who applies for a permit shall maintain, on file with USD, an insurance
certificate evidencing the following insurances:

a) Worker's Compensation
b) Commercial General Liability ($1,000,000/incident minimum and

$2,000,000 aggregate)

USD shall be named as an Additional Insured for Public Liability under the required 
policies (Additional Endorsement needed). 

13) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 2 PURPOSE OF CASH DEPOSIT FOR SEWER
CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 

The District finds that the work of constructing, installing and repairing of sewers vitally 
affects the operation of the District's sewer system and has an adverse and deleterious 
effect upon it unless the work is inspected by the District and installed per District 
standards.  The reason for requiring a cash deposit from an applicant as provided in this 
section is to ensure that the District’s construction standards are met in case of poor or 
improper workmanship. D As provided in this Article, deposits may be used to complete 
unfinished work or, to pay for work that is performed by the District to ensure District’s 
standards are met., or be unused.   

14) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 3 DEPOSIT FOR MAIN SEWER CONSTRUCTION

A cash deposit or surety bond in an amount established by Article IX Schedule of Fees, 
shall be submitted to the District for main sewers prior to the issuance of a permit for the 
construction, installation, or alteration of a main sewer. Any The remaining amount of any 
cash deposit will be refunded after one year from the date of acceptance. However, no 
additional cash deposit is required An exception to this requirement is where the 
municipality within which the work is to be performed requires the filing of a faithful 
performance bond guaranteeing correction of defects due to faulty, improper, or inferior 
workmanship or materials arising or discovered within one year after acceptance of the 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 7 of 13 
 

work. In this case, no additional cash deposit or surety bond is required. 

15) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 4 DEPOSIT FOR PRIVATE SEWER AND PRIVATE
MAIN SEWER CONSTRUCTION 

An applicant for a permit, and a developer for the construction, installation or alteration of 
a private sewer or private main sewer shall deposit with the District, the amount 
established in Article IX Schedule of Fees. This Any remaining amount of the deposit shall 
be refunded within 60 days after acceptance of the project by the District. 

16) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 5 DEPOSIT FOR BUILDING SEWER REPAIR,
ALTERATION, OR INSTALLATION 

An applicant for a permit to repair, alter, or install a building sewer(s) shall deposit with 
the District, the amount established in Article IX Schedule of Fees. This Any remaining 
amount of the deposit shall be refunded within 60 days after acceptance of the sewer by 
the District, or if the Deposit is for a tract of houses, within 60 days after the last house is 
accepted. 

17) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 6 FAILURE OF PERMIT HOLDER TO CORRECT
WORK 

A permit holder shall have ten days to correct any work, or respond in writing, after the 
District gives notice to correct deficient work. If the District Engineer, upon review of the 
written response, finds that there is insufficient reason for the permit holder not to correct 
the deficient work, the permit holder shall have five days to correct the said work. Failure 
to correct the deficient work in accordance with the schedule above will result in forfeiture 
of the deposit to the District.  The District may then take corrective action as it determines 
necessary to complete the work and deduct any amounts expended from the deposit. 

18) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 7 FAILURE TO CORRECT THE WORK AND THE
WORK CONSTITUTES A DANGER 

If a permit holder fails to correct any work within five days after notification in writing, and 
in the opinion of the District Engineer the work constitutes a danger to the public or District 
facilities, or that the District forces cannot correct the work, the work shall be disconnected 
by District forces.  The cost of this disconnection shall be deducted from the any deposits. 

19) ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8 INCREASE IN DEPOSIT OR SUSPENSION FROM
WORK IN THE DISTRICT 

If a permit holder fails to correct the work on two permits within a one-year period, the 
required deposit for future permits may be doubled. Further failures to correct the work 
may result in additional increases or disallowance of the permit holder to obtain another 
permit within the District’s boundaries. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 8 of 13 
 

20) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT REVIEW FEE

a) Easements, Deeds and Quitclaims $500.00 
b) Encroachment permits $  50.00 
c) Special Agreements/Studies    Development/Review Cost (including 

consulting and legal fees; $500 
minimum) 

21) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 5 SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS (used for
calculating plan review and inspection fees, and, 
permit holder and developer deposits). 

Item Unit Cost 

Manhole (Type II) Each $5,600.00 

Manhole (public or private) Each $3,500.00 

Drop Manhole (connection) Each $1,000.00 

Risers Each $800.00 

Nottingham Box Each $4,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 1500 Gallons Each $4,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 2000 Gallons Each $4,900.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 3000 Gallons Each $5,300.00 

Grease Interceptor/Clarifier 5000 Gallons Each $6,900.00 

Grease Sand Trap Sand-Oil Water Separator Each $2,150.00 

Trash Enclosure Interceptor Each $2,150.00 

Cleanout to Grade Each $375.00 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 9 of 13 

12 inch Sewer Linear Feet $120.00 

10 inch Sewer Linear Feet $100.00 

8 inch Sewer Linear Feet $80.00 

6 inch Sewer Linear Feet $60.00 

4 inch Sewer Linear Feet $40.00 

Sewer in Easement (additional charge) Linear Feet $10.00 

Sewer in Steel Casing Linear Feet $1,560.00 

30 inch Steel Casing Linear Feet $700.00 

Commercial/Multi-Family Pump Station Each $16,000.00 

Residential Pump Station Each $8,000.00 

Abandon Sewer Linear Feet $11.00 

Abandon Septic Tanks Each $1,300.00 

Abandon Manhole Each $900.00 

NOTE: The cost of items not listed will be estimated by the District Engineer. 

22) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 6 MATERIAL AND SERVICES FEES (used for
calculating fees associated with work performed by 
District Forces.) 

Description of Work Unit Fee Fee 

a) Install stub and channel manhole (Work 
inside manhole only) 

1. 6”, 8”, 10” New pipe stub into an existing
8” sewer or larger manhole base

Each $2,300 $3,300 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 10 of 13 

2. 12” or larger New pipe stub into an
existing 12” sewer or larger manhole base

Each $2,875 $4,235 

3. New pipe stub into an existing 18” sewer
or larger manhole base 

Each $14,500 

b) Channel new manhole 

1. 6” to 10” main Each $1,820 $3,160 

2. 12” to 18” main Each $2,625 $3,500 

3. 21” or larger main Each $2,940 $7,225 

c) False Bottom 

1. Install and remove Each $390 $495 

d) Adjust manhole to grade 

1a. Structural adjustment with reference 
points, false bottoms, and asphalt 
concrete 

Each $840 $1,760 

1b. In addition to 1a. above, for additional 
work including: excavation; removal; and 
replacement and/or installation of cone 
and/or barrel section 

Each $4,500 $7,600 

2. Asphalt concrete overlay using riser rings
up to 3” in height, including reference
points

Each $575 

3. Asphalt concrete including adjustment of
existing casting

Each $785 

e) Pipe repairs less than 10 feet in length (cut & 
repair only) 

1. 4” and 6” lateral Each $595 $625 

2. 6” and 8” main Each $735 $730 

3. 10” and 12” main Each $975 

f) Wye or tee splices (cut and install only) 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 11 of 13 

1. 6” to 12” Each $1,100 $1535 

g) *Television inspection

1. Laterals Each $315 $525 

2. Mains, in excess of 1000 ft in length (if <
1000 ft, then cost is on a time -and-
materials basis)

$0.80 $0.42 Cleaning +$1.24 $1.10 
TV 

Per Ft. $1.52 $2.04 

• TV only Per Ft. $1.10 $1.24 

*If laterals need additional work prior to TV,
such as, snaking, repairs, or installing a
cleanout, additional costs will be charged on
a time-and-material basis

h) Cleanouts 

1. Install Each $915 

2. Raise cleanout to grade and install
cleanout box

Each $395 

i) Miscellaneous 

1. Install and remove temporary plug Each $495 $645 

2. Catch debris Each $475 $630 

3. Dye tracing Each $265 

4. Ferret tracing Each $265 

j) Overtime inspection 

1. Hourly Rate (four hour minimum for
weekends and holidays)

Per 
Hour 

$210 $355 

k) Unforeseen conditions may increase the time and charges to complete 
work. 

l) Additional work will be charged based on a time–and-material basis. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 12 of 13 
 

m) Contractors will be required to sign a work order agreeing to pay for 
work in advance of USD performing the work. 

n) USD work guaranteed for 12 months. 

23) ARTICLE IX, SECTION 7 PERMIT HOLDER DEPOSITS

a) Main Sewers 50% of Construction Costs 

b) Private Sewers
1.  $2,500.00 per permit, or
2.  $5,000.00 by cash, check or

Credit Card payable to Union
Sanitary District

c) House Sewers (Repair, alteration, or
installation) 1. $500.00 per permit, or

$2,500.00 per tract, or
2. $5,000.00 cash, check or Credit

Card payable to Union Sanitary
District for multiple permits in
lieu of the per permit
permitholder deposit.

24) ARTICLE X, SECTION 1 APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS  

Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination made by the District Engineer or another employee of the District in 
interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance or in any permit issued 
herein, may file with the District Engineer a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or 
determination, setting forth in detail the facts supporting the user's appeal or request for 
reconsideration. 

If the ruling made by the District Engineer is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or 
requesting reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the District's 
governing body within ten days after notification of District action.  The written appeal 
shall be heard by the governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon 
thereafter as reasonably possible.  The District’s governing body shall make a final 
ruling on the appeal within 30 days of the meeting. The District Engineer's decision, 
action, or determination shall remain in effect during such period of appeal.  The 
determination of an appeal by the governing body of the District shall constitute a final 
determination of the District and may be subject to judicial review. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



Page 13 of 13 

25) ARTICLE XI REPEAL 

Ordinance 34.07 6 is hereby repealed. 

26) ARTICLE XII EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force August 3, 2015 July 29, 2019 August 
12, 2019 and at least one week prior to said date it shall be published once in THE 
ARGUS TRI-CITY VOICE, a newspaper of general circulation published in the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT.  This ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 

27) ARTICLE XIII SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Ordinance or any subdivision thereof, or any application thereof, 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance or the 
subdivision, or the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall 
not be affected thereby. 

On motion duly made and seconded, this Ordinance was adopted after public hearing 
by the following vote on June 22, 2015 July 8, 2019 July 22, 2019: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Manny Fernandez Anjali Lathi 
President, Board of Directors 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
ATTEST 

Tom Handley Jennifer Toy 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 

daniellel
Cross-Out



DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 



ACCESS AND CLEARANCE 
REQUIREMENTS

GROUND
SURFACE

SEWER

TRENCH

ZONE OF
INFLUENCE

1H
1V

BUILDING
FOUNDATION

R1 ≥ 25'

R2

12'
MIN.

FIGURE 1 - BULB TURNAROUND
NOT TO SCALE

FIGURE 2 - "T" TURNAROUND
NOT TO SCALE

FIGURE 6 - ZONE OF INFLUENCE 
NOT TO SCALE

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

12' MIN12' MIN

T

T

18'
MIN

12'
MIN.

ENTRY
ROAD
WIDTH

T T

FIGURE 3 - HAMMERHEAD TURNAROUND 
NOT TO SCALE

18'
MIN

18'
MIN

5'
MIN.

5'
MIN.

≤11'

FIGURE 5 - HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE 
NOT TO SCALE

SEWER

PROPOSED
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

WITH
OVERHANG

ROAD
WITH CURB

DRIVE AISLE
WITHOUT

CURB

R1 ≥ 25'R1 ≥ 25'
R1 ≥ 25' R1 ≥ 25'

FIGURE 4 - DEAD-END ROADWAY/DRIVE AISLE 
NOT TO SCALE

18'
MIN

DESK ITEM 
Item 15 
6/3/2019 

rods
Rectangle

rods
Oval

rods
Polygon

rods
Line

rods
Rectangle

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
NOTES:1.  SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS     PUBLIC SEWERS NOT LOCATED IN PUBLIC STREETS MUST BE SITUATED WITHIN A SANITARY SEWER     EASEMENT (SSE) GRANTED TO AND ACCEPTED BY THE DISTRICT. SSE SHALL HAVE A CONTINUOUS     MINIMUM WIDTH OF 15 FEET WITH MANHOLE CENTERED IN SSE. IF THERE IS NO MANHOLE WITHIN THE     SSE, THE MINIMUM WIDTH IS 10 FEET WITH THE MAIN CENTERED IN THE SSE.2.  ACCESS REQUIREMENTS     AT A MINIMUM, PRIVATE ROADWAYS ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE SUFFICIENT ACCESS AND TURNAROUND     AREAS, PER THIS DETAIL SHEET.       TURNAROUND GEOMETRY:           A.  RETURN RADII, R2:                a.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 12 FEET AND < 18 FEET, R2 ≥ 25 FEET                b.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 18 FEET, R2 ≥ 15 FEET          B.  TURNOUT TANGENT, T:                a.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 12 FEET AND < 18 FEET, T ≥ 7 FEET                b.  IF ENTRY ROAD WIDTH ≥ 18 FEET, T ≥ 2 FEET   HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CLEARANCES3.  HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE FROM BUILDING OVERHANG LESS THAN 11 FEET HIGH, CURB, EDGE OF     PAVEMENT, TREES OR OTHER OBSTRUCTION, WHICHEVER IS CLOSEST TO THE SEWER (SEE FIGURE 5):          A.  TO CENTER LINE OF SEWER MAIN = 5 FEET MINIMUM          B.  TO CENTER OF MANHOLE = 7.5 FEET MINIMUM   4.  OTHER UTILITIES: SEE DISTRICT'S DETAILS 16 AND 17 FOR REQUIREMENTS.   5.  SEWER CLEARANCE FROM BUILDINGS: SEWER MAINS SHALL BE LOCATED SUCH THAT EXCAVATION FOR     SEWER CONSTRUCTION MUST BE OUTSIDE OF THE "ZONE OF INFLUENCE" FROM BUILDING LOADS     (DEFINED BY A LINE OF REPOSE THAT EXTENDS DOWNWARD FROM THE EDGE OF A BUILDING'S     FOUNDATION AT A MAXIMUM ANGLE OF 1V:1H. SEE FIGURE 6).   6.  SSE MAINTENANCE ACCESS: ACCESS TO AND ALONG THE SSE, INCLUDING ALL MANHOLES, SHALL BE     FEASIBLE AND SAFELY ACHIEVABLE BY DISTRICT MAINTENANCE VEHICLES. PROPERTY OWNER     MAINTAINED ALL-WEATHER ACCESS ROADS TO MANHOLES ARE REQUIRED IN NON-PAVED AREAS.     ACCESS ROADS SHALL BE A MIN. 12 FEET WIDE, MAX. CROSS SLOPE OF 2%, AND CONSIST OF:          A.  ROAD SLOPE < 10% = MINIMUM 11 INCHES AGGREGATE BASE (AB)          B.  ROAD SLOPE 10% TO < 15% = MINIMUM 2.5 INCHES AC OVER MINIMUM 9 INCHES AB           C.  ROAD SLOPE 15% TO < 20% = MIN. 6 INCHES REINFORCE CONCRETE (#4 @16 INCHES OC EACH                WAY, OR EQUIVALENT WELDED-WIRE-FABRIC), WITH A GOOVED SURFACE OVER MIN. 3 INCHES AB          SUB-BASE AND AB SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MIN. 95% RELATIVE COMPACTION. AB SHALL COMPLY     WITH CALTRANS SPECIFICATIONS SECTION 26 (CLASS 2 AB) FOR 3/4" MAX. GRADING, AND SHALL BE     NEWLY QUARRIED MATERIAL (NO RECYCLED MATERIAL OR MINED ALLUVIUM). PAVED ROAD SURFACE     SHALL DRAIN AWAY FROM MANHOLE. MANHOLES IN NON-PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE MIN. 6-FOOT     DIAMETER REINFORCED CONCRETE COLLAR SURROUNDED BY A MIN. 12" WIDE BAND OF GRAVEL.   7.  OWNER'S USE OF SSE: NO TREES OR PERMANENT STRUCTURES SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN A SSE.     LANDSCAPING (SHRUBS, BUSHES, PLANTS, GROUNDCOVER, ETC.) AND SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS     (BRICK, CONCRETE, STONE, ETC.) ARE ALLOWED BUT DISTRICT HAS THE RIGHTS TO REMOVE, WITHOUT     REPLACEMENT, ANY IMPROVEMENTS, VEGETATION AND OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN A SSE AS NECESSARY     TO MAINTAIN OR REPAIR THE SEWER.

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
 d

rods
Text Box
 d

rods
Rectangle

rods
Line

rods
Pencil

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Polygonal Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Oval

rods
Oval

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Line

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
S

rods
Text Box
450' MAX

rods
Text Box
SSMH

rods
Typewritten Text
04-25-2019

rods
Line


	1 06032019_Agenda - REVISED
	2 06032019 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags - REVISED
	05292019 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag

	4 05082019 Board Workshop Minutes
	5 05132019 Minutes
	6 05202019 Board Workshop Minutes
	7 05232019 Special Meeting Minutes
	8a Third Qtr FY19 District BSC
	8b.  Balanced Scorecard Report for the Technical Services Work Group
	TS BSC Board Item FY 19
	TS BSC 2019 Attachments FINAL
	01 TSCS Org Chart FY 19
	Slide Number 1

	02 CIPGraphsPg1DL
	03 CIPGraphsPg2DL
	04 CIPGraphsPg3DL
	05 CustServ Graph 1-2 Plans Checked-Refunds
	06 CustServ Graph 3 Trouble Calls
	07 EC Pg 1 BSC Graph FY19
	08 EC Pg 2 BSC Graph FY19
	09 TS Measures Summary 2019


	11 BOD Reps for External Cmtes
	11.1 BOD Reps for External Cmtes
	11.2 3070 Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership
	11.3 External Cmte Assignments 2009 to Present

	12 Board Compensation - REVISED
	12.2 History of Board Compensation Since 2000
	12.3 2019 BOD Comp_Ben Survey 04.15.2019 FINAL

	13 Policy 3090, Boardmember Health and Welfare and Other Benefits
	13.1 SR for Policy 3090
	13.2 3090 Board Member Health and Welfare and Other Benefits (Final)
	13.3 3090 Board Member Health and Welfare and Other Benefits (Redlined)

	14 SSC to tax rolls BOD action item fy2020
	15.PublicHearingOrd34.08
	01.Bd_Item_SchedulePublicHearing_Ord34.08
	02.Advertisement
	03.Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ord 34.07
	Linear Feet
	Linear Feet
	Linear Feet
	Each
	Each

	04.Existing Street Access Road Reqs Detail 31
	05.Proposed Access and Clearance Reqs Detail 31

	16.ResoTract8208PrimaNewark
	01.2_TR 8208_GoE_0_Memo
	02.2_TR 8208_GoE_1_Vicinity Map
	03.2_TR 8208_GoE_2_Reso
	04.2_TR 8208_GoE_3_Record Request w CoA
	05.2_TR 8208_GoE_4_GoE w Exhibits
	TR 8208 GoE signed 0864_001
	TR 8208 GoE Exhibits 0866_001


	17 Reserves Policy No. 2090
	17.1 Reserves Policy 2019 Action Item - Final
	17.2 Policy 2090 Reserve Funds - redline
	17.3 Policy 2090 Reserves Allocations and Fund Balance - changes incorporated

	18 Final FY 2020 Proposed Budget Item
	Template for Board Action Item Proposed Budget 6-3-19
	Budget Cover FY 2020 - Proposed
	Slide Number 1

	This page intentionally left blank - Final Adopted
	FY20 Budget Transmittal Memo - June 24 2019 - Proposed
	FY20 Budget Pie Charts - 5-20-2019 Proposed updated - LM
	This page intentionally left blank - Final Adopted
	2020 Budget Summary and Comments - June 3 2019 DRAFT -master clean
	SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

	FY20 Special Projects - June 3, 2019 - Proposed
	Spec Proj

	FY20 Annual Contracts Over $100K
	CIP FY 2020-2039_v5
	CIP 2020-2039 Combined


	19 Bd Ck Reg Rpt05242019
	06032019 BOD Mtg Article
	15.PublicHearingOrd34.08 - DESK ITEM.pdf
	01.Bd_Item_SchedulePublicHearing_Ord34.08- DESK ITEM
	02.Advertisement - DESK ITEM
	03.Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Ord 34.07 - DESK ITEM
	Linear Feet
	Linear Feet
	Linear Feet
	Each
	Each

	04.Existing Street Access Road Reqs Detail 31
	05.Proposed Access and Clearance Reqs Detail 31




